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Life ke "Cut of

Africa” graphics

solved, while creating an

updated pack for this well
presented through
a litho-laminated

established product in

African markets.
container which

After the success of the Omo Progress creates an eye

carton a second generation Metalitone catching point of

carton was developed for Skip Intelfigent. safe medium for

This world-first pack significantly improvec the export wine

the shelf appeal of the product and market. b

included a hofogram
and five different
anti-counterfeit

Nampak had nine trophy winners in this year's prestigious Goldpack Awards.

foatures. B These innovative and unigue packs are featured on the front cover.
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"'Financia‘lv\Hiélh‘(‘!‘ights and Performance Trends

Bm 2005 2004 change
INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue 15 583 17 495 (10.9)
Profit from operations 1356 1633 (17
Operating margin 8.7% 9.3%
Net profit 781 967 (19.2)
Headling earnings per share 119.2¢ 146.1¢c (18.4)
Dividend per share 83.6¢ 83.6¢
BALANCE SHEET
Total shareholders’ funds 5265 5416
Total assets 10 436 11186
Net asset value per share 816¢ 839c
Net borrowings 578 1145
CASH FLOW
Cash generated from operations 2013 2130 5.5)
EBITDA 2057 2434 (15.5)
Net gearing 11% 21%
4 ) 4 I
Cash 2%° oo | R 130 Dividends
generated 2000 R1767 | per share
from 1500 cents
Operations oo s | 223 e
R
O| oo | zoor | 2000 | o00s | 2000 | 2005
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Metzals and Glass: Africa

About our Metals and Glass
Product Range

Nampak is the sole beverage can manufacturer
in sub-Saharan Africa. We also produce two
and three piece tinplats food cans, as well as
general line cans used for industrial and
household products. We manufacture metal
ends, crowns and closures. In aerosols we
manufacture both monobioc aluminium and
tinplate containers. Customer designed
decorative tinware, used primarily for
promotional purposes, complates our range of
metals products. Nampak Glass manufactures a
range of clear and coloured glass bottles,

(]

Group at a Glance

Paper: Africa and Europe

About our Paper
Product Range

Our broad range of leading paper-based carton
packaging includes folding cartons, corrugated
cartons, liquid cartons, display cartons and
composite containers. We specialise in wet glie
paper labels, leaflets, multiple-wall paper sacks
and bags as welt as paperboard cores, cones
and tubes. Also manufactured from paperis a
range of speciality coated papers and industrial
packing materials. Non-packaging paper
products include a range of printed books and
diaries and tissue products.




Rigid Plastics: Africa and Europe | ‘ Flexible Plastics: Africa

About our Rigid Plastics : | About our Flexible Plastics

Product Range : Product Range
Nampak's rigid plastic offering includes PET and Nampak manufactures reels, pouches and bags
HDPE bottles used for packaging beverages in any form of film, paper or foit combination.
and other liguid products, blow-moulded drums | Specialities include liquid bags, medical
and injection-moulded HDPE crates and trays packaging, stand-up pouches and aluminium
as well as injection-moulded polypropylene foil conversions. We also produce a wide range
containers. Our range of quality tubes includes of extruded and co-extruded films. Retail bags
decorative plastic tubes and high-barrier - inavarlety of formats complete our product
laminated tubes used in a wide variety of : offering.

cosmetic, toiletry and personal care markets.
Also manufactured in plastic is a range of
beverage and specialised closures.

@ Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @




(in order from left)

Group Directorate

Non-executive directors

1. PETER CAMPBELL (68)

CA(SA), AMP Harvard

Was formerly deputy chairman of Nampak Limited,
a position from which he retired in 1997. He remains
a non-executive director of Nampak and chairman
of Nampak's audit committes. He is chairman

of Hudaco Industries Limited and Pangbourne
Properties Umited and is a nan-executive director
of Crookes Brothers Limited and Delta Electrical
Industries, and sits on the audit committee of all of
these companies. Appointed to the board in 1984,

2. TREVOR EVANS (50)

BSc¢ (Rhodes), SEP (Stanford)

Non-executive chairman. Non-executive director of
Standard Bank. Retired as executive chairman of
Nampak on 30 September 2003. He was appointed
deputy chairman and chief executive officer of
Nampak in 2000 and executive chairman of the
group in 2001. He joined the Group in 1967 and
became group managing director in 1992, President
of the Plastics Federation of Scuth Africa from 1989
t0 1991 and a governor of Rhades University since
2000. He was recognised by the Plastics Federation
of South Africa for service to the South African
plastics industry with a Gold Award in 1991, In 1992
voted “most prograssive CEC in South Africa” by the
Black Management Forum and in 1997 received the
Packaging Achiever Award for meritorious service to
the Packaging Industry. Appointed to the board in
1990.

3. BUDDY HAWTON (68"

Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of
Secretaries

Chairman of Sun International Limited and
Woolworths Holdings Limited. Also serves on the
hoards of Liberty Group, Standard Bank Group and
Stanlib. Appointed to the board in 1991,

4. MICHAEL KATZ 1)

BComm, LLB, LLM, LLDh.c)}

Executive chairman Edward Nathan & Friedland
{Pty) Limited. Currently serving on the boards of
numerous companiss including Nedbank Limited
and National Housing Finance Corporation Limited.
He is an honorary professor of company law at the
University of the Witwatersrand and course director
of the higher diploma in company law at the same
university. He is chairman of the tax advisory
committee to the Minister of Finance and serves
as a member of the Securities Regulation Panel.
Appointed to the board in 1985.

5. REUEL KHOZA {55)

BA, MA (Marketing Management), PMD (Harvard
Business School), IPBM (IMD, Lausanne)

Chairman of Aka Capital (Pty) Limited, Corobrik

{Pty) Limited, Murray and Roberts Cementation

(Pty) Limited, Akani Leisure (Pty) Limited and the
NEPAD Business Foundation, Directar of JSE
Limited, Protea Hospitality Limited, Nedbank Group,
and Gold Reef Casino Resorts Limited. Currently
Fellow and President of the Institute of Directors in
South Africa.

A leading proponent of a new management culture
and leadership based on inclusivity, Afrocentricity and
Ubuntu. An advocate of African-led globally
compestitive economics and industries from the
mother continent. A distinguished consultant,
lecturer, and change agent in business for over two
decades. He is also a member, and past director and
patron of the Black Management Forum (BMF).
Recipient of 2001 Leadership in Practice Award from
the University of South Africa - School of Business
Leadership, the 2000 Excellence in Business
Management Award from the University of the North,
and the 1987 Black Management Forum (BMF)

(J

Presidential Achievers Award. Appointed to the board
in 2005.

6. KEITH MOKOAPE (58

BSc¢, MM (Human Resources)

General manager of the South Africar Army
Foundation, and major-general responsible for the
South African Army Reserve. He heads an
empowerment consortium, Katleho Linkages, which
has invested in defence-related companies whose
boards he chairs - CyberSim, Sigma Logistic
Solutions, and intertechnic. He also holds
directorships of the National Business Initiative, the
Aerospace, Maritime and Defence Industries
Association, and the Private Game Reserve Singita
Lebombo. Appointed to the board in 1998,

7. LOT NDLOVU {54y

Dip LR {Unisa), MAP (Wits), EDP (North Western,
USA}, AMP (Harvard)

Maduke Lot Ndlovu is vice-chairman of Nedcor and
previously was CEQ of Peoples Bank Limited.

He is chalrman of Lafarge South Africa, NestLife
Assurance Corporation Limited, The South African
National Roads Agency Limited, Nakatomi
Corporation, Mpumalanga Economic Empowerment
Corporation, Community Growth Management
Company, Lefika Holdings, Barak Mining Services,
Crystal View Consulting, St Anthony’s Education
Centre and November Ten Charities. He is a director
of Mutual and Federal. He is also a member of the
Independent Commission for the Remuneration of
Public Office Bearers, the Business Trust on Job
Creation and Hope in Victory {(a care-giving
organisation for HIV patients).

Ndlovu is a doyen of the black empowerment
movement in SA. He was president of both the Black
Management Forum (BMF) and the Black Business




Council. The Black Economic Empowerment
Commission was initiated by the BMF under his
presidency.

He studied business management at Unisa, Wits,
North Western University (US) and Harvard
Business School. He holds an honorary
doctorate from Pretoria Technikon {(now Tshwane
Institute of Technology). Appointed to the board
in 1993

8. THYS VISSER (51)

CA (SA)

Chief executive officer of Remgro Limited.
Currently serving on the boards of British
American Tobacco ple, Distell Group Limited,
Rainbow Chicken Limited and Unilever Bestfoods
Robertsons (Pty) Limited. He is a chartered
accountant who qualified with Arthur Young &
Company in Cape Town befare joining
Rembrandt Group Limited where he held a
number of positions, including financial director in
1991 and managing director in 1892. Appointed
1o the board in 2002.

9. ROBERT WILLIAMS (64)

BA, LLB

Robbie Williams is currently chairman of Tiger
Brands Limited and llovo Sugar Limited. He also
serves on the board of FirstRand Limited, Mutual
& Federal Assurance Company Limited and
Qceana Group Limited. Appointed to the board
in 1990.

Executive directors

a. JOHN BORTOLAN (57)

SEP (Stanford)

Chief executive officer. He began his career at
Nampak in 1980 as the cammercial director of Peters
Papers, becoming its managing director in 1983. In
1986 he was appointed managing director of
Nampak Tissue. In 1990 he became a director of
Nampak Limited responsible for Foodcan, Paper
Distribution, Tissue and Paper Manufacturing. In
1996 BlowMocan in the UK and Blow Molders were
added to his portfolio. In more recent years he has
also had responsibility for Corrugated, Printpak
Limited and Liguid Packaging. He was appointed
managing director of Nampak’s South African and
African businesses in 2000 and became group
managing director in July 2001. On 1 August 2003
he was made chief executive officer of the group.
Appointed to the board in 1990.

b. NEIL CUMMING (51)

MSacSci, EDP (IMD Switzerland), HDPM,

Reg Industrial Psychologist

Managing director Africa region. He was appointed
managing director of the Africa region on 1 Qctober
2003 and is responsible for the Nampak operations
in South Africa and the rest of Africa. He was
previously responsible for the paper-based divisions
in the group including Corrugated, Printpak, Paper
Merchants and Redibox and also for the Nampak
operations in the rest of Africa. He has held positions
in the sugar, chemical and packaging industries and
joined the group in 1986. Appainted alternate
director in 1991 and a director in 1994.

c. TIM JACOBS (35)

CA (SA)

After qualifying with Ernst & Young he joined Air
Liquide (Pty) Limited as financial director in 1996,
He joined Nampak in January 2001 as group
accountant and was appointed group financial
manager in 2003. Appointed acting chief financial
officer in June 2005, and appointed permanently on
1 October 2005. Appointed to the board in 2005.

d. ALASTAIR LANG (59) (British)

CA, EDP (Columbia)

Managing director of Nampak Wiegand Glass

{Pty) Limited and responsible for the Beveap division.
Previously responsible for the metal and glass-based
divisions in the group and for the group’s operations
in the rest of Africa. He qualified as a chartered
accountant in Scotland in 1968 and joinad Metal Box
SA Limited in 1972 after two years with Metal Box
plc in the UK. Between 1972 ang 1985 he held
several financial positions within Metal Box SA
Uimited before being appointed managing director of
Bevcan in 1985. He then ran the beverage sector of
Nampak and was appointed to the Nampak board in
1990.

“Independent non-executive

@ Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @
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Chairman’s Review

Trevor Evans: Chairman

Introduction

The South African economy experienced

another good year of growth during 2005

with some economists suggesting that

a GDP growth of 5% for the year will be
achievable. What is encouraging for the
packaging industry, is that recent statistics reflect
growth in non-durable consumer expenditure in
excess of 4% per annum. During the year scme of
the group’s divisions - Rigid Plastics, Closures and
Glass - experienced growth rates above this level,
however, the majority of our South African businesses
did not experience this level of growth, primarily dus to
the effect of the strong rand. However, in general,
growth rates across most of the South African

operations improved towards year-end.

In Europe, packaging growth still tends to track GDP
although refocation of some customers’ manufacturing facilities to

lower cost regions has diluted this.

In the rest of Africa the Nigerian businesses nad good growth in the sales cf cigarette
cartens. Whilst trading in Zimbabwe was satisfactory, the hyper-inflationary environment

has resulted in a substantial reduction in profit from that country,

During the year the group continued to reshape the businesses to adjust to the difficult
trading conditions faced by Nampak in South Africa and Europe. Four factories were shut
in South Africa and three in the United Kingdom. In these regions, head office and other

costs were also reduced. Costs of R150 million were incurred in this process.




Excluding the acquisition of in-plants, R833 million was invested to upgrade old equipment
and to produce new products, cater for expansion and in the further upgrade of the
information technology system. The group is coming to the end of a major five-year
information technology upgrade with completion date on track for the end of the first
quarter of 2007. To date, all conversions have gone well with minimal disruptions to the

business, and benefits are expected to be delivered from 2006 onwards.

Portfolio review

The Short Run plastics industrial containers business in Europe, which had a turnover of
£79 miflion in 2004, was sold for £21 million effective 30 October 2004. This transaction
facilitated the sale in the United Kingdom of the Woburn Sands property for £40 million.

In the United Kingdom, the profitable plastic milk bottle business was strengthened by the

acquisition of two in-plant operations with long-term supply contracts.

Effective 1 March 2005, Peters Papers, the paper merchants division, was sold for
R220 million to a leading emerging markets private equity company, in partnership with

management and a Black Economic Empowerment investrment company.

Effective 1 October 2005, German glass maker, Wiegand-Glas, acquired a 50% equity
stake in the Glass division. Wiegand-Glas will provide skills and technology which wili

accelerate the business's improvement in quality and productivity.

Subsequent to year-end, Tufbag was sold for R9 million.

Overview of results

Excluding businesses sold, revenue for the group fell 1% to R15 213 million. Profit before
abnormal items fell 16% to R1 308 million. Net financing costs reduced by 31% to
R104 million as a result of lower interest rates in South Africa and a further reduction in net

borrowings.

Although taxation declined from R522 million to R498 million, the effective tax rate
increased from 34.8% to 38.8%. Headline earnings per share for the year declined 18.4%

to 119.2 cents per share.

The group experienced a number of abnormal items during the year as well as some
effects from changes in accounting standards. The reasons for this and the higher tax rate

are highlighted in the chief financial officer’s review.

Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @

EEE————————— ]



Chairman’s Review, continued

The cash flow from operations improved R228 million to R1 097 million. Net gearing
reduced to11% and the dividend for the full year was maintained at 83.6 cents per share.

Shareholding

The group completed a Rt billion BEE equity transaction which was effective from

30 September 2005. The major portion of this was financed by the group.

A scheme of arrangement was enterad into whereby the group repurchased 10% of the
shares in issue on 31 October 2005 in order to mitigate the dilution effect of the BEE

transaction.

This transaction has resulted in 5% of the shares being held by employees and 5% by a

broad-based BEE consortium.

This deal, whilst complying with the national initiative, will deliver benefits through the better
positioning of the company to optimise domestic revenue. The deal should also help to
motivate the South African workforce and its black management and most importantly the
leadership of the consortium has a very important role to play in guidance at board level,

particularly in the development of our African strategy.

Allan Gray, Remgro and Sanlam remain the group’s largest shareholders, holding aimost

50% of the total shares in issue,

Social responsibility and sustainability

The group allocates 1% of its global after-tax profits to social programmes and in the past
year this amounted to some R9 million, with the largest portion being spant on education

followed by health and welfare and the environment.

Nampak continues to embrace sustainability as a business approach that creates long-

term shareholder value and retained its status in the SRI Index on the JSE.



QOur BEE partners will help grow
domestic revenue and play an
important role in the development
of our African strategy.

Full details of the group’s corporate social investment and sustainabifity programmes are

covered in the Sustainability Report on pages 55 to 65.

Corporate governance

The board comprises 13 directors, four executive directors and nine non-executive

directors. Of the nine non-executive directors, six are regarded as independent.

Strategy

During the year UBS, a global financial institution, was commissioned to assist the group
in evaluating the various strategic options under consideration. This pracess reinforced the
emphasis in the short to medium term on low-cost production, portfolio optimisation,
improvement in return on capital employed, and increased focus on overall improvement in

total shareholder returns.

To support this, it is proposed to align senior executive remuneration to total shareholder
returns and the new scheme will be put to shareholders at the annual general mesting in

January. Details can be found on pages 160 to 165 of this report.

Prospects

For a few years now, the group has been adjusting to the challenging trading conditions in
South Africa and Europe and the reshaping of the portfolio of businesses. Simultaneously,
there has been a major revamp of the information systems particularly in the South African

operations.

The group is now far more focused and a lot leaner. There should be a strong recovery
from the European business and a significant improvement in profitability from the rest of
Alfrica particularly Nigeria. However continuing hyper-inflation and currency depreciation in

Zimbabwe may retard this progress.

In South Africa, a more stable rand, together with the buoyant non-durable consumer

spend being experienced of late, will also contribute to an improvement in profitability.

Overall there should be a good recovery in profitability in 2008.



Overall there should be a good
recovery in profitability in 2006.

Chairman’s Review, continued

Directorate

Mr R P Becker resigned on 31 May 2005. Mr A M Marthinusen retired on 31 July 2005.
Mr B P Connellan resigned on 28 September 2005. Mr T N Jacobs was appointed chief

financial officer of the group with effect from 1 October 2008.

Following the successful BEE transaction, we welcome Mr R J Khoza to the board with
effect from 1 October 2005.

Appreciation

After 17 years on the board of Nampak, Brian Connellan decided 1o retire from the board
at the end of the financial year, We thank Brian for his many years at the nelm of Nampak

and for his enormous contribution.

Andrew Marthinusen decided to retire and we thank him for the role he has played in

Nampak and in the packaging industry.

The past year has again been a difficult one and | thank Jchn Bortolan, his executive team,

management and all employees for so capably facing up to the many challenges.

| thank our non-executive directors for their wise counsel and for the contribution they
make to the various committees and a very special word of thanks to our sharehoiders,

customers and suppliers for their continued support.
/7

o

Trevor Evans

Chairman

23 November 2005



Chief Executive’s Report

John Bortolan: Chisf executive officer

Business environment

e

The business environment in South Africa
over the past few years has been
particularly challenging for Nampak. The
strong rand and its major impact on direct
and indirect exports, weak consumer
spending on non-durable goods and low
inflation environment have made sales
growth extremely difficult. As a
consequence, our main focus has been
on lowering the cost-base, improving
overall efficiencies and restructuring our
businesses to meet the challenges of the
changed environment. We are pleased
that the operating margin has largely been

maintained during this period.

Non-durable spending in South Africa has
shown encouraging growth recently and this trend should contribute positively to the

group’s growth prospects.

Conditions in the rest of Africa have been satisfactory, other than in Zimbabwe wherg
hyper-inflation and substantial currency depreciation have had an impact. The Nigerian

economy grew strongly and we have increased our investment in that country.

Europe has experienced steady, albeit low economic growth. However, global procurement,
g-auctions and customers’ relocating thelr manufacturing operations to lower-cost regions

have increased competitiveness in some sectors of the packaging market.

Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Morongwa Themba:

Morongwa, who holds a BSc Hons in microbiology from the University of the Witwatersrand aiso studied at Reading
University in the United Kingdom towards an MSc in food technology. She is the manager: Scientific Services at Nampak
R & D and her responsibilities include microbiology, food and beverage technology, sheif-life studies and analytical
chemistry. She joined Nampak R & D in 2001 and is a member of the management team.

She is vice-chairman of the Cape Branch of the South Africa Association of Food Science and Technology {SAAFoST) and
a member of the national council.

She recently attended the WHO/FAQ regional conference of food safety for Africa in Harare, Zimbabwe, as an observer on
behalf of SAAFOST and IUFoST (International Union of Food Science and Technology).

In her spare time, Morongwa enjoys collecting wine, the outdoors, reading and spending quality time with her son.




Adjusting to the challenges

In response 1o this environment the restructuring programme intensified in 2005 with the
following being of special note:
Africa

® increased core-business focus with the sale of Peters Papers for R220 million and
Tufoag for R9 million;

& significant cost containment as evidenced by costs in South Africa remaining constant
for three years, despite above-inflation increases in employment and other costs;

® rationalisation of surplus capacity to improve competitiveness;

o further progress in the modernisation of the business systems following 11 successful
ERP implementations with benefits expected from 2006 onwards;

® conclusion of a broad-based BEE transaction which aligns the company to the national
interest and strengthens its business profile;

® streamiined/flattened management structure;

® introduced a reputable European partner into the glass business who will improve
technical know-how; and

® increased our presence in Nigeria through the establishment of a cartons factory.

Europe
® sale of short-run plastics;
® strengthened the plastic milk bottle business through the acquisition of two in-plants;

® closed two folding carton factories in the United Kingdom and rationalised capacity to
improve overall competitiveness;

e completed the equipment upgrade at the Leeds folding carton factory;
® streamlined cartons management structure;
® reduced administration costs;

e converted M.Y. Holdings dsfined benefit pension fund members to a defined
contribution fund; and

® 30ld properties for £45 million,

Where is Nampak now?

As a result of the extensive activity outlined above, Nampak:
® has a lower cost-base;

® is better placed to compete in a strong rand environment;
® has more effective capacity utilisation;

® has stronger BEE credentials; and

Is better structured for sustained growth.

Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Growth and business strategy
The overarching theme of our strategy is to “Protect and Grow” Nampak.

Today, the group exists as a result of extensive organic growth and merger and acquisition
activity that took place over many years. With the challenges of the new business
environment, we recognised the need for greater focus to ensure that the fundamentals for

success are in place.

Protecting Nampak means maintaining our leading positions in the markets we serve by
creating a culture of excellence across all aspects of the business. This includes
performance issues such as on-time delivery, customer care, operational efficiencies,
commitment to quality, improved competitiveness and employment of the latest
technologies. We have a unique depth of core competence built up over time, which is a

competitive strength that will be more effectively aptimised going forward.

Whilst growing Nampak could include acquisitions, our scale and reach supported by our
core competencies ¢an provide growth opportunities in our existing markets. In addition,
innovation, technical strength and sclutions approach, as well as having the most
advanced packaging research and development capability in Africa, provide Nampak with

the ability to capitalise on market share opportunities.

With the major restructuring exercise essentially complete, protecting and growing

Nampak will be our key focus.

In addition to operating performance, we will continue to assess ways of creating further
shareholder value through evaluating our business portfolio, and optimising the balance

shest.



Business model

The group executive committee is primarily responsible for strategy formulation and
allocation of appropriate resources.

We are structured to leverage the strengths of the group where appropriate. Group
functions include information technology, finance, treasury and human resource
developrment. Central procurement is a high-focus area for the South African businesses in
the year ahead and this will develop as our information technology systems expand.

Divisional managing directors develop and own their business strategies. These are
extensively tested by colleagues in management forums. Accountability for divisional
financial and operational performance, manufacturing excellence including global
benchmarking and technology links and customer service, remains integral aspects of the
divisional responsibilities.

Group Executive

1

Africom P Eurocom !
Divisions Divisions '

Africa

Europe

South Africa

South Africa remains our principal region. The key to participating in the expected growth
in non-durable spending is to provide the market with innovative and cost-effective
packaging. A number of packaging categories, which we believe will benefit from the
consumer-led growth in the country, have been identified.

We have a strong innovation capability as evidenced once again by our achievement at the
recent Gold Pack Awards where we won the majority of trophies and gold awards.

Performance and cost leadership remain cormnerstones of our strategy and the additional
restructuring that took place in 2005 has substantially lowered the cost base and provided
better capacity utilisation. A flatter management structure has been introduced facilitating
greater focus on délivering increased performance. The implementation of our modemn
business (ERP) system will be completed in the next 18 months and will enable further
cost savings, leveraging our buying power and improvements to working capital levels
through efficient supply chain management.

@ Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Joel Sibanda:

Joel joined Nampak in February 2005 as manufacturing manager and is currently the operations manager of one of
Nampak Corrugated's biggest manufacturing plants at Pinetown in KwaZuiu-Natal.

Joel's passion for excellence and commitment to world-class manufacturing has resulted in a significant improvement in

efficiencies and a reduction in costs at his operation. He believes in working through people to achieve the high standards
that he sets.

He is enthusiastic, motivated and driven by the challenges of achieving exceptional quality and service for his customers.
He believes that the opportunities exist to position Nampak Corrugated as the leader in the corrugated industry as well as
a significant contributor to Nampak’s business success. )

Joel is married with one child. He has a BSc in mechanical engineering and MAP from the University of the Witwatersrand
and Wits business school respectively.

His hobbies include listening to and playing music, golf and outdoor adventure.

|
£
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Development and retention of talented people is considered critical for success and we
continue with in-house and external programmes to ensure that we have competent and
motivated employees at all levels. Reward systems are also closely aligned with
performance.

We also anticipate a positive contribution from our new BEE partners who are actively
involved in identifying and developing new growth opportunities.

Rest of Africa

Some countries in the rest of Africa are forecast to record strong economic growth in the
medium-term and as the largest packaging company on the African continent, we are well
placed to participate in any increased demand for packaging. Our preferred strategy is to
expand in partnership with our customers, but we will also pursue independent

investments where appropriate.

Our operations in the rest of Africa also achieved excellent results in the Gold Pack Awards
winning eight out of 11 *Out of Africa” awards including the “Star of Africa” award. Hunyani
in Zimbabwe won a “World Star” award, the first time this has been won by an African
country cutside South Africa.

Europe

During the past few years we have grown our position as the leading supplier of plastic
mitk bottles in the United Kingdom and this business continues to generate good profit
and cash.

The folding cartons market in the United Kingdom continues to be affected by
overcapacity, which has resulted in severe competition with consequent impact on selling
prices. The action we have taken to reduce costs, eliminate less-productive capacity and
streamline management structures, has improved our competitive position in an industry
which has undergone substantial restructuring over the past few years. In the short term
we will continue with our performance improvement programme, whilst evaluating

alternative appropriate value-creating opportunities.

The healthcare packaging sector, where volume growth has been good, has recently come
under increased pricing pressure as the pharmaceutical industry consolidates. Our strategy
in the short term is to protect our market share with the major pharmaceutical companies
where we are an accredited supplier and to ensure that our cost levels and structures are

adapted to withstand pressure on margins.
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Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Qutiook

South Africa

The extensive restructuring that has taken place over the past three years has lowered the
cost-base and resulted in leaner, more focused businesses with strong management

structures.

Further cost savings are anticipated through a centrally-driven procurement initiative as well
as ongoing focus on cost leadership and manufacturing excellence. Benefits are also
expected from the modern businass (ERP) system which will be in place in most of the
South African businesses in 2006.

The recent improvement in spending on non-durable goods is expected to continue in the
coming year and, together with a more stable rand, should benefit sales of packaging.

We are expecting a good improvement in operating performance next year, especially from
the paper and flexible packaging businesses which will benefit most from the restructuring.

Rest of Africa

Zimbabwe is expected to continue being affected by hyper-inflation and severe currency
depreciation, which makes results from this country difficult to predict. The Nigerian
cartons operation, which will be in operation for a full year, is budgeted to contribute
significantly to results and we are expecting a much higher performance from this region as

a whole,

Europe

Plastic bottle sales will benefit from the inclusion of the two additional in-plants for a full
year. The general folding cartons business is expected to achieve a major improvement in
profitability following factory closures, proft-improvement programme in the United
Kingdom and further factory automation in the Netherlands.

Although the healthcare sector has performed well in the past, the decline in trading
margins in recent months causes us to be more cautious on prospects for 2006.

Overall trading profit from Europe is expected to be well ahead of last year.




The Group starts 2006 in a much
stronger position to deliver a solid
improvement in headline earnings.

Group

Following the extensive adjustment and business realignment, the group starts 2006 in a

much stronger position to deliver a solid improvement in headline earnings.

Appreciation

| thank management and all our employees for their dedication and commitment in

meeting the challenges of the past few years.

Rob Becker left the group in May after serving as chief financial officer for two and a half
years. | congratulate Tim Jacobs on his promotion to chief financial officer as from
1 October 2005,

Andrew Marthinusen retired as group marketing director after a long and successful career
at Nampak and | thank him for his valuable contribution during 22 years with the group,

15 of which were at board level.

Thank you to all our customers for their support. We will constantly look for opportunities

to enhance value.
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Operational
Review

Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Geographical performance

Rm Revenue Profit from operations* Margin %
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Continuing operations
South Africa 10 900 11 049 1079 1125 9.9 10.2
Rest of Africa 681 886 81 143 11.9 16.1
Europe 3831 3949 138 238 . 36 6.0
Intergroup eliminations (199) 457)
15213 15 427 1298 1506 85 9.8
Discontinued operations
South Africa 370 1135 10 61
Europe 933 (5)
Total 15 583 17 495 1308 1562 8.4 89

*Before abnormal fterns




The strong balance sheet and
encouraging prospects enabled
the dividend to be maintained.
Net gearing improved from 21%
to 11%.

Group

Continuing operation sales decreased by 1% to R15.2 billion reflecting lower volume
growth in South Africa, some lost business in the United Kingdom due to the relocation of

customers and pressure on selling prices.

Operating profit from continuing operations declined by 14% to R1.3 billion due in part to
the minimal growth in sales and to restructuring costs amounting to R150 million. Weaker
performance in some larger divisions also contributed to the decling, and, as a result, the

operating margin fell to 8.5% from 9.8% in 2004.

The Short Run plastics business in Europe, which had been underperforming in a highly
competitive market, was sold for £21 million effective 30 October 2004. This disposal
facilitated the sale of a property in the United Kingdom amounting to £40 million.

Peters Papers, the South African Paper Merchants division, was sold effective 1 March
2005 for R220 million.

Headline earmnings per share declined by 18% to 119.2 cents, but better cash generation,
a strong balance sheet and encouraging prospects enabled the dividend to be held at
83.6 cents per share. The balance sheet strengthened with net gearing improving from
21% to 11%.

South Africa

The South African economy enjoyed good growth in the past year and although demand
for durable and semi-durable goods was buoyant, it was less so for non-durables upon

which much of packaging depends. Low inflation and virtually no increase in the price of
paper-based raw materials restrained selling prices. Substantial restructuring, which cost

R75 million, was undertaken to reduce the cost base and improve capacity utilisation.

Lower sales to agricultural, fishing and confectionery customers, was offset by good
demand for beverage packaging but overall packaging volumes were nevertheless at a

similar level to 2004. The operating margin fell slightly from 10.2% to 9.9%.
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Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Rest of Africa

We operate in nine countries in the rest of Africa producing a range of paper, plastic and
metal packaging products. Trading in Zimbabwe, where we have a number of operations,
was at an acceptable level but results were severely affected by massive currency

depreciation and hyper-inflation,

In response to a ban on imports of packaging by Nigeria and supported by a long-term
supply agresment with a major customer, a new cartons and labels factory was

commissioned in that country in record time.

Good demand was experienced in Kenya, Malawi and Zambia. However, the problems in
Zimbabwe resulted in profit from operations declining and causing a drop in the operating
margin to 11.9% from 16.1% in 2005.

Europe

The rand/sterling exchange rate was relatively constant at an average of R11.83 in 2005
compared to R11.84 in 2004, a decline of 3%.

Further market share was gained in plastic milk bottles following the acquisition of two in-

plant operations serving a major dairy customer.

Trading conditions in the folding cartons sector in the United Kingdom remained highly
competitive and were exacerbated by some customers relocating to other countries.
Restructuring costs of some R75 million were incurred during the year. The operation at

Hoogerheide in the Netherlands continued to perform well.

Market share was gained in the healthcare packaging sector but margins have recently

come under pressure, particularly in the United Kingdom.,

The operating margin fell to 3.6% from 6.0% in 2004.




~

Revenue "Profit from operations®  Operating margin % ‘

Rm 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

U SN

Africa 4521 4603 . 647 560

“Before abnormal items




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Klaus Hass:

Klaus joined Nampak in 1987 and has been involved in many aspects of the business from operations to product
development to sales and marketing. After two years away in Australia he rejoined Nampak as the general manager of
Bevcan's biggest manufacturing faciity at Springs.

He is currently the sales and marketing director of Bevcan, so not only has he made cans he is now also involved in
selling them as well, Klaus's diverse experience adds a unique dynamic to his ability to market and sell beverage cans.

Klaus is married with three children and loves the outdcors.

LUten




Roy Douglas
Managing director: DivFood

John Moyes
Managing director: Bevcan.

In the food can sector, the pelagic fishing season started slowly, but catches improved
towards the latfer part of the year. Demand for fruit and vegetable cans was in line with
last year whilst good growth was achieved in rectangular corned beef cans. Pet-food cans
were affected by the ongoing trend towards pouches and in total, sales volumes of food

cans were slightly down on the previous year.

Selling prices were affected by an increase in tinplate raw material, which, atthough in line

with global pricing, was significantly higher than general consumer price inflation.

Demand was good for aluminium monobloc aerosol cans which benefited both from
consumer spending, and the ongoing substitution of tinplate cans. The manufacturing line
installed in 2004 is well utiised and consideration is being given to expanding capacity.
Despite buoyant paint sales, demand for metal paint cans did not benefit to the same
extent, as much of the increased demand was for paint packaged in plastic containers.

Beverage container closures enjoyed good demand from growth in the carbonated soft
drink and sports drink markets. Sales of closures for baby foods also experienced strong
demand. The manufacture of all plastics closures was centralised at a modern factory in
Durban during the second half of the year and both cost savings and production

efficiencies are expected in the coming year.
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A This exquisite decorative tin
enables the brand to create a

lasting impressicn upon
consumers and demonstrates
outstanding print quality, making
it an ideal gifting occasion
purchase.

A premium look and

feel label at an

affordable cost to suit

the challenges of the
export market B

Chief Executive’s Report, continued

4 A classy attractive
deodorant can with a
rounded fid which
creates a competitive
edge against imports in
the Zimbabwean
market.

The metals businesses in the rest of Africa produce a range of food, non-beverage cans
and crown closures. Volumes in Kenya were particularly buoyant following good demand
for fruit cans. The operations in Zimbabwe were affected by raw material shortages as a
result of lack of foreign currency in the country. Demand in Nigeria was below expectations

whilst in Zambia sales of crown closures improved on last year.

The glass-bottle business recovered from a difficult 2004 and achieved better
manufacturing efficiencies, albeit not yet at acceptable levels. Wiegand-Glas, a German
glass packaging company acquired a 50% share in the business in October 2005 and
have introduced important technical skills. A major equipment upgrade will be undertaken
in 2006, which is planned to bring the factory to warld-class levels. This, together with
continuing good demand for wine and beer bottles, is expected to contribute to an

improvement in manufacturing performance in the year ahead.




Group Group
revenue - operating
profit

Paper [@
Group 7

Revenue ‘Profit from operations* Operating margin %

Rm 2005 2004 2005 2004 - 2005 2004

Affca | 4745 | 5473 | g9 371 6.1 58 |
Euope | 2585 2815 ; 63 ; 24 38

Total . 7330

8288 ' 3852 : 4.8 58

.

“Before abnormal items

Africa  Profits from this segment were lower due mainly to reduced con butions from the
corrugated container, cartons and labels and toilet tissue businesses.

A reduction in demand from the agricultural sector, due to drought in the western Cape,
increased overcapacity in the corrugated container industry. This, together with lower :
exports resuited in-increased competition-for commercial business and severe pressure on
selling prices.

We restructured our operations and streamlined management which has lowered the cost
base. Over R100 million was invested intwo 7-colour printing presses which has enabled
us to offer products in the primary, secondary and shelf-ready packaging markets. We also
invested in handling equipment to improve production flows.

The sheet-plants Previously under the control of




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Tendai Gwekerere:

Tendal is the general manager of the recently launched packaging retail outlet at Hunyani in Zimbabwe. She has been
with the Hunyani group for 15 years and has held varlous management positions.

Her enthusiasm recently resulted in Hunyani winning the first ever WorldStar award given to an African country outside
South Africa, as well as five Gold Pack Awards.

Tendal was recently appointed the first black female director of Hunyani Paper and Packaging.

She enjoys travelling, reading, listening to music and spending time with her family. She is also a keen sportswoman
with running and playing golf among her activities.

Gold,Pack
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Charles Bromley
Africa director responsible for
non-packaging businesses

Mark Collett
Managing director: Nampak Cartons
Europe

P A
Rob Morris
Managing director: Nampak Cartons
and Labels

Malcolm Ward
Managing director: M.Y. Healthcare

Willie Wiese
Managing director. Nampak
Corrugated

Although the tobacco crop in Zimbabwe continued to decline and resulted in lower sales
of corrugated containers, Hunyani nevertheless performed well under the circumstances.
Sales of tobacco boxes in Malawi improved and had a posttive effect on the operating
performance of our business in that country. '

Redibox, which supplies smaller quantities of packaging direct to the public and other
customers, was affected by the reduced demand from the agriculture and wine sectors
and also faced increased competition which depressed margins.

Demand for cartons and labels was down primarily as a result of reduced direct and
indirect exports and lower off-take from customers affected by imports of confectionery.
This resulted in some overcapacity that put prassure on selling prices.

Good growth was achieved in detergent cartons, bag-in-the-box containers and labels,
whilst tobacco packaging suffered from reduced exports and lower demand. Business was

also lost to the South African operation as a result of the transfer of volumes to Nigeria.

The cartons factory at Jacobs, Durban, was closed and consolidated with the Pinetown
operation whilst the factory at Observatory in Cape Town is being closed and the
production allocated to the Epping factory, Cape Town. These raticnalisations will improve
overall capacity utilisation in their respective regions. The new investments in gravure
printing were successfully commissioned in the year,

The cartons operation in Nigeria, which was established in a temporary facility in record
time performed well and will be relocated to a permanent building in 2006. Approval has
been given to expanding this operation to cope with the increasing demand.

Paper sacks benefited from strong cement sales as a resuit of increased activity in the
construction industry, as well as good sales to the agricultural market. Sales of charcoal
and sugar bags and sacks were adversely affected by the strong rand and drought.
Operating efficiencies improved and raw material costs were reduced resulting in a

substantially better performance.
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This pack has been designed with
consumer convenience in mind, as it s
specially agdapted to be able to fit neatly
into the glove compartment of your car.
Tissues can be dispensed both

vertically and horizontally. »
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A The on-the-go-snack food

market is extemely competitive
and Bokomo required an
innovative, tantalising and eve-
catching pack to encourage
the impulse purchasing of its
latest introduction to this
market. The solution was

a stylishly shaped carton.

Chief Executive’'s Report, continued

L € The new Jungle Oats
carton incorporates an

innovative, easy open,
recloseable feature,
which affords consumers
with much desired
convenience and serves
to differentiate the brand,
while upgrading its image
in the market.

Demand for cores and tubes was again lower as a result of the depressed local textile
industry which suffered from lower-priced imports. Reduced off-take by the paper industry
also affected sales volumes.

Interpak Books, which prints educational material and diaries, had a good year although
volumes were affected by late receipt of some orders.

Sales volumes of 2-ply tollet tissue and diapers were well ahaad of last year. Although there
was strong demand for 1-ply toilet tissue we did not benefit fully dug to intense price-
based competition. The 1-ply market was also characterised by a number of smaller
competitors who do not comply with minimum standards.

During the year the tissue-converting operation in Mobeni, Durban was closed and wil
result in substantial cost savings in the year ahead. A number of products will be
relaunched and, together with further innovation and market demand, an improvement in
performance is expected.

Europe

The folding carton market in the United Kingdom remained highly competitive,
characterised by pressure on selling prices from major retailers and loss of business as a
result of the relocation of some customers out of the United Kingdom.

In response, two factories were closed, one in Leicester and the other in Leeds, and the
major equipment upgrade at the Cockburn Fields, Leeds factory was completed.
Restructuring costs of some R75 million were incurred and this, together with the difficult
trading conditions, resulted in a substantial loss being recorded for the year.

On the Continent, branded preducts are facing increased competition from private labels
and this is exerting pressure on packaging margins. The operations in Belgium and the
Netherlands nevertheless performed well following further cost reduction and productivity
improvements,

Whilst the global pharmaceutical market continued to grow, volumes in Europe remained
relatively flat. Our market share of healthcare packaging increased but the highly
competitive environment resulted in a squeeze on margins. Technology and manufacturing
efficiency improvements are being made to enhance our competitiveness.




Plastics

Group 4,
operating
profi
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Revenue Profit from operations"‘ Operating margin %

Rm ' 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Affica * 2685 2678 199 255 . 7.4 9.5
Europe : 1074 1849 73 83 | 6.8 4.5
Total 3759 4527 | 272 338 ¢ 7.2 75

*Before abnormal iterms

conditions in flexible packaging markets.

Buoyant demand in South Africa for both carbonated soft drinks and juices resulted in
Substantial growth of PET bottles

ales volumes of high density plastic bottles for mitk and juice exceeded those of last ear,
but rising polymer prices are making this form of packaging less competitive than liquid
board cartons resuiting in some substitution taking place.

For the first time in many years, the sorghum beer market in South Africa showed growth

and together with increased demand from juice customers a greater number of liquid

board cartons were sold. In Zambia, sales of both liouid cartons and plastic bottles

experienced good growth.




Chief Executive’s Report, continued

Rini Bruys:
Rini (left) is the technical training coordinator at Nampak Cartons Europe’s biggest factory at Hoogerheide in
the Netherlands.

He has been extensively involved in the commissioning of four new high-speed robots and the relocation of eight gluing
lines. Rini wrote working instructions for the robots, various machinery and the waste reduction programme. The
procedures put in place by him resulted in considerable waste savings, which centributed to significant cost savings.

Rini enjoys gardening and doing odd jobs around the house when he is not busy helping improve productivity at the
factory.
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Philip de Weerdt
Africa director responsible
for Rigid Plastics

Robin Moore
Africa director responsible
for Flexibles

Tom Reid
Managing director:
Nampak Plastics Europe

Demand for toothpaste tubes was affected by the importation of filled product, whilst good
growth was achieved in tubs used for margarine, yoghurt, ice cream and chicken fivers,

The strong demand for beverages also led to higher sales of plastic crates. Large plastic
drum sales were better than last year, but margins came under prassure from the stronger
rand. Increased sales are anticipated in the year ahead following the conversion of some
lubricant oil from steel to plastic packaging as well as the continuing general substitution of
steel drums. Plastic pails and buckets for paint experienced satisfactory growth.

The Zimbabwean plastics business performed well in difficult circumstances, but suffered
from shortages of raw material due to the lack of foreign currency.

The investment in new technology for the production of difierent bag formats was well
utilised with the sales of bread bags and boutique bags showing good growth. Shopping
pags sales were severely affected by low-priced imports and consequently we are
downsizing the remaining factory which manufactures these bags. The fims market

remained highly competitive.

Higher-value flexible packaging sales were affected by imports of packaging and consumer
goods, which reduced the demand from local customers. Exports were also lower as a
result of the strong rand and punitive import duties in Nigeria, The business has been
restructured to utilise capacity more efficiently and the ERP system, which was
successfully implemented during the course of the year, will assist in this objective. An
improvement in performance is expected in the year ahead.

The aluminium foil business, which produces a range of confectionery and cable wrap
continued to enjoy good growth and secured additional export business. Sales of roofing
insulation remained strong, fuelled by the construction activity in South Africa and
equipment to produce a high-temperature resistant product is on order. Demand for
wrapping paper was lower due 1o a greater proportion of imported paper reels.

Tufbag was sold effective 1 November 2005.
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This upgraded packaging for stick fce-

creams has resulted in an extended
shelf life as well as a more striking
image for the product, with much
improved point-of-sale impact on g
the Zimbabwean market, B

& A first in the South African wine
industry is this self-standing
promotional carry pack with handfe.

The pack’s unique size and re-sealable

zipper allows it to be easily converted
into a portable and disposable
ice bucket.

Chief Executive’s Report, continued

& These are the first squeezable, inverted, PET
multi-layer bottles to be commercially produced
in South Africa for tomato sauce.

Europe

The plastic industrial containers business, which had been underperforming in a highly

competitive market, was sold for £21 miliion, effective 30 October 2004,

The past year saw a number of structural changes which strengthened our position
as the leading supplier of plastic milk bottles to the United Kingdom dairy market.
The Littleborough factory was closed and the capacity relocated to the operations at
Newport Pagnell and Consett.

Two in-plant operations with long-term supply contracts were acquired from a competitor,
thereby enhancing the geographical footprint across the United Kingdom and broadening

the customer base.

Productivity gains were offset by a lag in recovering high polymer prices caused by the
increase in the ol price. Consolidation of the dairy industry and retail sector in the United
Kingdom is likely to continue and we expect a continuation of the good performance
next year,
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Stuart Goode
Director: Europe

Mark Kathan
Finance director: Africa

Group services
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Armindo Morais Group services include head office activities, procurement, insurance, some centralised
Chief information officer information technology costs, marketing, research and development, treasury and property
rentals.
Africa
The decline in profits is due to an increase in the amortisation of the ERP system and the
: . inclusion in 2004 of a refund in respect of the Malbak disability fund.
Neill O’Brien
Company secretary
and group legal adviser Europe
Profits declined following a restructure in cartons resulting in its corporate costs being
reallocated.
Leon Taviansky
Finance director: Europe <
John Bortolan
Chief executive officer
23 Novernber 2005
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Human resource director: Africa



Chief Financial Officer’s Review

Tim Jacobs: Chief financial officer

Foreword

Despite difficult trading conditions, a number of
initiatives were completed during the year that
enhanced the group’s financial position and built on

its sound corporate governance platform.

This review comments on some of these initiatives
and provides further clarity on key policies,
judgements, financial risk management and economic
indicators adopted by the group. It also comments on
the financial position and performance of the group for
the year.

Accounting policies and practices

The consalidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice. The principal accounting policies have

been applied consistently with the previous year,
except for the changes set cut below,

Change in accounting policy ~ As highlighted in our previous annual report, IFRS3 -
Business Combinations was issued and adopted in the 2004 financial year. Part of this
standard was only effective 1 October 2004 and has accordingly been shown as a change
in accounting policy during the current financlal year. In terms of this standard, the
accounting for previously recognised goodwill has changed; accumulated goodwill
amortisation of R149 million has been set off against the cost; goodwill is no longer
amortised and the carrying amount is tested annually for impairment. Goodwill is now
allocated to a divisional level (cash-generating unit) to test for impairment while previousty
this was done on an acquisition basis. Taking into account the difficult trading conditions
in the UK, we have impaired goodwill attrioutable to our Cartons UK division by




R112 million and Healthcare by R11 million. The allocation of goodwill by segment is
shown below:

P e e e [

Impairment

Goodwill Carrying value

Rm | Rm . Rm
Metals and glass | s ; |
Afica ' 1448 - 144.8
Paper ! : |
Affca | | 28 | - 426
Europe -+ 5352 i 1203 ¢ 4149
Plastics
Africa 109.8 ‘ - 109.8
Total | 8324 1203 7124

Negative goodwill of R68.0 million has been derecognised and taken directly to
accumulated profits.

The group has efected to early adopt 1AS21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
rates. This standard requires that goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate. Previously goodwill was translated at the exchange rate
ruling on the date of acquisition. In terms of the standard this change has been applied
prospectively resulting in a R150.4 million decrease to goodwill and a decrease in the
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve in the balance sheet.

Change in estimate

Following a detailed review of the estimation process and availability of new information
during the year, coupled with changes in the underlying financial systems in a number of
divisions, the basis of estimating net realisable value of inventory was revised. This had the
effect of increasing the carrying value of inventories by R59.7 million and deferred tax by
R17.3 million. The net effect on the income statement was income of R42.4 miliion.

This has been shown under abnormal items. While a review of the basis of estimating
recoverability of debtors resulted in a change in methodology, the net effect of the change
was immaterial.

Judgements and key assumptions

Property, plant and equipment, investments, goodwill and intangible assets are considered
annually for impairment. The primary methodclogy used to determine value in use is
discounted cash flow.
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The conversion to IFRS is well
on track.

Chief Financial Officer’'s Review, continued

Where appropriate, an asset’s selling price, or market price in the case of listed
investments, is also considered. The discount rate used Is the long-term weighted average
cost of capital applicable to the underlying divisions. Discounted cash flow calculations
take into account market conditions and geographic location of underlying businesses.

The calculation of employee benefit obligations under defined benefit funds requires
management to make assumptions regarding discount rates, consumer price inflation,
expected return on fund assets, rate of compensation increase and pension increases.
These assumptions are adopted after consultation with the group’s actuaries. The periods
covered by these assumptions are long-term in nature and future results may differ from
these estimates.

The group applies hyper-infiation accounting to the results of its Zimbabwe-based
operations. In translating these results to rands, two exchange rates are available in the
market: those available on the paraliel market and those available on the official auction
system. During the year a shortage of foreign currency resulted in a relaxation of the rules
imposed by the Zimbabwe Reserve Bank requiring all foreign exchange to be obtained
through the auction system. As the operations transacted in the parallel market, the
translation of Zimbabwe dollar-denominated results have been done at the closing rate per
this market and not those of the auction system as was done in the prior year.

IFRS conversion

In terms of the JSE Listing Requirements full compliance with: International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) is required for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2005. Accordingly, Nampak is required to produce full IFRS-compliant financial statements,
including restated comparative information and an opening balance sheet for the year
ended 30 September 2005. To this end the group initiated an IFRS conversion project in
June 2004, employing the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers as financial reporting
advisor 1o the project.

The group is in the final stage of phase 2 of the project that concludes with the initial
conversion to IFRS. Al divisions have completed their opening balance shest adjustments




and have restated their 2005 results. These adjustments are currently being audited. The
group’s consolidated resuits under IFRS for the opening balance sheet and comparative
income statement are expected to be complete by the end of the calendar year.

The conversion process is well on track to deliver on the required deadlines.

Economic indicators

The principal economic indicators applied in the preparation of the group results are
shown below.

2005 2004
Exchange rates
Rand/UK pounds - average 11.53 11.84
- closing 11.21 11.64
Rand/euro - average 7.93 8.04
- closing 7.64 7.99
Rand/US dollar - average 6.24 6.61
- closing 6.35 6.44
Infiation rates
South Africa (CPIX) 4.7% 3.7%
Continental Europe (CPJ) 1.8% 1.9%
United Kingdom 2.0% 1.1%
Zimbabwe (hyper-inflation) 360% 371%
Weighted average interest rates
Rands - out of funds 7.4% 8.7%
~in funds 7.0% 7.7%
UK pounds - out of funds 1% 5.2%
- in funds 4.5% 3.8%
Euros - out of funds 4.4% 3.0%
- in funds 1.8% 2.4%
US dollars - out of funds 3.5% -
—in funds 2.9% 1.1%

Financial market risk management
Exchange rates

The sustained strength of the rand over the past two years has had a significant impact on
both the translation of offshore earnings and the import/export component of the business.
Itis the group’s view that the rand will continue to weaken over the long-term against
major currencies, albeit at a slower rate than has been seen in the past. To protect the
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Chief Financial Officer’'s Review, continued

group’s cash flows from the effects of a weakening currenay, it is policy to cover all net
foreign currency-dencmineted transactions by way of derivative instruments, in particular
forward exchange contracts. This extends to imports of inventary, spare parts and capital
expenditure items, as well as certain exports of finished goods.

Interest rates

The financing of the group is structured using a combination of fixed and variable rate
debt. From time to time the group will consider fixing o capping Interest rates on specific
borrowings, as well as entering into derivative instruments to manage certain interest

rate risks.

Commodity prices

The group is exposed 10 price fluctuations in four major commedities used in the process
of manufacture: aluminium, tinplate, pulp and paper and plastics. Exposure to fluctuations
in the price of aluminium is managed through hedging strategies using futures contracts.
There is presently a low correlation between the actively traded contracts on the relevant
Exchanges and the required grades of paper, board and plastic used by the group.
Accordingly, the group does not hedge its exposures to price movements in these

commaodities. The group does not hedge tinplate purchases.

Liquidity

The group actively manages its liquidity risk through its treasury operations in South Africa
and Europe. The treasury operations ensure that the group has sufficient general banking
facilities in place with financial institutions to ensure that funds are avaiable when required.
Facilities are reviewed annually with sufficient capacity maintained to meet expected future

funding requirements. The group alsc has a commercial papsr programme in place that

can be implemented to alleviate any possible liquidity squeeze.




Review of results

Income statement

Revenue contracted R1 912 million to R15 583 million for the year while operating profit of
R1 356 miflion reduced by R277 million. An evaluation of the source of change for 2005 is
presented below.

Profit from

Turnover operations
Rm % Rm %
Disposed operations' (1 697) 10 (81) (5
Transtation? (1092) 6) (276) (17)
Hyper-inflation 664 (1) 217 -
South Africa continuing operations 78 1 (70) {4)
Rest of Africa constant currency 152 5 9 13
Europe constant currency (17 - (58) G
Decrease {1912 () (277) {17

‘Includes Peters Papers, Short Run Plastics UK and loss on sale of business of R20 million.
2included in revenue and trading income is R968 million and R272 million respectively relating to

Zimbabwe.
Net abnormal gains of R48.2 million for the year were realised (2004: R70.5 million).
This included:

® 2 R428.2 million profit on disposal of land and buildings, mainly from the disposal of the
Woburn Sands property in the UK following the sale of the Short Run plastics business;

e 3 R59.7 million release of provision following a change in basis of estimation relating to
net realisable value of inventory;

® 3 gain of R70.6 million on converting pension fund members from defined bengfit to
defined contribution schemes in the UK;

® retrenchment costs of R104.9 million, R54.9 million from South African divisions and
R50.0 million from Europe as cost structures are realigned to take into account market
pressures;

® restructuring costs of R45.1 milion. R23.1 million of this cost was incurred by the
Cartons UK businesses in Europe with the balance incurred by the paper and plastics
businesses in South Africa;

o impairment of goodwill of R123.4 million and plant and equipment amounting 1o
R28.9 million; and

@ 2 foss on employee benefits of R173.9 million following the disposal of the Short Run
plastics business in the UK.
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Interest cover improved from
11 to 13 times, leaving

the group significant scope to
gear up its balance sheet.

Chief Financial Officer’s Review, continued

The effect of fair valuing financial instruments, together with FEC costs on plant and
equipment has had a significant impact on profit from operations. The movement from

2004 to 2005 Is a decline in operating profit of R60.5 million or 6.7 cents per

share after tax.

2005 2004
Rm Rm Movement
AC133 fair value (loss)/gain (9.8 709 (80.7)
FEC costs on plant and eguipment 0.7 (20.9) 20.2
Total (10.5) 50.0 {60.5)

Net finance costs decreased 30% to R103.6 million as a resuit of lower local interest rates,
annualised effect of the receipt of the proceeds from the disposal of NamlTech, receipt of
the proceeds on the disposal of Peters Papers, Short Run plastics and properties (mainly
in the UK). Interest cover improved from 11 to 13 times, leaving the group significant
scope fo gear up its balance sheet. Interest cover based on continuing operations has

improved from 9 to 13 times. An analysis of net finance costs by geography is shown in

the table below,

2005 2004 %

South Africa Bm 62.3 83.3 25
Europe and Rest of Africa Rm 41.3 65.7 37
Total Bm 103.6 149.0 30
Net foreign-denominated
finance costs:

UK pounds £m 2.1 3.8

Euros £€m 1.3 0.5

US dollars $m 0.1 -




Gross gearing improved from
36% to 23% and net gearing
from 21% to 11%.

Taxation declined from R521.7 million to R498.4 million, while the effective tax rate
increased from 34.8% to 38.8%. Impacting the effective tax rate is the impairment loss on
goodwill that does not qualify as a tax deduction against income, a higher effective
secondary tax on companies (STC) rate as dividends were held constant while profits fell
and the inclusion of prior year tax charges.

Headline earnings per share declined 18.4% from 146.1 cents to 119.2 cents. Headline
earnings were arrived at after adjusting for impairment charges, pension fund curtailment
on disposal of the Short Run plastics business, due diligence expenses and profit on
disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Balance sheet

Net worth per ordinary share decreased from 839 cents to 816 cents primarily as a result
of the impairment of goodwill, together with the effects of the change in accounting policy
relating to goodwill and negative goodwill.

During the year the group embarked on a general share buy-back programme, acquiring
9 475 425 shares for R152 million, or 1.48% of the shares in issue prior to the Black
Economic Empowerment (BEE) transaction. These shares have been cancelled and
restored as authorised share capital.

Effective 30 September 2005, the group concluded its BEE transaction that is commented
on more fully in the Directors' Report on page 92 of the annual financial statements. Due
to the group not yet having adopted IFRS and that the effective date was the last day of
the financial year, the financial effect of the transaction in the current year is negligible.

The continued focus on gearing, coupled with the proceeds from the sale of non-core
busingsses, the Short Run plastics business and certain surplus land and buildings, saw

a further improvement in gross gearing from 36% to 23%, while net gearing improved from
21% to 11%. The group’s gearing position aver the past five years is shown in the table
below.

( h
) 100 97%
Gearing
%) & 71%
80 55%
44%] 42%
40 33% 36%
26%) 26% 219 23%
20 1%
Net gearing O 0
Gross gearing & 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
N J
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Chief Financial Officer’'s Review, continued

The composition of the group’s net borrowing position is:

2005 2004 %
South Africa R'm 106.9 528.2 (79.8)
Borrowings R'm 567.0 742.0
Cash R'm (460.1) (213.8)
Europe and Rest of Africa R'm 471.1 616.7 (23.6)
Borrowings R'm 643.7 11024
Cash R'm {172.6) (485.7)
Net borrowings R'm 578.0 11448 (49.5)
Net foreign-denominated
borrowings/(cash):
UK pounds £m 40.6 62.4
Euros €m (5.2 (10.0)
US dollars $m (0.3) (0.3)

During the year Globa! Credit Rating Co. upgraded the group’s credit rating for domestic
debt in Nampak Limited, and confirmed the credit rating for domestic debt in Nampak

Products Limited, the main South African trading subsidiary:

Short-term commercial paper {guaranteed by Nampak Limited)

Short-term unsecured

Long-term unsecured

2004

Al
A2
A

Strong cash flows in Europe during the year allowed the outstanding balance on the
consortium loan to be reduced from £30 million to £49 million, In addition, the terms on
this loan were renegotiated allowing the group to realise the benefit of cheaper funding




Cash generated from operations
remained strong at R2 billion.

available in Europe. These benefits are expected to be fully realised in the 2006 financial
year. The loan covenant positions, based on fixed UK GAAP, at year-end were as follows:

Achieved Target
EBITDA to net interest payable 57:1 >4
Net borrowings to EBITDA 2.26 ;1 <3:1

Capital expenditure decreased from R1 065.7 million in 2004 to R733.7 million, while
spend on intangible assets increased from R49.6 million to R100.1 million as the roliout of
the South African ERP system gathered momentum. During the year a further 11 sites
went live bringing the total sites on the new system to 13. A breakdown of expenditure on
capital projects and intangibles by geography is shown below.

Replacement Expansion Total

Rm Rm Rm

South Africa 189.3 440.1 609.4
Rest of Africa 21.6 27.4 490
Europe 156.9 18.5 1754
Total 347.8 486.0 833.8

Cash flow

Cash generated from operations remained strong at R2 013.4 million. Cash flow from
operations improved R228.0 million to R1 096.8 million, mainly as a consequence of &
reduction in taxation payments of R220.8 million, although both interest and replacement
capex were lower by R52.5 million and R46.6 milfion respectively. Dividends paid increased
by 12.3% to R536.1 million.

Investing activities include a decline in expansion capex by R215.3 millon to

R385.9 million. The proceeds on disposal of Peters Papers and Short Run plastics totalied
R401.6 million. Following the disposal of the Short Run plastics business and other
restructuring during the year, a number of properties became surplus to requirements.
Proceeds on disposal of these properties totalled R334.7 million. Two further instalments
of £10 million each are due in January 2006 and 2007 respectively.

Financing activities included the net repayment of interest-bearing debt of R188.4 million
and R152.0 milion spent on the general share buy-back.
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Chief Financial Officer’s Review, continued

Financial objectives

The group has set a number of financial objectives that it measures itself against. These
objectives were set in 2003 and, whilst considered aspirational, they serve as a target to
strive towards.

Objective Achieved Target
Return before interest and taxation on average 14% 21%
total assets

After-tax return on equity 15% 23%

Performance against target for the years 2001 through 2005 is shown below. The blue line
represents the targeted performance levels calculated in 2003 but have been used as a
benchmark for each of the years under review.

25
Return on total assets 21%
9 20
(%) 17% 16% 16%
15 13% 14%
11%
10
|
5 l
ROTA o L
Targst = 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005

e
\_

4 )
: 25 = 23%
Return on equity J
<% ) 20 1% _ 19%

5 15% 15%
10
5

ROED] 0 S
Target = 2000 2001 2003 2004 2005

]
\ Y,
During the current year the board has considered it appropriate to hold the dividend at the

same value as that paid in the previous year, notwithstanding that the cover drops due to
the decline in earnings over last year.




Scheme of arrangement
sanctioned by the court.

Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

In January 2005 Nampak Plastics Europe acquired the assets relating to two in-plants at
Trafford Park and Belishill in the United Kingdom from Tetrapak for R80 miifion.

Disposals

Effective 30 October 2004 the group disposed of its Short Run plastics business in the
United Kingdom. No results have been included in the group figures for the year.

Effective 1 March 2005 the group disposed of its Paper Merchanting division, Peters
Papers, as a going concern. Peters Papers’ results were included until the effective date.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities decreased from R62.5 million to R22.9 million. The significant items
are commented on below.

in September 2002, Diehl France, a member of the Diehl group acquired in 2004, lost a
legal case brought by Rotanotice in France, who claimed a patent infringement relating to
the method and installation for manufacturing certain printed documents. Diehl's appeal
was not successful. Rotanctice has submitted a claim totalling €4.3 million that is subject
to review by a court-appointed expert. The expert’s repart is not vet finalised. On
acquisition of the Diehl group this matter was specifically addressed in the purchase
agreement and an amount of €2.0 million is held in escrow pending the outcome of the
action. Nampak is exposed to any judgement in excess of this amount.

A complaint was lodged against Nampak Glass and Consol (Pty) Limited with the
Competition Commission for alleged collusion in respect of the acquisition of cullet for
glass container manufacturing. Following its investigation, the Competition Commission
has referred the complaint to the Competition Tribunal for hearing.

Subsequent events

Effective 1 October 2005 the group concluded a transaction to dispose of 50% of
Nampak Glass to Wiegand-Glas for €18 million. Wiegand-Glas has been a technology
partner of Nampak for a number of vears and the deal will see Wiegand-Glas taking
production control of the glass business.

The group sold its Tufbag business on 1 November 2005 for RS million.

Following the announcement of the group’s black economic empowerment (BEE) deal in
September, the court has given its sanction to the scheme of arrangement that will see the
group buy back 10% of the shares in issue, excluding the parties to the BEE transaction, at
a price of R15.13 per share. The effective date of the scheme is 31 October 2005.

¢

(

Tim Jacobs

Chief financial officer
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Suppiementary Information
for the year ended 30 September 2005

S1 SIX-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW
GROUP FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES
Return

TJo achieve a return before interest and taxation of at least 21% p.a. on average total assets, an after-tax return on equity of at least 23% and
for investment decisions to exceed the weighted average cost of capital of 15.3%.

Earnings
To achieve a growth in earnings per share of not less than the annual inflation rate plus the economic growth rate (gross domestic product).

Asset management
To manage the investment in inventories and receivables to its commercially lowest leval.

Cash flow

To generate sufficient cash flow after absorbing increases in working capital, financing charges, taxes and dividends, to fund capital
expenditure for replacement of fixed assets.

DEFINITIONS AND METHODOLOGY

Return

Operating profit plus income from investments.

EBITDA
Eamnings before interest, investment income, share of associates, tax, depraciation and amortisation.

Total liabilities
The aggregate of long-term and current liabilities (deferred tax is excluded).

Shareholders’ funds
The aggregate of ordinary, preference and outside shareholders’ interest.

Total borrowings
All interest-bearing debt.

Cash dividends per ordinary share
Prior year final dividend plus current year interim dividend per ordinary share.

Employee numbers used for calculations
Total number of employees time weighted for acquisitions and disposals and adjusted for the group’s share of jaint ventures.

Productivity per employee
Volume growth over growth in number of employees.

Deflated statistics
Historical statistics adjusted to 2000 money terms using the consumer price index.

Ordinary shares in issue
Total shares in issue after adjustment for treasury shares.

«



2005

S1 SIX-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW
STATISTICS
Earnings and dividends data
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue "000 638 262 640 958 640 444 531237 509 361 509 050
Headline earnings per ordinary share cents 119.2 1461 145.4 140.9 87.6 1211
- Change over previous year % (18) 1 3 81 (28) 3
- Five-year compound annual growth rate % 6 4 8 7 (2 8
Earnings per ordinary share cents 122.4 150.8 1411 123.7 82.3 121.7
- Change over previous year % (19) 7 14 50 32) 3
- Five-year compound annual growth rate % 8 5 7 4 3 8
Cash dividends per ordinary share” cents 83.6 741 63.5 55.1 533 53.3
~ Change over previous year % 13 17 15 3 0 5
- Five-year compound annual growth rate % 9 8 8 6 6 9
Dividend cover times 1.5 2.0 2.2 2.2 1.5 2.3
“Dividend cover from 2005 to 2007 has been
calculated on a cash basis. Prior years have
not been restated.
FINANCIAL DATA
Return on equity % 15 19 19 18 15 25
Return on total assets % 14 16 16 13 11 17
Total asset turn times 1.5 1.7 1.6 15 1.7 1.8
Liabllities: shareholders’ fund 1 0.97 1.01 1.25 2.18 1.68 1.61
Cross gearing A 0.23 0.38 0.42 097 0.71 0.55
Interest cover times 13 11 7 9 10 19
Effective rate of tax % 38.8 34.8 38.1 33.9 28.5 24.4
Number of ordinary shares in issue ‘000 641 888 641 574 640 571 640 178 509 406 509 350
Net asset value per ordinary share cents 816 839 758 748 516 478
~ Change over previous year % (3) il 1 45 8 19
Cash flow R million
- Cash generated from operations 2013.2 2130.2 2 006.9 1766.5 1067.8 11185
- Cash inflow from operating activities 560.8 391.6 906.1 940.5 4171 628.3
- Additions to property, plant and equipment (733.7) {995.6) (884.4) (784.4) (390.8) (413.6)
- Net increase/(decrease) in cash 422.9 (48.0) 17.9 (378.4) (208.9) (32.3)
EBITDA R million 2 057.1 24335 25192 17288 1169.0 1307.8
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Supplementary information, continued
for the year ended 30 September 2005

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
S1 SIX-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

EMPLOYEE DATA
Total permanent employees 17 231 19 122 19 697 15 401 13 376 14 765
Employee numbers used for calculations 15 940 17 869 18 392 14 096 13378 14 765
Revenue per employee R'000 978 979 988 g7t 783 652
Employment cost per employee R'000 200 202 198 192 164 136
Productivity per employee Index 95 85 83 108 109 100
iINFLATION-ADJUSTED INFORMATION
CPIindex (base 2000 = 100) 127.5 123.8 122.1 115.4 105.7 100
Deflation factor (base 2000 = 100) 784 80.8 81.9 88.7 94.6 100
Headline earnings per share {cents)
- Historical 119.2 146.1 145.4 140.9 87.6 121.1
- Deflated 93.5 118.0 1191 1221 82.9 1211
Cash dividends per share (cents)
- Historical 83.6 74.1 63.5 551 533 53.3
- Deflated 65.6 59.9 52.0 477 50.4 53.3
Total assets (Rm)
- Historical 10436.2 110785 111096  13319.6 73449 69250
- Deflated 8185.3 83487 90988 115421 6 948.8 63925.0
OPERATING RESULTS R million
Revenue 15 583.1 17 4946 181740 136847 104743 3632.8
Profit from operations 1 355.8 16832.6 1737.1 11883 695.0 922.6
Margin to revenue % 8.7 93 9.6 8.5 8.6 9.6
Profit before tax 1 283.6 1489.2 14899 1038.0 626.5 882.3
Profit after tax 785.2 977.5 923.0 685.8 460.3 667.3
Net profit for the year 7811 967.1 903.5 6571 419.3 619.7
BALANCE SHEETS R million
Total shareholders’ funds 5265.0 54159 49478 4886.0 28675 2 658.0
Long-term retirement benefit (net) 252.3 161.9 147.8 105.7 (130.0) -
Deferred tax and other non-current liabilities 531.6 433.6 3701 4085 3304 3791
Long-term interest-bearing debt 929.7 10915 1289.0 18781 13654 13089
Current fiabilities 3457.6 397586 43549 6039.3 249028 25730
Total equity and liabilities 10436.2 110785 111096 133196 7 344.8 §925.0
Property, plant and equipment 3941.1 42281 4 255.7 5075.8 3045.8 33409
Intangibles 1059.9 12404 10923 1145.8 {29.2) {101.6)
Investments and deferred tax 175.7 55.0 117.6 187.4 135.5 111.6
Current assets 5259.5 55550 5644.0 69106 41928 3 574.1
Total assets 10436.2 110785 111096 133196 7344.9 6 925.0




2005

S2 SHARE PERFORMANCE
Market price per share

- Highest cents 1655 1500 1570 1480 1340 2Q75
- Lowest cents 1385 1230 1100 1015 980 1180
- Year-end cents 1589 1410 1230 1340 1075 1330
Net asset value per share cents 816 839 758 748 550 501
Number of ordinary shares in issue™ 000 668 314 641 574 640 571 640178 509 408 508 350
Market capitalisation® R million 10 635 9 046 7879 8578 5476 6774
Volume of shares traded 000 323728 421 267 356 681 376 032 330127 242 459
Value of shares traded R million 49776 5614.6 46105 4669.4 37749 3577.7
Volume of shares traded as a

percentage of total issued shares % 48.4 65.7 55.7 58.7 64.8 47.6
Earnings yield” % 7.5 10.4 1.8 10.5 8.1 9.1
Dividend yield* % 53 59 5.7 45 50 4.0
Price/earnings ratio* times 133 9.7 85 9.5 12.3 11.0

*Based on year-end market price
“*Before treasury shares

! )
Share price movements ~ °%®

(cents)  2°¥
2000

1500
High 1000

Low 500
Year-end O

Indexed to JSE ALS| =
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Supplementary Information, continued
for the year endeg 30 September 2005

Operating profit AC133
as reported Abnormal items Fair value adjustment
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
R million R million R mitlion R million R million R million
S$3 ADJUSTED SEGMENTAL

INFORMATION
Metals and Giass 665.0 562.2 (15.7) 10.5 (1.9) (31.4)
Africa 665.0 562.2 (15.7) 10.5 (1.9) (31.4)
Paper 89.5 4331 252.4 715 10.6 27.6)
Africa 2218 348.0 57.0 49.3 10.6 (27.6)
Europe (132.3) 85.1 195.4 22.2 ~ -
Plastics 481.2 2298 (212.5) 1148 1.8 8.5)
Africa 187.8 265.1 8.3 3.7 1.8 8.5)
Europe 293.4 (35.9) (220.8) . 1185 - -
NamiTech - 253.1 - (213.2) - 2.0
Group services 120.1 154 4 (82.9) 4.1 (0.7 (1.4)
Africa 50.9 110.3 (15.7} (4.2) 0.7) 0.6
Europe 69.2 441 {67.2) 0.1 - 2.0
Totat 1355.8 1632.6 (58.7) (20.5) 9.8 (70.9)

BASIS OF CALCULATION

Abnormal items are defined as items of income and expenditure, which do not arise from normal trading activities or are of such a size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance for the period.

The fair value adjustments under AC133 are all calcufated using the mark-to-market methodology.

Forward exchange contract costs on fixed assets are calculated as the difference between the spot rate on the date risks and rewards of
ownership on the underlying transaction pass and the forward rate per the financial instrument,




FEC costs on Operating profit
plant and equipment before abnormals Operating margin

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
R million R million R million R million % %
- 18.8 647.4 5599 14.3 12.2
- 18.6 647.4 559.9 14.3 12.2
- 0.8 3525 477.8 48 58
- 0.8 289.4 3705 6.1 6.8
- - 63.1 107.3 24 3.8
0.7 1.5 271.2 337.6 7.2 7.5
0.7 1.5 198.6 254.4 7.4 9.5
- - 72.8 83.2 6.8 4.5
- - - 37.9 - 12.0

- - 36.5 148.9

- - 34.5 108.7

- - 20 42.2

0.7 209 1307.6 1562.1 8.4 8.9
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Ordinary and Preference Shareholders’ Analysis

at 30 September 2005
S$4 MAJOR INDIVIDUAL HOLDINGS
According to the register of shareholders at 30 September 2005, the following
shareholders controlled 5% or more of the issued ordinary share capital:
% of total
Number of issued
shares held shares
Allan Gray Asset Management 140 283 626 20.96
Industrial Partnership investments (Remgro Limited) 86774 104 12.96
Sanlam Investment Management 80 277 448 11.99
Stanlib Asset Management 45 540 179 6.80
Nominee disclosures
To the best of the directors’ knowledge, having made enquiries of nominees and other
registered holders of Nampak’s ordinary shares, the following parties hold beneficial
interests of more than 5% of such ordinary shares:
Industrial Partnership Investments (Remgro Limited) 86 774 104 12.96
Public Investment Corporation 65 818 143 9.83
Allan Gray Asset Management 58 614 776 8.76
Sanfam Investment Management 52 885 544 7.90
% of total
Number of Number of issued
Ordinary shareholder spread analysis at 30 September 2005 shareholders  shares held shares
Public 12793 548 992 031 82.02
Non-public 21 120321 796 17.98
Analysis of non-public ordinary shareholders
Directors &nd assoclates 17 511 508 0.08
Trustees of the Nampak Black Management Trust 1 27 369 195 4,09
Trustees of the Nampak Employees Share Trust 1 5610 000 0.84
Trustees of the Nampak 1379 Share Purchase Trust 1 57 000 0.01
Shareholdings in excess of 10% of the issued share capital 1 86 774 104 12.96
Preferred ordinary shareholder spread analysis at 30 September 2005
Non-public i 31857 195 100
Analysis of non-public preferred ordinary shareholders
Red Coral tnvestments 23 (Pty) Limited 1 31857 195 100
6% cumulative preference shareholder spread analysis at 30 September 2005
Public 69 196 851 49.21
Non-public 3 203 149 50.79
Analysis of non-public 6% preference shareholders
Shareholdings in excess of 10% of the 6% preference share capital 3 203 149 50.79
6.5% cumulative preference shareholder spread analysis at 30 September 2005
Public 24 32 643 32.64
Non-public 4 67 357 67.36
Analysis of non-public 6.5% preference shareholders
Shareholdings in excess of 10% of the 6.5% preference share capital 4 67 357 67.36

T
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Sustainability Report, continued

Corporate sustainability is a business approach that creates long-term shareholder
value by embracing opportunities and managing risks deriving from economic,

social and environmental impacts.

Nampak, which is included in the JSE's SRI index strives to display high levels of

competence in addressing these challenges.

Corporate Social investment and
Sustainability Committee

This Committee meets four times per annum to consider and review progress on
the group’s social investment and sustainability objectives. The Committee
comprises professional management from human resources, environment, health
and welfare, property and investor relations and includes participation by a non-
executive director. It is currently chaired by the human resource director of our

Africa region,

Economic impact

Economic transformation

The Nampak group is committed to Black Economic Empowerment and wishes to
position itself, 50 as to comply with the current and future requirements of the
Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act and other relevant legislation
and codes in order to:

® preserve and enhance the group’s current business:

® cnsure that it is competitive;

e demonstrate its commitment to BEE;




@ assist in retaining black staff;
® attract new black talent; and
e contribute towards social and economic upliftment of South Africa and create

sustainable black leadership.

The Nampak group hes played a leading role in transformation since the early
1990s and more recently concluded a number of empowerment transactions at

business level.

in 2004, the group was one of the first to publish a company-specific charter
based on seven pillars:

& Ownership

e Management and control

o Affirmative procurement

o Employment equity

# Skills development

e Corporate social investment

e Environmental job creation.

Highfighted in this report is the progress that has been made in achieving the
objectives set out in the charter.

One of the seven pillars of thi charter is ownership which has now been
addressed through the implementation of a broad-based black economic
empowerment transaction resulting in 5% of the group’s equity being held by its
South African employees and 5% by a broad-based BEE consortium.

This broad-based consortium comprises:

o Aka Capital, which is chaired by prominent black businessman, Reuel Khoza;
® a women’s empowerment grouping, National African Women'’s Alliance;

® two of our major trade unions, namely the Chemical, Energy, Paper, Printing,

Wood and Allied Worker Union (CEPPWAWLU) and the South African
Typographicat Union (SATU); and

o Nampak’s two black non-executive directors.
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Sustainability Report, continued

Employment equity The group is committed to employment equity in South
Africa and complies with the Employment Equity Act. The required reports have
been submitted timsously to the Department of Labour.

Employment equity committees have been established in all the group’s operations
and divisional managing directars are responsible for ensuring that targets are set
taking Into account the overall group objectives. The group's senior executives’

incentive is discounted for failure to achieve these targets.

As a proportion of the group’s management category, African managers represent
21% against a target of 24%, whilst black managers (African, Colcured and Asian)
represent 37% against a target of 36%. The group’s staff complement in the

management categary, as at 30 September 2005, was as follows:

2005 % 2004 %
Male
African 209 16 216 15
Coloured 78 6 78
Asian 113 8 120
White 693 51 784 55
Female
African 68 5 57 4
Coloured 10 1 10 1
Asian 23 2 19 1
White 149 11 156 11
Total 1343 100 1440 100
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Wealth creation was R5 billion
of which employees received
R3.3 billion,

The targets in our BEE charter have been set at 55% for all black managers and
20% for black female managers by 2014.

Wealth creation

During the year under review, wealth created for the group’s stakeholders was

R5 billion, with employees receiving R3.3 billion (65%) and sharehoiders

R535 million (10%). Taxes paid to the government amounted to R463 million
(10%) and R104 million (2%) was paid to providers of capital. Earnings retained to
fund the future growth of the group amounted to R640 milicn or 13% of the total

wealth created.

Social impact

Responsibility to society

The group allocates 1% of its profit after tax to corparate social investment and

spent R9 million during the past year in the following key focus areas:

Education - R5.2 million Our bursary scheme, which has been operating
successfully for many years, provides assistance 1o high-potential learners to
continue their education at tertiary institutions, We focus mainly on those learners
who are studying towards accounting, science and engineering degrees and
endeavour, as far as possible, to offer them employment opportunities in the

group. A total of 55 bursars are currently involved in the scheme.

Qur school-partnering programme, which aims to help with the improvement of
education, is in its fourth year. The schools chasen for this initiative are carefully
selected and are in areas close to our factories and where it is likely that our
employees’ children will attend.

We are presently partnering three schoals in Gauteng, two in the Western Cape
and one in KwaZulu-Natal. Improvement plans are formulated in conjunction with
the school governing bodies and may vary depending on the particular needs of

each school. These plans may include:
® improving teachers’ maths and science credentials;

® equipping laboratories and libraries;
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e cmploying qualified fibrarians;

® providing computer centres,
¢ cnhancing security and general infrastructure;
e providing environmental education; and

e awarding bursaries to the top students in mathematics, science and accounting.

In the two schools which we built under the auspices of the Nelson Mandela
Foundation, we supported them with the implementation of the Education Quality
Improvement Partnerships (EQUIP) programme. This programme, which is run by
the National Business Initiative (NBI), aims to support government in the
implementation of education quality improvement programmes and policies..

It does this by building the capacity of schools to develap into strong and viable
education institutions with sound and strategically designed school development

plans.

Health and welfare - R1.9 million Under our Thembalethu Programme, during
the year we supplied some 1.6 million disposable diapers to orphanages for
babies affected by Aids.

In acknowledgement of the admirable care provided to the terminally ill, we
provided financial support to several hospices, particularly in those areas where
our employees live. These hospices are situated in the Eastern and Western Cape,

Gauteng and KwaZulu-Natal.




Environment - R1.5 million

Eco-Schools  Participation in the Eco-Schools project, which we helped to
initiate three years ago in conjunction with the WWF and WESSA, has grown to
over 750 schools. This project incorporates the environment into the school
curriculum and in so doing addresses sustainable development in parallel with
environmental action. Schools choose which area of the environment they will
focus on and then develop a plan to achieve their abjectives. At the end of the
year the school submits a portfolio, which, if accepted, can result in them being

awarded Eco-School status.

Used beverage cans Collect-a-Can, which collects and recycles used beverage
cans, has been running an annual schools competition since 1993, the primary
objective of which is to promote environmental responsibility and education
amangst children, Schools not only generate funds from the cans they sell to
Collect-a-Can but also have an opportunity of winning cash prizes which can be
used to improve their facilities. Nampak continued its co-sponsorship of this

important project in which over 700 schools participated in 2005.

Various other charities — R0.3 million Ws contributed to some 30 worthy
causes, including children’s welfare, old age support, disaster relief and a feeding

scheme to mention but a few.

Responsibility to employees

HIV and Aids We have a comprehensive HIV and Aids awareness programme
and 73% of our South African employaes have now undergone voluntary testing
on site. The current prevalence rate is below that reported by other major
manufacturing organisations in South Africa and we continue to encourage all our

employees to come forward for testing.

Occupational health and safety The group complies with the Occupational
Health and Safety Act. At our factories, safety, health and environment (SHE)
committees are in place to assess and reduce the impact on the environment of

our manufacturing activities and to ensure the safety of our employees. Al
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incidents involving an injury or work-related iliness are recorded and measured as
the disabling injury frequency rate (DIFR). In 2005 the DIFR was less than 0.0001.

There were no death-on-duty accidents.

Asbestos  Whilst we do not believe that the group has any potential claims
exposure, we conducted inspections of all our factory buildings and commenced
a phased replacement or encapsulation of asbestos building materials. Good
progress was made in 2005 and will be completed in the next few vears. Thig
process is also taking place in leased properties to ensure that there is no

exposure to our employees,

Emissions/waste disposal Our SHE committess are responsible for identifying
any emissions or waste disposal practices that do not conform to acceptable
standards. We have a formalised environmental policy which is aligned to

1SO 14000.

People development We continue to focus on the identification, development
and retention of our people to ensure that we have appropriate leadership and

specialist talent.

Succession planning reviews are conducted regufarly by the executive committee
to identify employees with potential for advancement. Management training
programmes are reviewed 10 ensure that they are aligned with the group’s

strategies.

Skills development and training Our Foundation Developmen: Programme
(FDP) is designed for production and clerical employess with leadership potential
to enable them to move into supervisory roles. Fifty employees weare involved in

this programme in 20085, of whom 98% were African.



O O 0 0
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We continue to focus on
development and retention of
our people.

First line managers, supervisors and other skiled employess who have potential
to advance to management positions attend Tomorrow's Leader Programme
(TOM) and during the year 39 candidates completed the programme, of whom

41% were African.

Our Management Development Programme (MDP Plus) is aimed at high-potential
middle managers and 30 managers completed the programme in 2005, of whom

43% were African.

The Graduate Recruitment and Development Programme (GRDP) addresses the
skills shortage in engineering, finance, information technology and marketing. It is
a two-year programme during which young graduates are placed in jobs at
divisions and complete an academic course involving individual and group
assignments. Successful candidates are offered permanent employment in the
group. There are currently 15 graduates in the programme of whom 87% are

African.

In addition to the abovementioned specific programmes we conduct extensive
training including productivity improvement, health and safety, first aid and fire-
fighting to name but a few. Since 2001 we have received refunds totalling

R27 million from the Department of Labour as & proportion of the skills
development levy. Nampak continues to play a significant role in the Media,
Advertising, Printing, Publishing and Packaging - Sector Education and Training
Authority (MAPPP-SETA) by ensuring that appropriate training is provided to the

industry. Our executives also participate in the SETA's leadership structures.

A total of 6 856 South African employess, of whorm 42% were black, attended a

range of occupational training courses during 2005 as shown in the table below:

African 2 809
Coloured ‘ 1195
Asian g75
White 1677
Total 6 656
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Interacting with our employees

The group has a variety of participative structures at different levels for dealing with

issues which affect employees.

These include national framework agreements with all three major trade unions in
the group in South Africa, collective bargaining mechanisms, safety committees,
employment equity and skills development committees and other participative

forums.

In our European operations, we have collective labour and voluntary recognition

agresments.

These structures are designed to achieve good employer and employee
relationships through effective sharing of relevant information, the identification and

resolution of conflict as well as consultation by management with employees.

Environmental impact

Recycling

As Africa’s largest packaging company we are acutely aware of the impact that
our products ¢an have on the environment in which we live. Packaging is a vital
component of modern living, providing protection, portability, preservation and
convenience as well as attracting consumers to our customers’ products. It is,
however, also a visible part of the waste-stream and the group is directly involved

in recycling of all the main packaging materials.




Our initiatives include:

Metals

Collect-a-Can is a joint venture with Mittal Steel and collects and recycles 66% of
used beverage cans in southern Africa, one of the highest rates in the world.
Glass

Cullet forms an integral part of the manufacturing process and our glass

packaging operation continues to develop strategies for higher collection and

recyching.
We are directly involved in
recycling of all the main packaging Paper
materials, The overall recycling rate of papsr in South Africa varies between 65% and 70%

of potential waste generated. Nampak collects and recycles some 200 000 tons
of paper waste per annum, which is used to produce tissue wadding and

packaging papers at our paper mifls,

In Europe, we are a member of Pro-Carton, which is an organisation that
promotes integrity and cost-effectiveness of folding cartons.

Plastics

We continue to participate in the Enviromark and other initiatives driven by the
South African Plastics Federation. Nampak Polycyclers converts recycled

polyethylene into crates, drums, refuse bins and buckets.

Approximately 40 000 callectors receive an income from the various collection

and recycling initiatives across the different packaging material types.
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Governance

Corporate governance Nampak i committed to the principles of openness, integrity
and accountability. The implementation of sound corporate governance practices has been
a cormnerstone of Nampak’s business operations for many years, with changes and
refinements being made from time to time in line with international trends and best

practices.

Nampak complies with all the requirements for corporate governance of JSE Limited.
Application of the principles and compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate

Practice and Conduct contained in the 2002 King Report are set out in this report.

Board of directors Nampak has a unitary board structure which comprises four

executive and nine non-executive directors, following the appaintment on 1 October 2005

of Mr T N Jacobs as chief financial officer and Mr R J Knoza as non-executive director.

Six of the nine non-executive directors are classified as independent. The chairman,

Mr Trevor Evaris, will becomea independent by definition on 1 October 2006, In view of the

very strong independent element on the board of directors this is not considered to be

disadvantageous. The board adopted a formal charter during the 2004 financial year which

sets out the board's responsibilities, including:

® responsibility for the strategic direction of the group;

e responsibiity for ensuring that the company achigves an acceptable return for
shargholders,

o responsibility for guiding the company's system of ethics and values and its standards of
corporate governance,

¢ responsibility for ensuring that the correct structures and senior executives are in place

to implement the company's strategy and to manage its business.

The positions of chief executive officer and chalrman are separated, with responsibilities

divided between them for matters affecting the board and management.




The board meets at least six times per annum and the details of attendance in financial
year 2005 are provided at the end of this report. The board is responsible for the strategic
direction of the group, while also maintaining control over all material matters affecting the
group, including monitoring of operational performance, risk management, internal controls
and the selection of directors. All service contracts with executive directors may be
terminated on notice periods not exceeding twelve months. All directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by sharsholders every three years and the
re-appointment of non-executive directors is not automatic. The appointments of new
directors are subject to confirmation by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
after their appointment. Biographical detalls of all the directors are set out on pages 4 and

5 of this annual report.

There are comprehensive management reparting disciplines in place, which include the
preparation of annual budgets by all operating units. The strategic plan, the group budget,
summaries of divisional sales, operating profit and capital expenditure are reviewed and
approved by the board. Results and the financlal status of divisions are reported on at
board meetings against approved budgets and compared to the prior year. Profit
projections, forecast cash flows and working capital and borrowing levels are also reported

on at these meetings.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary. In
appropriate circumstances they may seek independent professional advice about the
affairs of the company at the company’s expense. The director concerned would initially
discuss and clear the matter with the chairman or the company secretary unless this

would be inappropriate.

An orientation and induction programme for directors was established during the past
financial year, based on the needs of each incoming director. The chairman of the board is
responsible for monitoring the performance of each individual director, while the chairman
of each committee is responsible for monitoring the performance of the relevant committee
and its individual members. A formal, annual evaluation of the board is not

considered necessary in view of the considerable experience of most of the board

members and the long periods most of them have served on the board.
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Board committees The board has established four formal committees, which are dealt

with below.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee members:
T Evans (appointed as chairman on 23 November 2005)
D A Hawton

M M Katz

M L Ndtovu

{Note: Mr B P Connellan resigned as a non-executive director and chairman of the

committee on 28 September 2005

Remuneration and nominations are combined info a single committee, the remuneration and
nominations committes. The committes is chaired by the chairman of the company and in
addition comprises three independent directors. Although Mr Evans will be classified as an
independent non-executive director only on 1 October 2006, it was not considered
appropriate to appoint an independent director as an interim chairman until then. The
committee meets at least twice per year and meetings are also attended by the chief

executive officer, but he does not participate in discussions regarding his own remuneration.

The committee met on three occasions during the financial year. it operates within written

tarms of reference, which were adopted on 10 September 2002.

The terms of reference provide direct authority to the committee to consider contractual
arrangements of executives, including general remuneration policy. The committee is
authorised to approve executive remuneration that is fair and competitive at the
commencement of each financial year, after taking into account the business strategy and
talent-retention objectives. The three major elements of the remuneration structure are
benchmarked separately in applicable jurisdictions, namely guaranteed package, short-
term incentive scheme and long-term rewards {share awards), and weighting between the

elements may be adjusted from time to time to support the group's requirements.




Appointments to the board are govermned by a policy which requires the committee to
identify and recommend suitable candidates, with the appaintments made by the board
thereafter and subject to confirmation by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
following an appointment. The terms of reference of the committee also provide direct
authority to consider matters such as board structure, size and composition, effectiveness
and any skills requirements.

Succession plans are in place to ensure that there is sufficient deptn in the group to meet
future executive requirements and to achieve employment equity targets.

The committee also reviews the executive recommendations for non-executive directors’
fees and committee fee structures against market data before submission to the board
and finally shareholders at the annual general meeting for approval.

Audit Committee members:
P L Campbell {chairman)

T Evans

M M Katz

R A Wiliams

(Note: Mr B P Connellan resigned as a non-executive director and committee member on
28 September 2005.)

The audit committee is chaired by an independent director of the company and, in
addition, comprises two independent directors and one non-executive director. The
committee meets at least three times per year and the meetings are also attended by

appropriate executives, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer.

The committee operates within written terms of reference which were updated in 2003.
The responsibility of the committee includes the review and evaluation of the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the group (with reference to the findings of bath the internal and
external auditors), the consideration of the appaintment of the external auditor, review of
the nature and scope of the audit, material pending litigation, material defalcations, risk
management, insurance covers, important accounting issues and specific disclosures in

the financial statements.

The internal and external auditors report to the committee at each meeting on the results
of their work and they also have unrestricted access to the chairman and other members

of the committee.

A risk management committee has been formed as a committee of the board reporting
through the audit committee and it provides assistance in the identification, assessment,
managing and monitoring of rigks facing the group.
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Risk Management Committee members:

T N Jacobs (appointed as chairman on & November 2005)

G E Bortolan

P L Campbell

N Cumming

A S Lang

N P O'Brien

P A Stevens

(Note: Mr R P Becker resigned as chairman and member of the committee with effect from
31 May 2005.)

The risk management committee was formed in the 2003 financial year as a committee of
the board, but reports to the board through the audit committee. The committee meets at
least twice per year in the week before meetings of the audit committee. The committee is
chaired by the chief financia! officer, since it performs primarity an executive function. The
committee also comprisas the chairman of the audit committee, the chief executive officer
and other senior executives of the group. The primary function of the committee is to
establish and maintain a common understanding of the risk universe, to identify and agree
the risk profile of the group, to co-crdinate the group’s risk management efforts and to
report via the audit committee to the board on the risk management work undertaken.

Corporate Social Investment Committee members:
F V Tshigi (chairman)

N Bengani

8 S Dennis

G A Hayward

L D Kidd

K M Mokoaps

M A Otto

(Note: Mr A M Marthinusen retired as chairman and committes member with effect from
31 July 2005.)

—




The committee mests at least four times per year. It is chaired by the human resource
director: Africa and also comprises an independent director and senior managers of
the group.

The function of the committee is dealt with on page 56 of the Sustainability Report.

Risk management accountability The focus of risk management is on identifying,

assessing, managing, monitoring and reporting material forms of risk across the group.

The board Is accountable for the total process of risk management and internal control. lts
policy on risk management encompasses all significant business risks to the group,

including strategic, financial, operational, technology and compliance risks.

The risk environment in which the business operates is ever-changing. Each level of
management, from the board of directors downwards, is responsible for regular appraisals
of the risk environment in which they operate, and to ensure that significant risks are

identified, assessed, managed and reported on.

In support of this, the board adopted and reviewed the roilout of the group’s risk
management framework, which effectively embeds the required risk management
responsibilities throughout the group. The risk management framework defines the
company's risk management standards and procedures which guides how significant risks
are identified, assessed, managed and reported on, and are based on the requirements of
the King Il Code of Corporate Practices and prevailing best practice.

Structure  Group internal Audit is responsible for facilitating the risk management and
assurance processes across the group. The internal audit programme is continuously

aligned with the results of the risk management programme.

A dedicated risk management officer administers the enterprise risk management

database, risk reporting, and co-ordinates risk assurance across the group.

Risk assessment Formal risk assessments are completed annually at each division and
group support functions around the world, using a proprietary risk management software
and structured methodology. The group continuously benchmarks, embeds, enhances and

aligns its enterprise risk management processes to prevailing best practices.

The risk assessment method used evaluates the possible impact of the risk assessed, and
formalises the mechanisms and measures used to monitor, manage and control those

risks. These are reviewed at group level through a consolidated risk register.
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The risk assessment process has determined the estimated value at risk of the group’s top
risks worldwide. The group’s main residual risks after factoring in control identified by this
process, as at 30 September 2005, listed alphabetically are:

e Currency volatility

o Global procurement trends

o Inbound supply chain

® Loss of key sites

& Over dependency on certain market sectors

& Product liability

e Product substitution

e Reputation

® Retention and development of human capital

Risk response and assurance A group-wide system of internal control is used to
manage significant risks. This provides reasonable assurance that the company’s business

objectives will be met, sven in the event of a disastrous incident impacting on activities.

Risks are further controlled and managed by group palicies limiting exposure in specific
areas such as finance, treasury, human resources, marketing, procurement, quality
assurance, as well as external and internal insurance programmes. Furthermore, risk and
control audits of all plants are carried out annually to check compliance against written

standards and the occupational health and safety requirements.

The group seeks to maintain a sound system of Internal control, based on its pelicies and
guidelings, in all material associates and joint ventures. Where this is not possible, the
responsible directors seek assurance that significant risks are being managed in an

acceptable manner.

The group has documented and tested processes in place that will enable its operations to
continue their critical business processes in the event of any disastrous incidents impacting

on these activities.




Accountability and audit The directors confirm that they are satisfied that the group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. For this reason they

continue to adopt the going-concern basis for preparing the financial statements.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. They are based on appropriate
accounting policies which have been consistently applied and are supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and consistent estimates, except for changes in
notes 4 and 5 of the annual financial statements. Adequate accounting records and
internal controls and systems have been maintained to provide reasonable assurance on
the integrity and reliability of the financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify
and maintain accountability for the group’s assets, Such cantrols are based on established
policies and procedures and are implemented by trained personnel with an appropriate

segregation of duties.

The effectiveness of internal controls and systems is monitored through the utilisation by
management of internal control checklists, formal reporting of material defalcations and
other losses and the use of an internal audit department.

The internal audit department is an independent appraisal function which raviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and the systems which support them. This
includes controls and systems at the operating entities and in relation to business and
financial risks which could have an adverse effect on the group. Weaknesses identified by
the internal auditors are brought to the attention of the directors and management. The
head of the internal audit department reports directly to the chairman of the audit
committee, but is responsible administratively to the chief financial officer. He may be
dismissed or appointed only with the concurrence of the audit committee. The purpose,

authority and responsibility of the internal audit department is formally defined.

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are
fairly presented and their report is presented on page 91.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors, nor the attention of the internal or
external auditors, to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of the above-
mentioned internal controls and systems has occurred during the year under review.
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During the year under review the external auditors provided valuable non-audit-related

services to the company including:

Rm
® Taxation 38
& Sponsor services for the BEE transaction 07

# Consultancy services for the implementation of the ERP system 19.5

e Strategic investment Programme services 22

The board has considered the extensive use made of consuttancy services from the
external auditors for the implementation of the new ERP system, but is satisfied that the
separation of reporting responsibilities ensures that the independence of the extermnal

auditors is not jeopardised.

Ethics Nampak adopted a revised Code of Business Ethics during the course of the
2004 financial year. All directors and employees are required to comply with the code,
which requires all employees to act with honesty and integrity and to maintain the highest
ethical standards.

The code deals with compliance with laws and regulations, conflicts of interest,
relationships with customers and suppliers, gifts and favours, remuneration, outside
employment, directorships, company funds and property, confidentiality, company records
and communications, competition, insider trading, donations and sponsorships and
employment and labour rights.

Nampak operates Tip Offs Anonymous, which allows callers to report confidentiafly on any

violations of Nampak’s policies and procedures.

Systems and procedures are in place t0 monitor and enforce the code and the directors

believe that the requirements of the cade have largely been met by employees.

Price-sensitive information  In accordance with the JSE Limited's guidelines on price-
sensitive information, the company has adopted a policy dealing with the determination of

information as price-sensitive, confidentiality undertakings and discussions with the press,




institutional investors and analysts. Only the chairman, the chief executive officer, the chief
financial officer and the investor refations manager may discuss matters which may involve
price-sensitive information with third parties. The company follows a “closed period”
principle, during which period employees and directors are prohibited from dealing in the
company’s shares.

The usual closed periods endure from approximately the middle of March until the
publication in May of the interim results for the six-month period ended 31 March and from
approximately the middle of September until the publication in November of the financial
results for the year ended 30 September, Additional periods may be declared “closed”

from time to time if circumstances warrant this action.

Attendance at board and committee meetings during the year ended
30 September 2005

Corporate Remuneration

Social and Risk
Audit Investment Nominations Management
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
T

A B A B A B A B A B
R P Becker* 4 4 3 3 2 2
G E Bortolan 6 6 3 3 2 2
P L Campbell 6 [ 3 3 2 2
B8 P Connellan™ 8 6 3 3 4 3
N Cumming 6 6 2 2
T Evans B 6 3 2 4 4 2 1
D A Hawton 6 6 4 4
M M Katz 8 5 3 3 4 3
A Slang 6 6 2 0
A M Marthinusen** 5 5 4 4
K M Mokoape 6 5 5 5
M L Ndlovu 6 5 4 4
M H Visser 8 6
R A Willlams 6 6 3 3

Column A indicates the number of meetings held during the period the director was a
member of the board and/or committee.
Colurnn B indicates the number of meetings attended during the period the director was
a member of the board and/or committes.
“Resigned with effect from 371 May 2005

""Resigned with effect from 28 September 2005
“*Retired with effect from 31 July 2005
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Remuneration
Report

This report on remuneration and related matters sets out the remuneration philosophy at
director level and details the actual remuneration earned during the financial period under
review. Further details on the structure and mandate of the Remuneration and Nominations

Committee (“the Committee”) are included on pages 68 and 63 of this report,

Remuneration philosophy The remuneration philosophy is designed to support the
group’s strategy of a performance culture through attraction and retention of the
appropriate calibre of directors and senior executives who are motivated to create a
climate that supports high levels of performance from an individual contribution perspective
and on a team basis, The attraction and retention of talent requires remuneration structures
that are relevant, transparent and competitive when benchmarked against appropriate
market survey data and practices in each jurisdiction. The annual cash incentive bonus
combined with the longer-term share plan are structured to encourage sustainable superior
growth in earnings through the achievement of challenging performance criteria and are
designed to align longer-term director remuneration directly tc growth in shareholder
wealth. The Committee aims to place an appropriate balance in the weightings between
the guaranteed pay elements and the on-risk pay elements within the overall remuneration
structure. The current structure supports the business need for a performance-driven

culture, with additional weighting being placed on the on risk pay elements.

During 2005, a review of the long-term share plan element within the overall remuneration
structure was undertaken by the Committee assisted by external advisors. Currently, share
options are the sole form of long-term incentive for key executives. The Committee has
decided to recommend closure of the share option plan for future allocations and is proposing
that it is replaced at executive director and senior executive level by a performance share
plan, not only to fink exscutive reward more closely to the achievement of long-term
performance targets and shareholders’ value creation, but also to ensure that the total
reward potential is competitive. Details of the proposed Performance Share Plan can be

found in the Annexure to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.



The chief executive officer should also have scope to retain, motivate and reward talent
appropriately below the senior executive level. To do this, the Committee is proposing 1o
replace the current share option plan with a Share Appreciation Plan where vesting will
only take place if specific performance criteria set by the Committee have been met.
Details of the proposed Share Appreciation Plan can also be found in the Annexure to the

Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Executive directors’ remuneration Executive directors’ remuneration consists of:

® 3 guaranteed package component that includes a cash salary plus the cash value of all
benefits such as retirement funding contributions, assured benefit premiums, medical

aid and car for business use;

® an annual cash incentive bonus scheme where rewards are determined against

achievement of individual performance criteria and annual financlal targets;

® 2 longer-term incentive scheme has traditionally been provided in the form of share

options, which it is proposed to change to a performance share plan going forward.

Guaranteed package Executive director job levels are established with assistance from
external consultants after considering the size and complexity of the role and these are
then benchmarked against the market on an annual basis at the end of each financial year
using comprehensive survey data in related industries for each jurisdiction. This
information, together with an overview of published remuneration, provides the Committee

with a sound base on which to make informed decisions.

The Committee has the authority to approve guaranteed packages that will retain the
correct calibre of talent. Guaranteed package levels are recommended by the chief
executive officer after taking into account individual experience, current performance and

contribution and future career progression.

The guaranteed packages of directors for 2006 are based on the market median. In order
to reward individual contribution and to align to the group's strategy of a performance
culture, one of the components within the annual cash incentive bonus includes individual
performance targets which, if achieved, will elevate the cash package up to higher

percentiles required for talent retention.

Retirement funding, assured benefit cover and healthcare form part of the overall
remuneration package in line with general market trends in each of the jurisdictions. The
company liability in respect of retirement funding and assured benefits has been capped
for directors where the company meets the contributions as a fixed percentage of the
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guaranteed package. Directors who joined the company prior to 1 June 1996 receive post-
retirement medical aid cover funded by the company on retirement. The provision for this

benefit has been included and accounted for under note 2 on page 116 of this report.

The guaranteed packages earned by the directors are reflected in table 1{g) on page 79 of

this report.

Certain executive directors who live in South Africa are respansible for operational direction
and management offshore and are contracted to and paid remuneration by those
structures. These amounts are reflected separately in table 1(a) and are reviewed annually

or when director responsibilities change.

Annual cash incentive bonus  The annual cash incentive bonus scheme is reviewed in
detail by the Committes that brings experience from its participation on other remuneration
committees. This experience, coupled with extensive local and international market data
and trend information, provides sufficient information to set the financial targets at the
commencement of each financial year once the business strategy has been agreed. The
primary focus of the incentive scheme for the financial year under review remained to
reward executive directors and senior management for the achievement of challenging
financial growth. The maximum potential incentive bonus for the year ending 30 September
2005 was capped at 100% of guaranteed package. The maximum potential incentive for
the chief executive officer is capped at 120% of guaranteed package for 2006. The annual
cash incentive bonus has two components, namely financial performance and individual

performance.

During the period under review, the financial component under the incentive bonus scheme
at the group level was based on growth in headline earnings per share and return on equity
targets. The operational directors’ targets included an element of group performance
(20%), with the balance of the potential under the financial component aligned to divisional
performance. The divisional performance targets were based on improvements in profit

before interest and tax and return on gross assets.




To continue to align the group’s employment equity strategy with executive director
remuneration, the South African directors’ incentive earned under the financial component

was discounted up to 20% for non-achievement of employment equity targets.

The second component of the annual incentive bonus continued to be linked to the
achievement of individual performance targets. Individual performance targets cover
strategic initiatives, which are crucial for future growth and profitability within the group.
Payments under this component are made irrespective of performance against the

financial component with the Committee holding overriding discretion.

For the financial year under review, the group financial targets set were not achieved,
however some operational targets were achieved. The annual incentive bonus payments
that accrued for the financial period are set out in table 1(a) and include amounts earned

under the individual performance component.

The Committee has reviewed the annual cash incentive scheme for the financial year

30 September 2006 and has decided to retain both components, namely financial and
individual performance. The financlal component at group level will be significantly
weighted towards improvements in headline earnings per share, with operational focus -

retained on trading income and return on gross assets.

Table 1(a): Executive directors’ remuneration 2005

Payments
by offshore Company Value of Total
Guaranteed companies contributions other benefits Incentive  remuneration
package (rand) to retirement {rand) bonus 2005
Name (rand) Note 1 {rand) Note 2 (rand) (rand)
R P Becker” 1341 234 247 329 98 615 11250 — 1609 328
G E Bortolan 2317 148 1110323 180 351 19918 1340 000 4 967 740
N Cumming 2 144 590 — 165 410 18 467 941182 3269 649
A Slang 1983 255 - 154 745 34193 1229 168 3411 361
A M Marthinusen*” 1 456 877 — 109 955 3011482 480 029 5058 323
Total 8 253 104 1 357 652 709 976 3 095 290 3990 379 18 406 401

*Resigned from the Nampak Limited board with effect from 31 May 2005. Resigned from the group
with effect from 30 June 2005.
“Resigned from the Nampak Limited board with effect from 31 July 2005. Retired from the group with
effect from 31 July 2005.
Note 1: For the purpose of total remuneration, offshore payments have been converted to rand at the
average annual exchange rate.
Note 2: Other benefits comprise the value of low interest rate loans, comprehensive insurance on car
allowance vehicles, value of company car benefit (if applicable), accommodation, feave pay
outstanding and restraint of trade payment.
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Table 1{b): Executive directors’ remuneration 2004

Remuneration Report, continued

Payments

Payments Value of due post

by offshore Company other Total  the financial

Guaranteed companies contributions benefits Incentive remuneration year-end

package (rand) to retirement (rand) bonus 2004 (rand)

Name {rand) Note 1 (rand) Note 2 (rand) (rand) Note 3
R P Becker 1390 958 368 579 97 042 15 000 1871579
G E Bortolan 2 369 041 628 361 167 759 45 706 3210 867
N Cumming 2042 132 142 868 36 324 2221324
AS lang 1947 513 137 486 75 094 2160 093
A M Marthinusen 1705927 119078 41 015 1866 015

J A Manks” 2898 136 2 601 686 769 446 6 269 268 6 874097
R G Tomlinson** 1250 689 331 504 87 644 1107 363 494 300 3272100

Total 13 604 396 1328 444 3353 558 2089 948 494900 20 871 248 6 874 097

*Resigned from the Nampak Limited board with effect from 30 September 2004. Retired from the

group with effect from 31 December 2004,

**Resigned from the Nampak Limited board with effect from 21 July 2004 and retired from the group
with effect from 31 August 2004.
Note 1: For the purpose of total remuneration, offshore payments have been converted to rand at the
average annual exchange rate.
Other benefits comprise the value of fow interest-rate loans, comprehensive insurance on car
allowance vehicles, value of company car benefit (if applicable), accommodation, leave pay
outstanding, restraint of trade payment and National Insurance paid for UK executive.
As reported previously, as part of the merger negotiations the company agreed to assume the
contractual arrangements of the Malbak Limited directors. Mr Monks retired from the group
with effect from 31 December 2004. The payment due to Mr Monks on his retirement under
his contractual notice period was cash of £544 931 (including National Insurance) and the
value of benefits of £35 651. No further contribution was paid in respect of retirement funding.

Note 2:

Note 3:

Share schemes The group has traditionally provided its long-term incentive award

through the issue of share options after considering individual performance and future

career progression using The Nampak 1985 Share Option Scheme (“Option Scheme”).




During 2005 a review of the Option Scheme element within the remuneration structure
was undertaken by the Committee, assisted by a leading firm of remuneration and benefits
consultants. The Committee proposes to close the current Option Scheme for future
allocations and to replace it with two new share schemes, namely a Performance Share
Plan and a Share Appreciation Plan.

The Performance Share Plan will provide for the grant of performance share awards to
executive directors and nominated senior executives. Vesting will take place after three
years and will be conditional upon the group achieving specific performance targets which
will be set by the board at commencement of each three-year period. The performance
target for the awards for the first allocation will be the group’s Total Shareholder Return
(“TSR") compared to the TSR of the constituent companies of the JSE 40, excluding

resource companies, in order 1o improve the relevance of the comparator group.

To provide a more stable basis for measurement, it is likely that relative TSR will be
calculated against the comparator group and the five best performing and five worst
performing companies will be disregarded. To alleviate any short-term volatility, the return
index will be averaged in the TSR calculations for each member of the group over the

three months prior to the start of the performance period.

The maximum performance award will be set by the Committee each year taking into
account individual performance and contribution, future succession and retention aspects.
In respect of any financial year, the maximum value of shares that may be aflocated
annually to the performance share award will be 150% of guaranteed package for the chief
executive officer and up to 100% for other executives. 1t is anticipated that approximately

half of the performance award will vest at the end of three years for median performance.

The earnings potential of the on-risk elements (annual cash incentive bonus and long-term
performance share plan) form approximately 6% of the chief executive officer’s total
remuneration and between 46% and 56% of the total remuneration for the

other executives.

Details of the proposed Performance Share Plan for approval by shareholders can be

found in the Annexure to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

The Share Appreciation Plan (“SAP") will be established to provide the chief executive
officer with a vehicle to motivate and retain talent at senior management levels within

the group. Any rights granted will be subject to approval by the board.

Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @



Remuneration Report, continued

A number of SARs will be periodically offered to senior managsrs. These rights will be
condlttional upon the group achieving specific performance criteria as set by the board
before vesting can occur. The proposed vesting periods are in line with the current Option
Scheme and provide for one-third to vest at the end of three years, one third to vest at the

end of four years and the final third to vest after five years.

Details of the proposed Share Appreciation Plan for approval by shareholders can be
found in the Annexure to the Notice of the Annual General Mesting.

Non-executive directors do not participate in employee share schemes. However, if an
executive transfers to a non-executive position after retirement, continued participation in

any share scheme issued pricr to the date of retirement would be retained.

The actual share options issued and the gains on the options exercised for the financial
period under review for the directors are indicated in table 2 (a). The total number of
ordinary shares that may be allocated to directors and employees in terms of the Option
Scheme is 68 045 030. The Committee approves the issue ¢f all share option allocations

within the group.
Table 2(a): Directors’ share options 2005

Options granted during the year Options  Gains on . Balance
exercised options Exeni;(s:z Date at
Balance at Number  Price Date of Expiry during exercised (cpents) exercised 30 Sept
Name 01/10/2004 granted (cents) grant date  the year (rand} 2005
R P Becker 522 800 195000 1495 01/12/2004 01/12/2014 Share options forfeited on resignation -
G E Bortolan 1277600 © 190000 1495 01/12/2004 01/12/2014 43 400 32550 1500 11/02/2005 1424200
N Cumming 721900 100000 1495 01/12/2004 01/12/2014 30 000 21000 1500 22/03/2005 791 900
T Evans 1 469 100 - - - — 63 400 47 550 1500 22/03/2005 1405700
A Slang 582 600 40000 1495 01/12/2004 01/12/2014 43 400 43400 1500 17/03/2005 579200
A M Marthinusen 536 000 - — - - 36 700 31195 1500 18/03/2005 499 300
P L Campbell 50 000 — - — — 50 000 57500 1800 22/02/2005 -

Total 233195




Table 2(b): Directors’ share options 2004

Options granted during the year Options  Gains on Balance

exercised  options Exercise at

Balance at Number Price Date of Expiry during exercised price Date 30 Sept

Name 01/10/2003 granted (cents) grant date  the year (rand) (cents) exercised 2004
R P Becker 382800 140000 1234 27/11/2003 27/11/2013 - — — — 522 800
G E Bortolan 977600 300000 1234 27/11/2008 27/11/2013 - - - — 1277800
N Cumming 541800 180000 1234 27/11/2008 27/11/2013 - - - - 721 900
A SLang 532 600 50000 1234 27/11/2003 27/11/2013 - - - - 582 600
A M Marthinusen 536 000 - - — — — - - - 536 000
R G Tomlinson 456900 140000 1284 27/11/2003 27/11/2013 50000 185000 1420 31/05/2004 546 900
44400 124320 1340 26/01/2004 502 500

52500 312375 1340 26/01/2004 Balance

forfeited

P L Campbell 50 000 - - — - - - - - 50 000
T Evans 1469 100 — — - - - - - — 1469100

Total 621 695

Participants in the Option Scheme were able to elect to receive trust loans in terms of the
Nampak 1979 Share Purchase Scheme (“the Purchase Scheme”} from the share purchase
trust to finance the exercise of share options. Table 3(a) reflects the movement in the trust
loans during the financial period. The derived benefit of low interest rate ioans granted
under the Purchase Scheme is included in the value of other benefits in table 1(a} on

page 78.
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Table 3(a) Summary of directors’ share dealings in shares acquired through the Share Purchase Scheme 2005

Remuneration Repori, continued

Balance at
30/09/2005 Outstanding
including Effective Total cost share trust
shares with selling price of shares loan
paid-up and of shares  sold during Gain for balances at
Balance at outstanding  during year year the year  30/09/2005
Name 1/10/2004  Purchases Sales loans (rand) (rand) (rand) (rand)
G E Bortolan 87 600 - 21 600 66 000 326 160 324 000 2160 -
N Cumming 116 500 — 116 500 — 1821130 863 000 958 130 -
T Evans 226 600 - 31 600 195 000 439 200 474 000 25 200 -
A S lang 159 100 — 105 800 53300 1656571 960 970 694 601 -
A M Marthinusen 90 700 - 18 300 72 400 277 245 274 500 2745 —
Table 3(b) Summary of directors’ share dealings in shares acquired through the Share Purchase Scheme 2004
Balance at
30/09/2004 Outstanding
including Effective Total cost share trust
shares with selling price of shares loan
paid-up and of shares  sold during Gain for balances at
Balance at outstanding  during year year the year  30/09/2004
Name 01/10/2003  Purchases Sales loans (rand) (rand) (rand) (rand)
G E Bortolan 87 600 - - 87 600 - — - 323784
N Cumming 116 500 — — 116 500 — - - 224 850
T Evans 226 600 - - 226 600 - - - 473 684
A S Lang 244 100 - 85 000 159 100 1242 244 234 263 1 007 981 770184
A M Marthinusen 90 700 - - 90 700 - — — 274 317




The following table lists the directors who exercised share options using share trust loans between 1 QOctober 2004 and 30 September 2005:

Table 4(a) Loans granted to directors in terms of the share trust between 1 October 2004 and 30 September 2005

Loan
amount
settled
Loan Closing between Loan
amount Date market 1 October amount
as at options Original price on 2004 and as at
30 Sept Date  exercised option exercise 30 Sept 30 Sept
2004 option and loan price date  Number of 2005 2005
Name (rand) granted granted (cents) {cents) shares (rand) (rand)
G E Bortolan 323784 — - — ~ - 323 784 -
N Cumming 224 850 - - - - - 224 850 -
T Evans 473 684 — — - — - 473684 -~
A S Lang 770 184 - — - - - 770 184 -
A M Marthinusen 274 317 - - - - - 274 317 -
Note: Share scheme loans must be repaid not fater than ten (10) years from the date the option was originafly granted.
Table 4(b) Loans granted to directors in terms of the share trust between 1 October 2003 and 30 September 2004
Loan
amount
settled
Loan Closing between Loan
amount Date market 1 October amount
as at options Original price on 2003 and as at
30 Sept Date  exercised option exercise 30 Sept 30 Sept
2003 option and loan price date Number of 2004 2004
Name (rand) granted granted (cents) (cents) shares (rand) (rand)
G E Bortolan 323784 - - - - - - 323784
N Cumming 224 850 - - - - — - 224 850
T Evans 473 684 - - - - - - 473 684
A 'S Lang 770 184 - — — - - — 770 184
A M Marthinusen 274 317 - - - - - - 274 317

Note: Share scheme foans must be repaid not fater than ten {10) years from the date the option was originally granted.
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Remuneration Report, continued

Service contracts Indefinite term contracts based on a notice period of between six
months and 12 months by either party have been signed by the following directors:
Messrs G E Bortolan, N Cumming and A S Lang. The committee reviews the notice
periods with effect from 1 October each year and has agreed to retain the notice periods
at the levels outlined above for the year ending 30 September 2C06. In the event of
redundancy, the executives wouild be entitled to an additional capped payment equivalent

to 60-weeks' pay in terms of the Nampak Limited redundancy policy.

On his appointment to chief financial officer with effect from 1 October 2005,
Mr T N Jacobs signed an indefinite term contract based on a nctice period of three

months by either party.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration  Non-executive directors receive a fixed level of
remuneration for their services based on their participation in board meetings and on other
committess. The non-executive directors do not participate in incentive bonus schemes

nor are they granted share options.

The chief executive officer recommends the non-executive director fee structures after
obtaining input from external consuftants regarding market trends and current pay
practices. An increase to the board fee will be proposed in 2008 with a recommendation to
retain the chairman’s fee and other committee fees at current levels. The Committee
reviews the recommendations before board and shareholder zpproval. Consideration is
given to any changes in the levels of responsibility and complexity of the roles when

reviewing fee recommendations.



The fees earned by non-executive directors for the financial period under review are

outlined in table 5(a).

Table 5(a): Non-executive directors’ remuneration 2005

Directors’ Committee Total

fees fees 2005

Notes {rand) (rand) (rand)

P L Campbell 80 000 100 000 190 000
B P Connellan* 90 000 125 000 215000
T Evans 1 1250 000 - 1250 000
D A Hawton 90 000 40 000 130 000
M M Katz 2 90 000 90 000 180 000
K M Mokoape 3 90 000 22 000 112 000
M L Ndlovu 90 000 13 333 103 333
M H Visser 4 90 000 - 90 000
R A Wiliams 90 000 50 000 140 000
Total 1 970 000 440 333 2410 333

"Resigned fram the Nampak Limited board with effect from 28 September 2005.

Note 1: The fees for the chairman take into account that approximately 30% of time is spent on
Nampak Limited business. Mr Evans continues to participate in the share purchase scheme
for options that were exercised prior to his retirement and the value of the low interest rate
loan for the financial year was R15 262. He also participated in deferred compensation plans
whilst holding an executive position and received the maturity proceeds of R0 592 this

financial year.

Note 2: Fees paid to Edward Nathan (Pty) Limited.
Note 3: Committee fees are paid for participation in the Corporate Social Investment Committee.
Note 4: Fees paid to M & | Group Services {Pty) Limited.
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Remuneration Report, continued

Table 5(b): Non-executive directors’ remuneration 2004

( Directors’ Committee Total

fees fees 2004

Notes (rand) (rand}) (rand)

P L Campbell 90 000 100 000 1380 000
B P Connellan 20 000 125 000 215000
T Evans 1 1750 000 — 1750 000
D A Hawton 90 000 40 000 130 000
MM Katz 2 90 000 90 000 180 000
K M Mokoape 3 90 000 22 000 112 000
M L Ndlovu 4 90 000 13 300 108 300
M H Visser 5 90 000 - 90 000
R A Williams 90 000 50 000 140 000

Note 1: Fees as chairman spending approximately 50% of his time on company matters. This time
will requce to between 30 to 35% for the financial year ending 30 September 2005.
Mr Evans continues to participate in the share purchase scheme for options that were
exercised prior to his retirement and the valug of the low interest rate loan for the financial
year was R44 921.

Note 2. Fees paid to Edward Nathan (Pty) Limited.

Note 3: Committee fees are paid for participation in the Corporate Social Investment Committee.

Note 4: Appointed to the Remuneration and Nominations Committee with effect from
23 September 2004.

Note 5: Fees paid to M & | Group Services (Pty) Limited.
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Certificate by Company Secretary

| certify that the company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the
Companies Act 61 of 1973 and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

s
N P O’Brien
Company secretary

23 November 2005

Approval by the Directors

TO THE MEMBERS OF NAMPAK LIMITED

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and incorporate full and responsible disclosure in line with the accounting philosophy of the group.

An audit committee, consisting of non-executive directors, meets periodically with the company’s external auditors and executive management to
discuss accounting, auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

The external auditors have unrestricted access to the audit committee.

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors and are signed on its behalf by:

T Evans G E Bortolan
Chairman Chief executive officer
Sandton

23 November 2005




Report of the Independent Auditors

TO THE MEMBERS OF NAMPAK LIMITED

We have audited the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements set out on pages 92 to 154 for the year ended
30 September 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial staterments based on our audit.

SCOPE

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material mis-statement. An audit includes:

® sxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;

® assessing the accounting princinles used and significant estimates made by management; and

@ cvaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion, these financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and the group at
30 September 2005 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and in the manner required by the Companies Act in South Africa.

Lo o X

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)

Sandton
23 November 2005
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

Nampak Limited is listed on the JSE Limited in the Business
Support Services sector. It is the largest and most diversified
packaging manufacturer in Africa with operations in the United:
Kingdom and Europe. It produces packaging products from metal,
paper, plastic and glass, and is a major manufacturer and distributor
of tissue products. The group operates from manufacturing sites in
South Africa, Kenya, Malawi, Mozambigque, Namibia, Nigeria,
Swaziland, Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe, Belgium, France,
Germany, Ireland, ltaly, Luxembourg, the Netherlands and the United
Kingdom. The group is actively engaged in the collection and
recycling of all forms of used packaging. Nampak also exports to
many countries.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND RESULTS

The performance of the divisions and the group’s results are
comprehensively reviewed on pages 11 to 35 and 98 to 154.

BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

It was announced on the Stock Exchange News Service (“SENS”)

on 18 August 2005 and published in the media on 19 August 2005

that the company had reached agreement to conclude a 10% Black

Economic Empcwerment ("BEE") transaction in terms of which,

approximately:

® 5% of the issued share capital would be owned by Nampak
employees in South Africa; and

® 5% would be owned by BEE groups comprising a broad base of
black shareholders.

The company considered it essential to include its employees as
participants in the BEE transaction in order to broaden the
beneficiary base.

A general meeting of sharehclders was held on 29 September 2005
at which special and ordinary resolutions were passed by the
requisite majority of shareholders to approve and implement the
BEE transaction which took place on 30 September 2005.

The BEE transaction has been structured as follows:

® The Nampak Employees Share Trust ("NEST") has been created
for the benefit of all of the company’s permanent employees in
South Africa who are not beneficiaries of the company's existing
share option scheme and did not participate elsewhere as
beneficiaries of the BEE transaction. Approximately 10 200
permanent employees in South Africa will each receive

—

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 30 September 2005

approximately 550 ordinary shares with & value of approximately
R8 322 based on a share price of R15.13 per share.

@ The Black Management Trust (“BMT"} has been created for the
benefit of the company’s black permanent employees in South
Africa who are classified by the company as management. The
trust will initially benefit approximately 480 employees, but the
number of beneficiaries is expected to increase over time. The
company has provided a founding grant of R414 095 920 to the
BMT which enabled it to purchase 27 369 195 ordinary shares.
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee will decide on the
share allocation to employees.

® A special purpose vehicle, Red Coaral Investments 23 (Pty) Limited
("Red Coral’}, was formed for the benefit of third-party BEE
companies, broad-based BEE groups and existing Nampak black
non-executive directors.

13 434 214 preferred ordinary shares of 5 cents each were issued
to Red Coral at par and g further 18 422 981 preferred ordinary
shares of 5 cents each were issued to Red Coral at R156.13 per
share. These preferred ordinary shares will pay a cumulative fixed
semi-annual distribution of 50 cents per share but wifl, in all other
respects including voting rights, rank pari passu with the ordinary
shares. At the end of approximately five years, the preferred ordinary
shares will convert into ordinary shares.

Nampak's BEE partners, other than its employees, are as follows:
Aka Packaging (Pty) Limited;

Nampak's two non-executive black directors, namely

Messrs K M Mokoape and M L Ndiovu;

Chemical, Energy, Paper, Printing, Wood and Allied Workers Union
(‘CEPPWAWU");

South African Typographical Union (“SATU"); and

NAWA (Pty) Limited or National African Women’s Alliance.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

In order to mitigate the dilutive effects of the BEE transaction, the
company and a subsidiary repurchased 10% of its issued ordinary
share capital, comprising 63 633 855 ordinary shares of 5 cents
each, on 31 October 2005 for a total consideration of R962 780
226 in terms of a scheme of arrangement proposed by the
company between Nampak Products Limited and the company’s
shareholders other than the NEST, the EMT and Red Coral (“the
excluded shareholders”) and approved at a general meeting held on
29 September 20085.




INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Short Run plastics business in Europe, formerly owned by
Nampak Plastics Europe Limited, which had been underperforming
in a highly competitive market, was sold on 30 October 2004 to
RPC Group pic for £21 million. The Woburn Sands property in the
UK was sold in January 2005 for £40 million, of which £20 million
has been received and the balance will be paid in equal instaiments
in January 2006 and January 2007.

Effective 1 March 2005, Nampak Products Limited sold its Paper
Merchants division, Peters Papers, to a consortium comprising a
private equity fund, a black empowered investment company and
management at Peters Papers for a consideration of R220 million.

A share repurchase programme commenced on 2 February 2005
to acquire up to 5% of the company's issued ordinary shares.

By 24 August 2005, a total of 9 475 425 ordinary shares,
representing 1.48% of the issued ordinary shares in issue at

the time, had been purchased by Nampak Products as treasury
shares for a consideration of R152 million. On 24 August 2005,
the said shares were transferred to Nampak Limited for a
consideration of R148.8 million, and then cancelled and restored
as authorised share capital. This was done to allow for the above-
mentioned scheme of arrangement in terms of section 311 of the
Companies Act.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2005

An announcement was made on SENS on 3 Cctober 2005 that
Nampak had reached an agreement in principle whereby Wiegand-
Glas of Germany would acquire 50% of the issued share capital in
Nampak Glass (Pty) Limited for €18 million. Wiegand-Gilas, whose
history dates back to 1593, operates two glass plants in Germany
with an annual capacity of 500 000 tons. The transaction was
completed, effective from 1 October 2005. Nampak Glass

(Pty) Limited has since changed its name to Nampak Wiegand
Glass (Pty) Limited.

Nampak Products Limited sold its Tufbag business on
1 November 2005 for a consideration of RS miliion.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital are given in
note 13 to the financial statements.

At a general meeting of holders of ordinary shares held on
29 September 2005, shareholders passed a special resolution
whereby the authorised share capital of the company was increased
by R3 842 865 by the creation of 45 000 000 ordinary shares of

5 cents each, the creation of 31 857 200 preferred ordinary shares
of 5 cents each and the creation of 100 redeemable preference
shares of 5 cents each.

The reason for increasing the authorised share capital of the
company was to facilitate the issue of an appropriate number of
ordinary and preferred ordinary shares to the NEST, the BMT and
Red Caral in terms of the company’s BEE transaction referred to
above.

During the year the issued ordinary share capital was increased as
foliows:

Ordinary shares of
5 cents each

Issued at 30 September 2004
Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary
shares in terms of the implementation of a
share repurchase programme

641 574 291

(9475 425)
Ordinary shares allotted to employees other
than directors in terms of the Nampak

1985 Share Option Scheme

(“the Option Scheme”)

Ordinary shares allotted to directors in terms
of the Option Scheme 276 900

3958 866

Ordinary shares allotted to the NEST 5610 000
Ordinary shares allotted to the BMT 27 389 185
Issued at 30 September 2005 669 313 827

In terms of the BEE initiative, 31 857 195 preferred ordinary shares
of 5 cents each were aliotted to Red Coral,

There were no changes to the issued 6.5% and 6% preference
shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

in terms of the Option Scheme, employees may elect to receive
loans from the Nampak 1979 Share Purchase Scheme (*the
Purchase Scheme’) to finance the exercise of share options.
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Directors’ Report, continued
for the year ended 30 September 2005

A total of 4 235 766 ordinary shares of 5 cents each were allotted during the year consequent upon the exercise of share cptions.

The relevant particulars of the schemes are set out below:
Ordinary shares

2005 2004

Unallocated shares set aside for utilisation at the commencement of the financial year 31335730 3 666 080
Additional shares set aside by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 28 January 2004 - 10 425 000
Shares in respect of which options were granted (1 770 000) (3 780 000)
Options forfeited as a result of resignations 1 823 300 778 300
Options exercised by retired and former employees 13173 400 14 246 350
Avallable for utilisation at the end of the financial year 44 562 430 31335730
Status of schemes at the end of the financial year
- Purchase Scheme

Shares held for participants - 405 600

Number of participants - 35

Shares held by the Nampak 1979 Share Purchase Trust 57 000 57 000
- Option Scheme

Shares in respect of which options are outstanding:

These are exercisable over periods between 1 October 2005 and

1 December 2014 at varying option prices, the weighted average price

of which is 1 166 cents:

Directors 4700 300 5160 000

Other employees and retirees 10763 034 14 592 400
Total 15 463 334 18 752 400
Number of participants 173 281

The approval of shareholders will be sought at the forthcoming annual general mesting for:

® the allotment and issue of shares to directors in respect of options granted to them during the financial year ended 30 September 2005 as and
when the options are exercised; and

® the adoption of two new incentive schemes, namely the Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan and the Nampak Limited Share Appreciation
Plan. The Remuneration and Nominations Committee proposes to close the Option Scheme for future allocations. Please refer to the Annexure
to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
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DIVIDENDS

Details of dividends dealt with in the financial statements are shown below:

Dividend Cents per Declaration Last day Payment

Class of share number share date to trade date
6% cumulative preference 72 8.00 10/12/2004 28/01/2005 07/02/2005
73 6.00 15/06/2005 15/07/2005 25/07/2005

6.5% cumulative preference 72 8.50 10/12/2004 28/01/2005 07/02/2005
73 8.50 15/06/2005 15/07/2005 25/07/2005

Ordinary 73 27.0 26/05/2005 01/07/2005 11/07/2005
74 56.6 23/11/2005 06/01/2006 16/01/2006

The important dates pertaining to final dividend number 74 are as
follows:

Last day to trade ordinary shares

“cum” dividend Friday 6 January 2006

Ordinary shares trade “ex” dividend ~ Monday 9 January 2006

Record date Friday 13 January 2006

Payment date Monday 16 January 2006

Ordinary share certificates may nct be dematerialised or
rematerialised between Monday 9 January 2006 and Friday
13 January 2008, both days inclusive.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The names of the directors and secretary are set out on pages
4, 5 and 155 of the annual report.

Mr R P Becker resigned as chief financial officer of the company,
effective 31 May 2005 and Mr T N Jacobs was appointed acting
chief financial officer in his stead. Effective 1 October 2005,

Mr Jacobs was appointed chief financial officer.

Mr A M Marthinusen elected to take early retirement and he
resigned from the board on 31 July 2005. Mr B P Connellan, a
non-executive director and a former chairman of the company,
resigned from the board on 28 September 2005.

Pursuant to the company's BEE transaction, Mr R J Khoza
was appointed a non-executive director of the company on
1 October 2005.

in terms of the company’s articles of association, Messrs

Jacobs and Khoza, who were appointed to the board on

1 October 2005, retire and offer themselves for election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Jacobs has an indefinite
period service contract with a notice period of three months.

Messrs Campbell, Cumming and Visser retire by rotation in terms of
the company’s articles of association but, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Messrs Campbell and Visser do not have service contracts as non-
executive directors. Mr Cumming has an indefinite period service
contract with a notice period of six months.
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Directors’ Report, continued ®
for the year ended 30 September 2005
®
@
®
INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS .
The total direct and indirect beneficial and non-beneficial interests of the directors of Nampak Limited in the issued share capital of the company .
as at 30 September 2005 are shown below:
Ordinary shares Options to purchase ordinary shares” ’
2005 2004 2005 Option prices Date of grant 2004
(cents) ¢
Beneficial interests .
Executive
R P Becker* - - - 1280 31/01/03 382 800
- 1234 27/11/03 140 000
G E Bortolan 66 000 87 600 - 1500 22/03/95 43 400
59 200 1060 30/07/98 58 200
60 000 745 31/08/98 60 000 .
215 000 1050 01/12/00 215000
400 000 1060 14/12/01 400 000
200 000 1326 25/07/02 200 000
300 000 1234 27/11/03 300 000
190 000 1495 01/12/04 -
N Cumming - 116 500 - 1500 22/03/95 30000
44 400 1060 30/07/98 44 400
37 500 745 31/08/98 37 500
100 000 1050 01/12/00 100 000
250 000 1060 14/12/01 250 000
80 000 1326 25/07/02 80 000
180 000 1234 27/11/03 180 000
100 000 1495 01/12/04 -
A S lang 53 300 169 100 - 1500 22/03/95 43 400
59 200 1060 30/07/98 58 200
100 000 1050 01/12/00 100 000
250 000 1080 14/12/01 250 000
80 000 1326 25/07/02 80 000
50 000 1234 27/11/03 50 000
40 000 1495 01/12/04 —
A M Marthinusen* - 90 700 - 1500 22/03/95 36 700
- 1060 30/07/98 51 800
- 745 31/08/98 37 500
- 1050 01/12/00 100 000
- 1060 14/12/01 250 0Co
- 1326 25/07/02 60 000




OO0 00 066 6060 00 0 o0

Ordinary shares

Options to purchase ordinary shares”

2005 2004 2005 Option prices Date of grant 2004
(cents)
Non-executive

P L Campbell 23 200 23 200 - 1500 22/03/95 50 000
B P Connellan** 44 235 44 235 - - - -
T Evans 195 000 226 600 - 1500 22/03/95 63 400
133 200 1060 30/07/98 133 200
172 500 745 31/08/98 172 500
250 000 1050 01/12/00 250 000
66 800 1060 14/12/01 66 800
433 200 1060 23/01/02 433 200
241 800 1326 25/07/02 241 800
108 200 1280 31/01/03 108 200
D A Hawton 3000 3000 - — - -
M M Katz - - - - — -
K M Mokoape - - - - — -
M L Ndiowu - - - - — —
M H Visser - - - — - —
R A Williams 170 997 170897 - - - -

Non-beneficial interests 1 14

*In terms of the Option Scheme.

“*Mr R P Becker resigned as a director on 31 May 2005, Mr A M Marthinusen retired as a director on 31 July 2005 and Mr B P Connellan resigned as a

non-executive director on 28 September 2005.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

The following special resolution was passed by a subsidiary company during the year under review:

Metal Box South Africa Limited
Special resolution to amend the articles of association.

RETIREMENT FUNDS

Details of retirement funds are reflected in note 2 to the financial statements.
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Group Balance Sheet

as at 30 September
2005 2004 .
Notes R million R millicn
{restated) .
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
Property, plant and equipment 6 39411 42281
Goodwil 7 7121 997.8 .
Negative goodwil! 7 - 62.2)
Intangible assets 7 347.8 304.8
Non-current financial assets 8 164.2 43.6
Investment in associate 10 0.9 -
Long-term retirement benefit surplus 2 - 107.1
Deferred tex assets 18 10.6 11.4
5176.7 5630.6
Current assets
Inventories 11 2049.9 20559
Trade and other receivables 12 2516.2 2688.2
Tax assets 60.7 111.4
Bank balances, deposits and cash 632.7 699.5
52595 5555.0
Total assets 10 436.2 111856
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 36.0 33.1
Share premium 13 2596.7 2 009.8
Treasury shares 13 (705.1) 0.5)
Non-distributable reserves 14 (593.0) (249.6)
Accumutated profits 16 3901.0 36903
5235.6 5 383.1
Minority interest 29.4 328
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing debt 16 929.7 1091.5
Long-term retirement benefit obligation 2 252.3 269.0
Fixed escalation operating lease accrual 17 234 236
Deferred tax liabilities 18 508.2 4100
17136 17941
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 2861.9 2 830.2
Interest-bearing debt 16 281.0 7529
Provisions 20 118.3 108.7
Tax liabilities 196.4 283.8
3457.6 39756
Total equity and liabilities 10 436.2 11 185.6
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Group Income Statement
for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
Notes R miliion R milfion

(restated)
Revenue 21 15 583.1 17 494.6
Raw materials 76129 8 508.1
Employee costs 3183.6 36137
Depreciation and other amortisation expenses 701.3 800.9
Other operating expenses 2997.9 31385
Other operating income 220.2 128.7
Profit before abnormal items 22 1307.6 1562.1
Net abnormal profit 23 48.2 705
Profit on disposal of discontinued cperations - 213.2
Other abnormal items 48.2 (142.7)
Profit from operations 1355.8 1632.6
Finance costs 24 (200.6) (217.7)
Finance income 24 97.0 68.7
Income from investments 25 33.8 15.6
Share of losses in associate 10 (2.4) -
Profit before tax 1283.6 1499.2
income tax 26 498.4 521.7
Profit after tax 785.2 977.5
Minority interest 4.1 10.4
Net profit for the year 7811 967.1
Basic earnings per share {cents) 27 1224 150.9
Fully diluted earnings per share (cents) 27 1216 150.0
Headline earnings per share (cents) 27 119.2 146.1
Fully diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 27 118.4 145.3
Dividends per share {cents) 28 '83.6 83.6
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

Notes R million R million
(restated)

Equity at beginning of year 5383.1 4 855.1
Changes in accounting policies and prior year restatement 4 (82.4) (18.5)
Changes in capital 589.8 9.2
Share capltal - share option scheme 0.2 Q.1
- new issue 3.2 —

- shares cancelled (0.5) —

Share premium - share opticn scheme 50.9 9.1
- new issus net of share issue expenses 684.3 -

- cancellation of share premium on shares cancelled (148.3) -
Changes in treasury shares (704.6) {0.5)
Consolidation of shares held by share purchase trust - 0.5)
Consolidation of shares held by the Black Management Trust (414.1) -
Consalidation of shares held by Red Caral Investments 23 (Propristary) Limited (290.5) -
Changes in non-distributable reserves {193.0) 453
Decrease in foreign currency translation reserve (108.5) (41.8)
Hyper-inflation capital adjustment 87.7) 88.7
Financial instruments - hedging 1.4 (1.8)
Share of non-distributable reserves in assaciate 1.8 -
Changes in accumulated profits 242.7 490.5
Net profit for the year 781.1 967.1
Ordinary shares - dividends 28 (635.1) (478.5)
Preference shares - dividends 28 0.1) ©.1)
Share buy-back (3.2) -
Equity at end of year 5235.6 5 383.1
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Group Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
Notes R million R million
(restated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 33.1 20134 2130.2
Income from investments 33.8 15.6
Interest received 97.0 68.7
Interest paid (193.5) (217.7)
Tax paid {424.3) (645.1)
Retirement benefit contributions and settlements {81.7) (88.4)
Replacement capital expenditure (347.8) {394.4)
Cash flow from operations 1096.9 868.9
Dividends paid (536.1) 477.3)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 560.8 3918

Cash flows from investing activities
Expansion capital expenditure (385.9) (601.2)
Intangible assets capitalised {(100.1) (49.6)
Acquisition of businesses 33.2 (79.5) (87.6)
Disposal of business 33.3 401.6 476.0
Increase in investment in subsidiaries - 0.9
Proceeds on realisation of investments - 39.7
Increase in non-current financial assets and investments (2.3) —
Proceeds on the sale of property, plant and equipment 334.7 61.7
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 168.5 (161.9)

Cash flows from financing activities
interest-bearing debt raised 326.7 717.0
Interest-bearing debt repaid (515.1) (1003.9
Share buy-back (152.0) -
Capital proceeds from issue of shares (net of share issue expenses) 34.0 9.2
Net cash outflow from financing activities (306.4) (277.7)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 422.9 (48.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (28.3) 17.2
Translation of cash in foreign subsidiaries (19.0) 25
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 334 375.6 (28.3)
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Accounting Policies
for the year ended 3C September

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are presented in South African rand, being the currency in which the majority of the group’s transactions are
denominated. The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
trading assets and liabilities to fair value and certain long-term assets which have been written down to recognise permanent diminutions
in value.

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. The principal accounting policies of the group have been applied corsistently with
the previous year, except for the changes set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, results and cash flow information of the company and its subsidiaries.
The results of subsidiaries, associate companies and joint ventures are included in the consolidated financial statements from the effective dates
of acquisition until the effective date of disposal.

The consclidated financial statements also include the assets, liabilities, results and cash flow information of special purpose entities where it can
be demonstrated that the group controls the entity. The results of special purpose entities are included in the consolidated financia! statements
from the date control is effected until the date such control is relinquished.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies have been eliminated.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Subsidiary companies are those companies in which the group has an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or ctherwise has the
power to exercise control.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary companies to bring their accounting policies into line with those
of the group.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of the exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS3 (AC140) are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

This represents a change in accounting palicy in the current year. Previously, the group released negative goodwill to income over a number of
accounting periods, based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted. Negative goodwill was reported as a deduction
from assets in the balance shest. In accordance with the transitional rules of IFRS3 (AC140), the carrying amount of negative goodwill at

1 Octaber 2004 has been derecognised, and has resulted in an adjustment to opening accumulated profits. Prior year amounts were not
restated.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised.
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4, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Associate companies are those companies in which the group holds a long-term equity interest and is in a position to exercise significant
influence, but not control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. The results of associate companies
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The carrying amount of such investments is
reduced to recognise any decline, other than a temporary decline, in the value of individual investments.

Where the group transacts with an associate, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

5. JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group and outside parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject to joint
control.

Joint venture arrangements undertaken in a separate entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The group reports its interests in jointly
controlled entities using proportionate consolidation, in terms of which the group’s share of the assets, liabilities, results and cash flow information
of jointly controlled entities are included in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis.

Where the group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

6. FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The individual financial statements of each group entity is presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are
expressed in South African rand, which is the functional currency of the group, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
staterments.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies, other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies), are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not restated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on the translation of monetary items, are included in the profit or loss for
the period. Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity-

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the group enters into derivative financial instruments. Further details are provided
in the accounting policy relating to financial instruments.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s foreign operations (including
comparatives) are expressed in South African rand using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet. Income and expense items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Equity is translated at the rate ruling on the date of acquisition.
Exchange differences arising are classified as equity and transferred to the foreign currency translation reserve. Such translation differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the operation is disposed of.
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Accounting Policies, continued
for the year ended 30 September

The financial statements of foreign operations that report in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are restated for the decrease in general
purchasing power of the currency at the balance sheet date before they are translated into South African rand.

Goodwill and fair valug adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

This represents a change in accounting policy in the current year. Previously, goodwill was translated at the exchange rate ruling on the date of
acquisition. Goodwill previously denominated in rand that relates to acquisitions whose functional currency are not rand denominated has been
restated to these respective functional currencies and translated at the closing rate. In accordance with the transitional rules in 1AS21, the group
has adopted this change prospectively, and an adjustment was made against opening accumulated profits. Prior year amounts were not restated.

7. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Discontinuing operations are significant, distinguishable components of the group that have been sold or are being considered under a formal
plan for disposal or discontinuance. Financial informaticn on discontinuing operations is disclosed separately from continuing operations and
comparative information is restated.

8. GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlied entity recognised at the
date of the acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

This represents a change in accounting policy in the current year. Previously, the group carried goodwill in its balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated amortisation losses. Amortisation was charged over the estimated useful life of the goodwill, subject
to a maximum of twenty years. The group has discontinued amortising goodwill, and the carrying amount of accumulated amortisation was set
off against the cost of goodwill. Prior year amounts were not restated.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goedwill is allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill aliocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro
rata of the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

This represents a change in accounting policy in the current year. Previously, goodwill was tested for impairment on a total acquisition basis.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwilt is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

9. INTANGIBLES

Acquired intangible assets, including trademarks, are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic life,
not exceeding twenty years.
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation. All direct costs, including finance costs relating to major
capital projects, are capitalised up to the date of commissioning. Where the recoverable amount of an asset has declined below its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect this decline in value.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, cther than freehold land, over their estimated useful economic lives,
using the straight-line method. Depreciation is not provided in respect of freghold fand.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the lesser of expected useful life or the term of the lease.

The rates of depreciation used are:

Freehold buildings 30 years
Leasehold buildings Lease term
Plant and equipment 310 15 years
Furniture and equipment 410 15 years
Motor vehicles 410 5 years

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

12. IMPAIRMENTS

On an annual basis, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses (except for goodwill), the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.

13. INVESTMENTS
Listed and unlisted investments, other than subsidiary, associate companies and jointly controfled entities, are classified as available for sale.

Listed and unlisted investments are initially measured at cost including transaction cost, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value
adjustments are recognised in the income statement. If fair value cannot be reliably measured, the investment is carried at cost, subject to an
impairment review at each balance sheet date.

Loans and advances receivable with a fixed maturity are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. They are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Loans and advances receivable that do not have a fixed maturity are measured at cost.
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Accounting Policies, continued
for the year ended 30 September

14. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making aliowance for slow-moving and redundant items. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable valus represents the estimated selling rrice less al
estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

15. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The group operates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit funds in compliance with respective local legislation. The assets of the
funds are held separately from those of the group and are administered either by trustees, which include elected employee representatives, or in
some cases by independent experts.

Defined benefit funds are actuarially valued at the balance sheet date, using methods appropriate to the underlying fund. Actuarial gains and
losses are amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of participating employees, using the corridor approach. Where any
deficit is identified it is funded by the group entity concerned by way of increased future contributions or by the payment of an actuarially
determined lump sum. Surpluses are only recognised where it is certain economic benefits will flow to the group. Past service costs are
recognised immediately to the extent the benefits are vested, otherwise they are expensed on a straight-line basis over the average period that
the benefits become vested. Statutory valuations are performed &t intervals of not more than three years.

Certain operations in African and European countries do not provide for retirement benefits through a formal statutory funding process. These
operations provide for employee benefits in terms of their constructive obligation 1o do so. Such obligations are provided for in full in the year in
which the obligation arises and expensed through the income statement.

Payments to defined contribution funds are expensed as incurred.

16. POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS

The group policy is not to provide post-retirement medical benefits for employees who joined the company after 1 June 1996. The obligation
in respect of pensioner and future post-retirement medical benefits to persons employed before the change in policy is treated as a defined
benefit plan.

17. EQUITY AND EQUITY-RELATED COMPENSATION BENEFITS

The Nampak Share Option Scheme allows certain group employees the option to acquire shares in Nampak Limited over a prescribed period.
The exercise price of these options equals the market price of the underlying shares on the trading day immediately preceding the granting of the
option. Consequently, no compensation cost or obligation is recognised. When the options are exercised, share capital is increased by the
proceeds received less directly attributable issue costs.

18. TAXATION

The charge for the year is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items, which are non-deductible or non-taxable. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is provided for using the balance sheet liability method. A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temgorary
differences can be utiised. Such assets and ligbilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial
recognition of other assets and liabilities, which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit at the time of the transaction.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability settled. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised directly in equity.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the group’s balance sheet when the group has become a party to contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables are stated at their nominal value, reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost that is deemed to be fair value. For financial statements purposes bank overdrafts are offset against
cash and cash equivalents.

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption, are accounted for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The group uses derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign currency forward contracts and commodity futures, to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency and market fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and forecast transactions. The fair value of these derivatives is
recorded and remeasured at each reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows relating to firm
commitments and forecasted transactions are recognised directly in equity. If the hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the
recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had
previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to
net proftt or loss for the period.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
they arise.

Equity-linked instruments issued in the group’s Black Economic Empowerment transaction have been accounted for in terms of AC125 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and AC133 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

20. PROVISIONS

Provisions are raised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can e made of the amount of the obligation.
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Accounting Policies, continued
for the year ended 30 September

21. OFFSET

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and disclosed on a net basis in the consolidated balance sheet when there is legal right to set off and
there is either an intention to settle on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the ligbility simultanecusly.

22, REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered or title has passed. Revenue comprises the net invoiced value of goods delivered and
services rendered during the year and excludes value added tax.

Where group companies act as agents and are remunerated on a commission basis, only the commission income, not the value of business
handled, is recognised as revenue.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established, except in
circumstances where severe restrictions impair the ability of the underlying operation from transferring funds to the group. In these circumstances,
dividends are recognised on a cash receipt basis,

23. LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the group’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return to the group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income staterent over the term of the relevant lease sc as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the abligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

24. RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND RELATED EXPENDITURE
Research costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Expenditure on development is charged to income in the period in which it is incurred, except where a clearly defined project is undertaken and it
is reasonably anticipated that development costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs are recognised as
an intangible asset and amortised over the estimated useful economic life of the project from the date of commencement of the commercial
operation, subject to a maximum of five years.

25. ABNORMAL ITEMS

Abnormal items are defined as items of income and expenditure, which do not arise from normal trading activities or are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance for the period.
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26. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

27. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

For management purposes, the group is organised into business clusters on the basis of raw material input into the packaging. These clusters
are the basis on which the group reports its primary segment information. The principal activities of the clusters are as follows:

Metals and glass - manufacture of beverage cans, food cans, aerosol cans, other metal packaging and glass bottles.

Paper - manufacture of corrugated boxes, folding cartons, toilet tissue and paper merchanting.

Plastics — manufacture of plastic bottles, crates and drums, checkout bags, tubs and tubes and a full range of flexible plastic products.
NamiTech - secure business solutions, smart cards and cheques.

Group services - head office activities, procurement, treasury and property rental,

In addition, the businesses are grouped by geographical location. The main geographic regions identified are South Africa, Rest of Africa and
Europe. Geographic spiit is determined by location of the operating assets.

The basis of segmental allocation is determined as follows:

Revenue that can be directly attributed to a segment and the relevant portion of revenue that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a
segment, whether from sales to external customers or from transactions with other segments of the group.

Profit from operations that can be directly attributed to a segment and the relevant portion of the profit that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to a segment, including profit relating to sales to external customers and expenses relating to transactions with other segments of the
group. Segment profits exclude expenses that arise at group level and refate to the group as a whole,

Operating assets are those assets that are employed by a segment in its operating activities and that either are directly attributable to the
segment or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Operating assets exclude investment in associates, tax assets, bank
balances and cash and unlisted investments and loans.

Operating liabilities are those liabilities that result from the operating activities of a segment and that either are directly attributable o the segment
or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Operating liabilities exclude interest-bearing debt, tax liabilities and the long-term
retirement benefit obligation.

28. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been restated to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. Details of these
restatements have been included in the relevent notes to the annual financial statements.

Comparative figures have been restated to show the effect of the restatement of operating leases on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
Details of the restaternent have been included in note 4 to the annual financial statements.



Note 1
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Treasury risk management

A Treasury Management Committee, reporting to the chief financial
officer, is responsible for considering and managing the group’s day-to-
day financial market risks by adopting strategies within the guidelines set
by the Audit Committee.

The group has adopted the Value at Risk methodology for evaluating
financial market risks. The main risk areas the group is exposed to are
interest rates, liquidity, currency and commodity prices.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the possibility that the group may suffer financial loss
if either a fluctuating interest rate or fixed interest rate position is entered
into and interest rates move adversely. The group uses swaps, options,
forward rate agreements and other standard market instruments to
manage this risk. The risk profile of financial assets and liabilities at
balance sheet date is detailed below:

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 September

Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate Net liability/
liabilities liabilities assets assets (asset)
R million R millien R million R million R million
South African rand 200.1 288.0 (429.7) - 58.4
Pounds 457.2 - (49.5) - 407.7
Euros 87.9 - (6.5) - 81.4
US dollars 15.7 - (12.4) - 3.3
Other currencies 375 425 (1.7 - 783
Total at 30 September 2005 798.4 330.5 {499.8) - 629.1
South African rand 649.7 — (68.9) — 580.8
Pounds 807.1 - (197.3) — 609.8
Euros 168.0 - (69.8) 88.2
US dollars - - (18.4) (22.4) {40.8)
Other currencies 19.8 2.0 (15.5) 23.2) (16.9)
Total at 30 September 2004 1644.6 2.0 (362.9) (45.9) 12311




OO O0O000beooeoe e

(

Note 1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the possibility that the group may suffer financial loss
through liquid funds not being available or that excessive finance costs
must be paid to obtain funds to meet payment requirements. The group
manages this risk through forecasting and monitoring cash flow
requirements on a daily basis, and by maintaining sufficient undrawn
facilities. Significant liquid resources were held at the year-end.

The group had the following undrawn facilities available at the balance
sheet date:

South Africa Europe Africa Total
R million R million R million R million
Expiry period at 30 September 2005
One year 2135.0 - 205.4 23404
Two to five years - 553.8 - 553.8
Total 2135.0 553.8 205.4 2894.2
Expiry period at 30 September 2004
One vear 1320.0 — 93.8 14138
Two to five years — 592.2 - 592.2
Total 1320.0 5%2.2 938 2006.0

Currency risk management

Currency risk is the possibility that the group may suffer financial loss as
a consequence of a depreciation in a measurement currency relative to
a foreign currency prior to payment of a commitment in that foreign
currency or of the measurement currency strengthening prior to receiving
payment in that foreign currency. The group also has translation risk
arising from the consolidation of foreign entities into South African rands.

The group uses swaps, options and other financial instruments, in
particular forward contracts, to manage transactional currency risks.
Specific translation risks are managed through the selective use of
options and hedge positions. Net currency exposures and hedging
positions are centrally controlled and managed for South African
operations. The currency exposure of the group’s European operations
is centrally controlied and managed through the United Kingdom.
Speculative positions are not permitted.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued
for the year ended 30 September

Note 1
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency risk management (continued)
All imports and exports are fully covered at balance sheet date. The values of open forward contracts entered into at 30 September are:

Average 2005 2004 .
Imports contract rate R million R million
US dollars 6.47 198.0 271.6
Euro 8.08 134.8 205.2
UK pounds 11.65 4.7 14.8
Other 39.7 41,0
Total 377.2 532.6
Exports
US dollars 6.58 23.1 45.2
Euro - 44,0
Other 8.2 21
Total 31.3 915
Currency conversion guide at 30 September 2005 2004
Income statement
US dollars 6.2430 6.6080
Euro 7.9271 8.0360
UK pounds 11.5308 11.8394
Balance sheet
US dollars 6.3530 8.4415
Euro 7.6427 7.9887
UK pounds 11.2130 11.6379

Commodity price risk management

Commodity price risk is the risk that the group may suffer financial loss when a fluctuating price contract obligation is entered into and commodity prices
increase or when a fixed price agreement is entered into and commodity prices fall. The following open commodity positions were held at 30 September:

2005 2004
R million R million
Aluminium futures 43.4 37.9

The group uses derivative instruments, including forward agreements and futures, to hedge commoadity price risk.
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Note 1
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk management

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
investments and trade debtors. The credit risk on liquid funds and
derivative financial instruments is limited because the group’s
counterparties are with major banks of high standing.

Trade debtors comprise a large, widespread customer base. Ongoing
credit evaluations on the financial condition of customers are performed
and, where appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased
or provisions made.

The group does not consider there to be any significant concentration of
credit risk which has not been insured or adequately provided for at the
balance sheet date.

Fair value of financial instruments

The group’s financial instruments consist mainiy of investments, bank
balances, deposits and cash, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, interest bearing debt and derivative instruments.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instrument:

Investments - the fair value of investments is based on quoted bid
prices, or the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at
market related interest rates.

Bank balances, deposits and cash - the carrying value approximates
fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
assets.

Trade and other receivables - the fair value of receivables
approximates the carrying value as market-related rates of interest are
charged on outstanding balances.

Trade and other payables - the carrying value approximates fair value
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial liabilities.

Interest-bearing debt - the fair value of long-term debt is based
on discounted cash flows using the effective interest rate method.
The carrying value of short-term debt approximates fair value due
to the short period to maturity of these instruments.

Derivative instruments ~ the fair vaiue of derivative instruments is
based upon mark-to-market valuations.




Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued
for the year ended 30 September

Note 1
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The following fair value derivative instruments have been raised on the balance sheet:

2005 2004
R million R million
Interest rate swaps - 0.8
Options 0.1 09
Forward exchange contracts 8.6 3.1
Commodity contracts - 22
Total 8.7 7.0
Maturity profile of financial instruments
The maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities at 30 September 2005 were as follows:
Carrying Cument 1-2 2-3 3-4 Over 4
value year years years years years
At 30 September 2005 Notes R million R mitiion R million R million R million R million
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets 8 164.2 - 108.5 33 33 49.1
Trade and other receivables 12 2516.2 2516.2 - - - -
Bank balances, deposits and cash 632.7 632.7 - - - -
Total 3313.1 31489 108.5 3.3 3.3 49.1
Financial liabilities
Non-current interest-bearing debt 16 929.7 - 34.8 564.8 18.6 311.5
Trade and other payables 19 2861.9 2 861.9 - - - -
Current interest-bearing debt 16 281.0 281.0 - - - -
Total 40726 31429 34.8 564.8 18.6 311.5
At 30 September 2004
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets 8 43.8 - - - - 43.6
Trade and other receivables 12 2688.2 2688.2 — - - -
Bank balances, deposits and cash 699.5 899.5 - — - -
Total 34313 33877 — - - 436
Financial liabilities
Non-current interest-bearing debt 16 10915 - 646.5 10.8 5.9 428.3
Trade and other payables 19 2830.2 2830.2 - — - —
Current interest-bearing debt 16 752.9 752.9 - — - —
Total 468746 3583.1 646.5 10.8 59 428.3

114
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Note 2
RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION

2.1 Defined contribution funds
Membership and costs for each fund are as follows:

Contribution
Country Members costs
R miltion
Nampak Group Pension Fund RSA 2148 54.6
Nampak Contributory Provident Fund RSA 4 697 40.0
Metal Box Provident Fund RSA 3488 350
Kohler Provident Fund RSA 599 95
Metal Box Namibia Pension Fund Namibia 18 02
Nampak Pic Retirement Benefit Scheme UK 160 7.1
M.Y. Group Stakeholder Pension Plan UK 267 2.1
11377 148.5
External funds
External funds Europe 873 0.5
Industry funds RSA 2520 8.5
3393 8.0
Totals 14 770 157.5
2.2 Defined benefit funds
With effect 7 December 2001 the Pension Funds Second Amendment Bill
was enacted in South Africa. In terms of these amendments any surplus
residing in pension funds governed by the South African Pension Funds Act
of 1956 must be allocated on a fair basis to current and past members of the
respective funds. At 30 September this surplus and the aliocation thereof has
not yet been determined. Accordingly, no surplus has been recognised by
the group in respect of these funds in the current year.
Rest Post-
South of retirement
Africa Europe Africa” medical
Assumptions
Discount rate 8.7% 51% - 9.2%
Consumer price inflation (ong-term) 4.7% 2.5% - 4.7%
Expected return on fund assets 8.7% 5.8% — 9.2%
Rate of compensation increase 5.7% 4.0% - -
Pension increases 4.7% 2.5% - -
Healthcare cost trend — - - 7.3%
Membership data
Total membership 28 2076 - 6 487
Agreed employer contribution rate 18.0% 10.3% - -
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Note 2

RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION (continued)

2.2 Defined benefit funds (continued)

Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

Rest Post-
South of retirement
Africa Europe Africa* medical Total

R million R mitlion R million R million R million
Valuation results
Fair value of fund assets 22.9 974.9 - 339.3 1337.1
Present value of obligation (22.9) (1215.8) - (639.1) (1877.8)
Funded status: deficit - (240.9) - (299.8) (540.7)
Unrecognised net actuarial {gain)/loss 1.1 119.9 - 169.6 288.4
Net post-retirement obligation at end of year (1.1) (121.0) - {(130.2) (252.3)
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Current service cost 0.7 153 0.1 15.1 3t1.2
Interest cost 2.1 63.9 02 58.4 124.6
Expected return on assets @.1) (47.8) 0.2) (31.7) (81.6)
Net curtailment loss - 102.7 - - 102.7
Recognised actuarial loss - 12.2 1.7 9.1) 4.8
Net pericdic pension cost 0.7 146.5 1.8 32.7 181.7
Movements in the balance sheet
Balance at beginning of year (1.4) (47.0) 37 (117.2) (161.9)
Pension cost ©.7) (146.5) (1.8) (32.7) (181.7)
Employer contributions 1.0 64.6 — 16.1 817
Reclassification to prepayments - - 2.2) — 2.2)
Disposal of business - — — 3.6 36
Translation adjustment - 7.9 03 - 8.2
Balance at end of year (1.1) (121.0) - (130.2) (252.3)
Actual return on plan assets 36 172.1 0.8 0.4) 176.2

*The Kenya Pension Fund has been converted to a defined contribution fund
in the current year, and the balance of the surplus was transferred to

prepayments to fund pension fund contributions.
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Note 2
RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION (continued)

2.2 Defined benefit funds (continued)
The statutory actuarial valuations of the defined benefit funds are as follows:

Fair value  Present value

Valuation of assets of liabilities Valuation

date R million R million basis

Nampak Group Pension Fund Feb-01* 20.5 188 AA
Nampak Plc Pension Plan Sep-02 242.7 224.4 MFR
Nampak Pic Staff Pension Plan Sep-02 187.4 212.8 MFR
Malbak Group of Companies Pension Fund Aug-02 3.0 2.5 AA
M.Y. Group Stakeholder Pension Plan Jul-02 3788 377.8 MFR

AA: attained age method MFR: minirum funding requirements

The latest actuarial valuations in respect of the defined benefit funds found them in sound financial condition. In arriving at their findings, the actuaries have
taken into account reasonable long-term estimates of inflation, future increases in wages, salaries and pensions and sustainable investment returns.
Funds denominated in a foreign currency have been translated at the rate rufing on bafance sheet date.

The valuations listed above are not necessarily the valuations used in determining the surplus or obligation recognised on the balance sheet.

“The statutory actuarial valuation at February 2004 has been carried out, but has not yet been finalised due to uncertainties regarding certain provisions in the
Pension Funds Second Amendment Act 2007. As a result it is not possible to accurately determine the fiabilities of the fund.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued ®
for the year ended 30 September .
®
®
Revenue Profit from operations Operating margin
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
R million R million R million R million % %
Note 3
SEGMENTAL REPORT
Metals and Glass 4521.2 4602.7 665.0 562.2 14.7 12.2
Africa | 4set2 o027 665.0 562.2 147 12.2
Paper 7329.7 §287.7 89.5 4331 1.2 52
Africa 47447 54727 221.8 348.0 47 6.4
Europe 2585.0 28150 {(132.3) 85.1 {5.1) 3.0
Plastics 3758.7 4526.9 481.2 229.8 12.8 5.1
Africa 2685.2 2678.3 187.8 265.1 7.0 9.9
Europe 1073.5 1848.6 293.4 (35.3) 27.3 (1.9
NamiTech - 315.7 - 2531 - 80.2
Group services (26.5) (238.4) 120.1 154.4
Africa - - 50.9 110.3
Europe 1723 218.3 69.2 441
Intergroup eliminations (198.8) (458.7)
Total 15 583.1 17 494.6 1355.8 16326 8.7 9.3
Geographical analysis
South Africa 11 270.5 12 183.5 1054.0 14110 9.4 11.6
Rest of Africa 680.6 885.9 71.5 127.7 10.5 14.4
Europe 3830.8 4881.9 230.3 93.9 6.0 1.9
Intergroup eliminations {198.8) (456.7)
Total 15 583.1 17 484.6 1 355.8 1632.6 8.7 8.3
Comparatives for operating assets have been restated,
due to an error in the allocation of operating assets
following the introduction of the new consolidation tool.
Details of these reclassifications are shown below:
Paper
Europe
Plastics
Europe
Group services
Africa
Europe
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Depreciation and

EBITDA Operating assets Operating liabilities Capital expenditure amortisation
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
R million R million R million R million R million R million R million R million R million R million
816.7 7086 24944 22054 795.9 616.1 131.1 200.1 151.7 146.4
816.7 7086 2494.4 20054 7959 616.1 131.1 2001 1517 1464 |

361.8 7198 40575 41555  1057.7 12086 4043 446.1 2723 286.7
350.0 849 22179 24200 8198 838.3 267.0 295.5 137.2 136.9
2.8 2349 17796 1735 237.9 460.3 137.3 150.6 185.1 149.8
666.0 776 25068 23307 691.0 890.3 244.6 2338 1848 247.8
3081 372.8 1540.6 13635 524.5 4763 2065 185.2 115.3 1077
362.9 104.8 966.2 967.2 166.5 4140 38.1 4856 69.5 140.1
- 2741 - - - - - 12.1 - 21.0
2126 253.4 629.2 15446 459.0 157.5 53.8 1736 92.5 99.0
142.8 200.0 609.0 13088 3972 79.4 53.7 1736 91.9 %7
69.8 44.4 20.2 235.8 618 78.1 0.1 - 06 03
2 057.1 24335 96879 102562 30086 29625 8338 10657 701.3 800.9
1529.1 18869 63249 67350 23808 18379 609.6 790.2 475.1 475.9
92.5 162.5 597.0 582.7 156.6 172.0 487 76.3 21.0 34.8
4355 384.1 27660 29385 466.2 952.4 1755 199.2 205.2 290.2
2 057.1 24335 96879 102562 30036 29625 833.8 1085.7 7013 8009

(121.0)

(121.0)

2 775.2)

28962

49508

(2 054.6)
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
R million R million
Note 4
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT
The group has changed its accounting policies in respect of goodwill to comply with the requirements of
AC140 (IFRS3) - Business Combinations, 1AS36 - Impairment of Assets and IAS21 — Accounting for the Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange rates. In line with the transitional provisions of AC140 (IFRS3), accumulated
amortisation was set off against the cost of goodwill and the revised carrying amount is no longer amortised.
The carrying amount of negative goodwill was written off against opening accumulated profits. Goodwill
previously denominated in rand that relates to acquisitions whose functional currency are not rand denominated
have been restated to these respective functional currencies and translated at the closing rate in terms of the
transitional provisions of IAS21.
Comparative figures were not restated. The aggregate effect of the changes in accounting policies are as follows:
Balance sheet:
Decrease in foreign currency translation reserve (150.4)
Increase in accumulated profits 68.0
Net decrease in reserves (82.4)
Represented by:
Goodwill restated in functional currency and translated at closing rate 150.4
Negative goodwill written off {68.0)
82.4
Income statement:
Impairment of goodwill ((FRS3 and IAS21) 123.4
Net decrease in profit after tax 1234
Circular 7/2005 was issued by SAICA on 2 August 2005, providing clarification on the interpretation of
IAS17 - Leases. As a result, leases are now recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Previously lease expenses were recognised on a basis which reflected the cash flows during that period.
Comparative figures have been restated. The aggregate effect of the change is as follows:
Balance sheet:
Decrease in accumulated profits (16.7) (16.5)
Represented by:
Increase in non-current liabilities 234 23.6
Increase in current liabilities 0.2 -
Decrease in deferred tax (6.9) 7.1
16.7 16.5
Income statement:
Decrease in rental expenses - -
Deferred tax 0.2 -
Net decrease in profit after tax 0.2 -

The net effect of these changes is a decrease of 19.3 cents per share and no effect on headline earnings per share in the current year.
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2005 2004
R million R million
Note 5
CHANGE IN ESTIMATE
Following a review of the estimation process and availability of new information, the group changed the basis on
which provisions for the write down of inventory to net realisable value was calculated. As a resuit, the net
realisable value of inventory increased as follows:
Balance sheet:
Increase in inventories 59.7
Increase in deferred tax {17.3)
42.4
Income statement:
Increase in profit before tax 59.7
Deferred tax (17.3)
Net increase in profit after tax 42.4
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

Freehold Plant, Capitalised

land and Leasehold equipment leased plant

buildings buildings  and vehicles  and vehicles Total

R million R million A million R mitlion R million
Note 6
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Cost
Balance at 30 September 2003 1259.6 150.0 8 233.1 0.7 9643.4
Additions 255 8.9 9863.2 701 10657
Acquisition of businesses 53 0.3 45.0 — 506
Disposals 25.2 0.6 262.6 - 288.4
Disposal of businesses 1.7 8.2 196.5 — 206.4
Impairment loss - - 127.9 — 127.9
Reclassification of assets - — (276.6) - (276.6)
Translation differences, hyper-inflation and other movements 5141 {20.7) 148.5 - 176.9
Balance at 30 September 2004 1314.6 127.7 8524.2 70.8 100373
Additions 39.4 33 662.5 285 7337
Acquisition of businesses — - 74.0 — 740
Disposals 135.9 1.3 266.1 10.9 414.2
Disposal of businesses 198.1 03 11619 - 1360.3
Impairment loss - - 28.9 — 288
Reversal of impairment loss - — 5.0 - 50
Translation differences, hyper-inflation and other movements (72.7) (5.1) (213.7) 2.4 (289.1)
Balance at 30 September 2005 947.3 124.3 7 5951 90.8 8757.5
Depreciation
Balance at 30 September 2003 502.6 50.4 48340 0.7 5387.7
Acquisition of businesses 0.1 - 0.3 - 04
Charge for the year 23.2 3.8 6686.9 16.1 710.0
Depreciation on disposal 9.6 0.5 230.3 - 2404
Disposal of businesses - 2.3 110.9 - 113.2
Translation differences, hyper-inflation and other movements 6.0 (10.3) 69.0 - 64.7
Balance at 30 September 2004 522.3 41.1 52290 16.8 5809.2
Charge for the year 18.1 3.8 807.5 155 644.7
Depreciation on disposal 57.8 1.3 230.1 5.4 294.6
Disposal of businesses 135.5 0.2 1068.0 - 12047
Translation differences, hyper-inflation and other movements 9.2) (0.8) (134.6) 6.4 (138.2)
Balance at 30 September 2005 337.9 424 44028 333 48164
Net book value at 30 September 2005 608.4 81.8 31923 57.5 3941.1
Net book value at 30 September 2004 792.3 86.6 32952 54.0 42281

Included in these balances are investment properties with a net book value of R17.1 miliion (2004: R11.7 million). The open market value of these
investment properties totalled R21.8 million (2004: R17.1million).

The open market value of the group’s freehold land and buildings, as determined by The Property Partnership at 30 September 2005 totalled
R1 143 million {2004: R1 185 million). A schedule of the group’s properties is available to users of the financial statements on receipt of a written request.

The insured value of the plant, equipment and vehicles at 30 September 2005 was R19 248.3 million (2004: R19 246.3 million).
Refer to note 16 for detalls of property, plant and equipment encumbered.
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Negative ERP

Goodwill goodwill systems Other Total

R million R million R million R million R million
Note 7
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Balance at 30 September 2003 1257.8 (210.4) - 345 10819
Additions 1.7 - 47.9 - 49.6
Acquisition of businesses 63.3 0.3) - - 63.0
Disposal of businesses 149.8 3.7 - - 146.1
Reclassification of assets - — 2766 - 276.8
Translation differences and other movements (26.5) 07 - 0.7) (26.5)
Balance at 30 September 2004 1146.5 (208.3) 324.5 33.8 1298.5
Changes in accounting policies (note 4) {298.1) 212.1 - - (87.0)
Reclassification of negative goodwill 5.8 5.8) - - -
Additions - - 89.2 0.9 100.1
Disposals - - - 24.2 24.2
impairment l0ss 123.4 - - - 123.4
Translation differences and other movements 7.7 - - 1.3 (16.4)
Balance at 30 September 2005 7121 - 4237 11.8 1147.6
Amortisation
Balance at 30 September 2003 104.3 (138.0) - 23.3 (10.4)
Charge for the year 66.7 6.2) 25.0 5.4 90.9
Disposal of businesses 25.4 - - — 254
Translation differences and other movements 3.1 0.1 - 0.2) 3.0
Balance at 30 September 2004 1487 (144.1) 25.0 285 58.1
Changes in accounting policies (note 4) (148.7) 1441 - - (4.6)
Charge for the year - - 518 4.8 56.6
Depreciation on disposal - - - 242 24.2
Translation differences and other movements - — - 1.8 1.8
Balance at 30 September 2005 - - 76.8 10.9 87.7
Carrying value at 30 September 2005 7121 - 346.9 0.9 1059.9
Carrying value at 30 September 2004 997.8 (62.2) 299.5 53 12404
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued
for the year ended 30 September

Note 7
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented befow.

Cost Impairment Total
R million R million R million
At 30 September 2005
Metals and glass
Africa 144.8 - 144.8
Paper
Africa 42.6 - 42.6
Europe 535.2 120.3 414.9
Plastics
Africa 109.8 - 109.8
832.4 120.3 71241

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by management for the next five years. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the relevant markets.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

Rest of
South Africa Africa Europe
Growth rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Discount rate (pre-tax) 13.3% 20.0% 8.9%
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2005 2004

R million R million
Note 8
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Available-for-sale
(Refer to Annexure B for detalls)
Unlisted investments at fair value
Cost 18.5 14.3
Fair value adjustment (3.6) 2.7
Balance at end of year 14.9 17.0
Originated Ioans
- Loan to minority shareholder 14.9 14.9
- Deferred consideration on the disposal of properties 105.2 -
- Equipment sale receivables 15.6 -
— Other loans 13.6 1.7
Total loans 149.3 26.6
Total 164.2 43.6
The prior year figures have been restated to ensure comparability of information between years.
The effect of the restatements are as follows:
Decrease in cost of unlisted investments at fair value 3.4)
Increase in other originated loans 9.5
Decrease in joint ventures not consclidated {note 9) ®.1)
Directors’ valuation 164.2 436
Note 9
INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
{Refer to Annexure A for details)
Nampak's share of joint ventures
Income 323.8 420.4
Expenses 30141 403.4
Total assets 190.6 295.9
Total liabilities 93.2 142.4
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
R million R million
Note 10
INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
(Refer to Annexure A for details)
Cost of investment in associate 1.5 -
Share of post-acquisition losses 2.4) -
Share of post-acquisition non-distributable reserves 1.8 -
0.9 -
Nampak's share of associates
Income 49.0 -
Expenses 51.4 -
Total assets 126.6 -
Total liabilities 124.6 -
Note 11
INVENTORIES
Raw materials 775.2 515.7
Work in progress 184.7 210.8
Finished goods 817.3 979.9
Consumables 272.7 349.5
Total 2049.9 2 055.9
Note 12
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 2108.6 2 358.6
Prepayments 139.4 168.2
Deferred consideration on the disposal of properties 112.1 —
Cther 156.1 161.4
Total 2516.2 2688.2
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2005 2004

R million R million
Note 13
CAPITAL
Share capital
Authorised:
745 000 000 (2004: 700 000 0CQ) ordinary shares of 5 cents each 37.3 350
100 000 6.5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each 0.2 0.2
400 000 6% cumulative preference shares of R2 each 0.8 0.8
31 857 200 preferred ordinary shares of 5 cents each 1.6
100 redeemable preference sharas of 5 cents each -
Total 39.9 36.0
Issued.
669 313 827 (2004: 641 574 291) ordinary shares of 5 cents each 334 32.1
100 000 6.5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each 0.2 0.2
400 000 6% cumulative preference shares of R2 each 0.8 0.8
31 857 195 preferred ordinary shares of 5 cents each 1.6
Total 36.0 33.1
60 025 764 ordinary shares (2004: 51 088 130) have been set aside for employees’ share schemes.
The comparative number of shares set aside have been restated o take into account options
exercised by retirees and former employees.
The preferred ordinary shares will convert to ordinary shares on the earliest of 31 January 2011, or the
date on which Red Coral Investments 23 (Proprietary) Limited is obliged to redeem all the preference
shares (refer note 16), upon an event of default, in accordance with the terms of the preference share
agreements.
The preferred ordinary shares will confer on the holders the right to receive a cumulative fixed annual
dividend of 100 cents payable in equal instalments of 50 cents each on 31 January and 31 July each
year up to 31 January 2011, with each distribution ranking ahead of those of the ordinary shares.
Share premium 2 596.7 2009.8
Treasury shares (705.1) 0.5)
27 369 195 ordinary shares held by the Nampak Black Management Share Trust #14.1) -
57 000 ordinary shares held by the Nampak 1979 Share Purchase Scheme 0.5) {0.5)
31 857 195 preferred ordinary shares held by Red Coral Investments 23 (Proprietary) Limited
on behalf of broad-based participants in Nampak’s Black Economic Empowerment scheme (290.5) -
Total 1927.6 20424
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R million R million
Note 14
NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Balance at beginning of year (249.6) (294.9)
Changes in accounting policies (note 4) (150.4) -
Movements in non-distributable reserves (193.0) 45.3
Balance at end of year (593.0) (249.6)
Comprising:
Foreign currency translation reserve (579.7) (320.8)
Hyper-inflation capital adjustment (15.1) 728
Financial instruments - hedging (0.2) (1.6)
Share of non-distributable reserves in associate 1.8 -
Other 0.2 0.2
Total (593.0) (249.6)
Note 15
ACCUMULATED PROFITS
Balance at beginning of year 3590.3 3116.3
Changes in accounting policies and prior year restatement (note 4) 68.0 (16.5)
Changes in accumulated profits 242.7 490.5
Balance at end of year 3901.0 3590383
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2005 2004
R million R million
Note 16
INTEREST-BEARING DEBT Redeemable/ Year-end
repayable  interest rates
Secured loans!
- fareign 2006/2009 4% t0 6% 579.4 1042.6
Unsecured loans
- local 2010 11.0% 18.9 14.9
- foreign 20086/2009 26.0% 6.6 2.4
Capitalised finance leases?
- local 2009 8% to 9% 58.6 53.2
- foreign 2008 4.0% 21 3.5
Non-recourse debt?
- local 2010 81%t09.4% 288.0 -
953.6 11166
Less: instalments due for repayment within one vyear, reflected as short-term loans 23.9 251
Net long term 929.7 10915
T Interest-bearing debt is secured by the following assets:
R1.7 million {2004: R5.5 million) debt is secured by the encumbrance of immovable properties, plant and equipment having
a book velue of R2.3 million (2004 R26.7 million).
R542.0 miflion (2004: R1 037.1 million) debt is secured by a guarantee issued by Nampak Holdings (UK) plc (NHUK) and its
subsidiaries. The facility is subject to covenants relating to interest cover, gearing and liquidity of the NHUK group.
2 [ ease fiabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.
# The non-recourse debt relates to the preference share funding obtained by Red Coral Investments 23 (Proprietary) Limited to
fund the purchase of preferred ordinary shares in Nampak Limited as part of the Black Economic Empowerment transaction
entered into during the year. There is no recourse to Nampak Limited or any of its subsidiaries in respact of these borrowings.
The debt is subject to covenants based on the Nampak share price.
Short term and current
Current portion of interest-bearing debt 55 2.1
Current portion of capitalised finance leases 18.4 23.0
Amounts due to bankers 2571 727.8
Total short term and current 281.0 752.9
Total interest-bearing debt 12107 1844.4
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

Note 16
INTEREST-BEARING DEBT (continued)
Summary of liabilities by year of redemption or payment *Total Local Foreign
Total owing at 30 September 2005 953.6 365.5 588.1
2008 23.9 18.7 5.2
2007 348 217 13.1
Repayable during the year ending 30 September 2008 564.8 134 551.4
2009 18.6 9.3 8.3
2010 onwards 3115 3024 9.1
*Group liabilities including redemptions and repayments within one year
Summary of capitalised finance leases minimum lease payments
by year of redemption or payment Total Local Foreign
Total owing at 30 September 2005 60.7 58.6 2.1
2006 18.4 17.4 1.0
Minimum lease payments repayable during 2007 18.4 17.4 1.0
the year ending 30 September 2008 123 12.2 0.1
2009 8.2 8.2 -
2010 onwards 34 3.4 -




2005 2004

R million R million
Note 17
FIXED ESCALATION OPERATING LEASE ACCRUAL
Operating leases straight lined 23.6 23.6
Less: Current portion (included in Trade and other payables — note 19) 0.2 -
Total 23.4 23.6
Note 18
DEFERRED TAX
Accelerated wear and tear for tax purposes on plant and equipment and trademarks 523.0 485.6
Provisions and prepayments (130.2) {108.0)
Hyper-inflation adjustment 11.4 417
Deferred capital gain 95.8 -
Other 9.1 (7.8)
Estimated tax losses (11.5) (12.9)
Net deferred tax liability 497.6 3986
Reconciliation between deferred tax opening and closing balance:
Deferred tax liability at beginning of year 398.6 335.0
Change in accounting policy - (7.1)
Taxation rate adjustment (10.4) -
Utilisation of tax losses (1.4) 17
Hyper-inflation adjustment 8.8 28.2
Originating temporary differences on disposal of businesses - 1.4
Net originating temporary differences on plant, equipment and other 1434 23.0
Translation (41.4) 6.4
Net deferred tax liability at end of year 497.6 398.6
Analysed between:
Deferred tax assets (10.6} (11.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 508.2 4100
Net deferred tax liability at end of year 497.6 398.6
Note 19
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 1726.8 1693.3
Accruals 931.9 907.8
Other 194.5 2221
Financial instruments fair value 8.7 7.0
Total 2861.9 2830.2
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued
for the year ended 30 September

Restruc- Customer
Unbundling turing Rebates claims Other Total
R million R million R million R million R miltion R million
Note 20
PROVISIONS
Opening balance at 1 October 2003 43.8 69.5 13.0 19.6 12.8 1568.7
Additions - 254 3.4 58 0.4 35.1
Usage - 34.5 10.2 25 1.9 49.1
Reversals - 33.4 - 2.3 - 357
Translation - ©.2) - 0.1) - 0.3)
Balance at 30 September 2004 43.8 26.8 6.2 20.6 11.3 108.7
Additions - 58.5 12.2 10.5 1.6 82.8
Usage 0.1) (31.4) {5.4) (14.3) — 51.2)
Reversals — {0.6) {0.2) (8.1) {11.3) 21.2)
Translation - ©.1) 0.1) 0.6) - 0.8)
Closing balance at September 2005 43.7 53.2 12.7 7.1 1.6 118.3

The utilisation of the unbundiing provision is uncertain. All other provisions are expected to be utilised in full during the next financial year.

Unbundting

These provisions relate to potential liabilities identified when the Malbak group unbundled its non-packaging businesses to shareholders.

Restructuring

Provisions for restructuring are recognised when the group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. Restructuring provisions
only include those direct expenditures, which are necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the group.
Rebates

Rebates are paid under formal agreements with certain customers based on the achievement of agreed sales or volume levels. Where the period of the
agreement does not coincide with the group's financial year, the difference between the expected rebate payable and that actually achieved at

30 September is provided for.

Customer claims

Amounts expected to be payable under customer claims in respect of packaging already supplied.

Other

These provisions relate to guarantees or warranties on the sale of businesses or divisions.

132




2005 2004

R million R million
Note 21
REVENUE
(Inter-group transactions and VAT are excluded)
Net invoiced sales 15 583.1 17 494.6
Comprising:
Continuing operations 15 583.1 17.178.9
Discontinued operations - 3157
Note 22
PROFIT BEFORE ABNORMAL ITEMS
is stated after taking account of the following items:
22.1 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees 1941 19.6
Audit fees in respect of IFRS 29 -
Expenses 0.9 08
Tax services 3.8 5.8
Other senvices 11 28
Acquisition support 2.2 -
Total 30.0 29.0
Comprising:
Continuing operations 30.0 28.5
Discontinued operations - 0.5
The following amounts paid to auditors were capitalised during the year:
ERP support 19.5 27.8
Consulting - BEE transaction 0.7 -
Consulting - debt rearrangement - 2.7
Acquisition support - 2.9
Total 20.2 33.4
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R million R million
Note 22
PROFIT BEFORE ABNORMAL ITEMS (continued)
22.2 Depreciation and amortisation
Property 21.7 27.0
Plant, equipment and vehicles 623.0 683.0
Intangible assets 56.6 90.9
Total 701.3 800.9
Comprising:
Continuing operations 701.3 779.8
Discontinued operations - 21.0
22.3 Administration and technical fees 19.9 39.7
Comprising:
Continuing operations 19.9 395
Discontinued operations - 0.2
22.4 Rentals in respect of operating leases
Property 90.4 88.6
Plant, equipment and vehicles 11.8 11.6
Total 102.2 100.2
Comprising:
Continuing operations 102.2 96.3
Discontinued operations - 3.9
22.5 Rentals received on investment properties 3.3 2.5
22.6 Research and development costs expensed
Research and development expenditure 25.1 26.4
Technology, royalty and associated costs - 0.4
Total 25.1 26.8
Comprising:
Continuing operations 251 26.6
Discontinued operations - 0.2
22.7 Net profit/(loss) on disposal of plant and equipment 1.1 6.1
Comprising:
Continuing operations 1.1 6.6
Discontinued operations - (0.5)




2005 2004

R million R million
Note 22
PROFIT BEFORE ABNORMAL ITEMS (continued)
22.8 Net loss on foreign exchange 5.0 55.3
Comprising:
Continuing operations 5.0 53.7
Discontinued operations —- 16
22.9 Selling expenses 409.6 3474
Comprising.
Continuing operations 409.6 3447
Discontinued operations - 2.7
22,10 Distribution costs 652.0 678.2
Comprising:
Continuing operations 652.0 671.4
Discontinued operations - 6.8
22.11 Directors’ emoluments
Executive directors
For managerial services 17.7 17.5
Retirement fund contributions for managerial services 0.7 3.4
Total (a) 184 20.9
Non-executive directors
For services as directors 24 29
For managerial services - -
Total {b) 24 2.9
Paid by:
Company - -
Subsidiary companies 20.8 238
Total (a) + (b) 20.8 23.8
Gains made under the share schemes 0.2 1.6
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R miltion R million
Note 23
NET ABNORMAL PROFIT
Retrenchment costs 104.9 408
Restructuring costs 45.1 19.8
Impairment losses on goodwill and plant and equipment 152.3 1279
Reversal of impairment losses on plant and equipment (5.0) -
Net profit on disposal of property (428.2) (7.6)
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of business 20.4 (216.5)
Pension fund curtailment loss on disposal of business 173.9 -
Net monetary adjustment - hyper-inflation 8.2 151
Financial instruments fair value adjustment 9.8 (70.9)
FEC costs on plant and equipment 0.7 20.9
Pension fund curtailment gain on restructure (70.6) —
Change in estimate - provisions (note 5) (59.7) -
Total (48.2) {70.5)
Comprising:
Continuing operations (48.2) (68.5)
Discontinued operations - (2.0)
Note 24
NET FINANCE COSTS
Interest paid - short-term facilities (146.7) (137.9)
Interest paid - long-term facilities (51.8) (74.3)
Interest paid ~ other 2.1) (13.5)
Deduct: interest capitalised - 8.0
Interest paid (200.6) (217.7)
Interest received - short-term facilities 77.7 52.5
Interest received - other 19.3 16.2
Interest received 97.0 68.7
Total (103.6) (148.0)
Comprising:
Continuing operations (103.6) (148.9)
Discontinued cperations - ©.1)




2005 2004
R miltion R million
Note 25
INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Normal dividends 33.8 15.6
Total 33.8 15.6
Sources:
- South African 33.8 15.6
Note 26
INCOME TAX
Current tax
- Current year 260.0 377.1
- Prior year 18.4 7.6
- Capttal gains tax 4.5 16.7
- Hyper-inflation adjustment 6.2 5.3
Deferred tax
- Current year 125.3 77.3
— Prior year 16.7 (52.6)
- Tax rate adjustment (10.4) -
- Hyper-inflation adjustment 8.8 28.2
Secondary tax on companies 64.6 58.7
Withholding and foreign tax 4.3 3.4
Total 498.4 521.7
Comprising:
Continuing operations 498.4 504.9
Discontinued operations - 16.8
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

Note 26
INCOME TAX (continued)
Reconciliation of rate of tax
Effective group rate of tax % 38.8 34.8
Reduction in tax charge due to:
- other exempt income (including capital profits) % 1.1 8.1
- tax rate reduction % 0.8 -
- foreign tax rate differential % 0.3 0.2
- prior tax losses utilised % - 01
- dividend income % 0.8 0.3
- adjustment for prior year % - 3.0
- Government incentives % 3.7 25
- franslation adjustments % 0.1 —
Increase in tax charge dus to:
- adjustment for prior year normal tax % (2.7 -
- deferred tax not recognised % (1.0) 0.5)
- hyper-inflation adjustment % (1.2) (2.0)
- withholding taxes % {0.3) 0.2)
- disallowable expenses % (2.8) 0.0
- impairment of goodwill % {2.8) —
- goodwill amortised % - (1.2)
- capital gains tax % (0.4) (1.1
— imputed income ~ section 8D % (0.4) (1.1)
- secondary tax on companies % (5.0) (3.9)
Normal tax rate % 29.0 30.0

R million R million
Estimated tax losses of certain subsidiaries and joint ventures 78.7 89.2
Less: Utllised to reduce deferred tax (39.1) {43.0)
Available for utilisation against future taxable income 39.6 46.2




()

)

2005 2004

R million R mitlion
Note 27
BASIC, FULLY DILUTED AND HEADLINE EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based on earnings of R781.0 million
(2004: R967.0 milion) and the weighted average of 638 261 785 (2004: 640 857 781} ordinary
shares in issue during the year.
The calculation of fully diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on earnings of R781.0 million
{2004: R967.0 million) and the weighted average of 642 385 083 (2004: 644 705 045) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.
Determination of basic earnings and net profit
Net profit per income statement 781.1 967.1
Less: Preference dividend 0.1 0.1
Basic earnings 781.0 967.0
The calculation of headline earnings per ordinary share is based on earnings of R760.7 milion
(2004: R938.5 mitlion) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.
Determination of headline earnings
Basic earnings 781.0 967.0
Adjusted for:
impairment losses on goodwill, plant and equipment 152.3 127.9
Reversal of impairment losses on plant and equipment (5.0) -
Goodwill amortised - 60.5
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of businesses 20.4 (216.5)
Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (439.3) (13.7)
Pension fund curtailment loss on disposal of businesses 173.9 -
Write-off of due-diligence costs 5.7 -
Tax effects 7.7 1.3
Headline earnings 760.7 936.5
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
R million R millicn
Note 28
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
Ordinary shares
Final dividend No 72 paid on 10 January 2005; 56.6 cents per share (2005: No 70 - 47.2 cents per share) 363.1 302.3
Interim dividend No 73 paid on 11 July 2005: 27.0 cents per share (2005: No 71 - 27.0 cents per share) 174.4 173.2
537.5 4755
Dividend attributable to treasury shares (2.4) -
Other dividends - 1.0
535.1 476.5
On 23 November 2005 the directors declared dividend No 74 of 56.6 cents per share, payable on
16 January 2006 to shareholders registered on 6 January 2008.
Cents Cents
Analysis of dividends declared in respect of current year’s earnings:
Ordinary dividends per share
Interim dividend No 73 (2004: 71) 27.0 27.0
Fina! dividend No 74 (2004: 72) 56.6 56.6
83.6 83.6
6.5% and 6% cumulative preference dividends
Preference dividends totalling RO.1 million were declared on 10 December 2004 and 15 June 2005,
and paid on 27 February 2005 and 25 July 2005 respectively.
Note 29
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The group has certain fease commitments in respect of land and buildings, plant, equipment and vehicles,
which are payable as follows:
Year ending 30 September
2005 98.0
2006 104.2 81.6
2007 98.9 723
2008 77.3 62.3
2009 52.4 198.4
2010 and beyond 167.6 —
Total 500.4 512.6
Comprising:
Land and buildings 342.4 450.1
Vehicles 117.7 18.3
Other 40.3 44.2
500.4 5126




2005 2004

R million R million
Note 30
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Guarantees in respect of housing loans 0.5 0.7
Guarantees in respect of property leases 1.1 16.1
Customer claims and other 21.3 457
Total 22.9 62.5
A complaint was lodged against Nampak’s Glass division and Consol Glass with the Competition Commission
for alleged collusion in respect of the acquisition of cullet for glass container manufacturing. Following its investigation,
the Competition Commission has referred the matter to the Competition Tribunal for hearing.
Note 31
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Property, plant and equipment - contracted 166.4 2371
Property, plant and equipment - approved 269.1 327.0
Total 435.5 564.1
The expenditure, which will become payable in the following year, will be financed from group resources
and, if required, additionat borrowings.
Note 32
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On 5 February 2004, Nampak announced that it had received approval from the Competition Tribunal to sell
its interest in Namiltech Holdings. The transaction was implemented with effect from 29 February 2004.
The results of NamiTech, which have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 September, are as follows:
32.1 Income statement
Revenue 3167
Raw materials 136.8
Employee costs 73.1
Depreciation and other amortisation expenses 21.0
Other operating expenses 46.9
Profit before abnormal items 379
Abnormal items 2.0)
Profit from operations 33.9
Net finance costs .1
Profit before tax 39.8
Income tax 16.8
Net profit for the year 23.0

32.2 Cash flow information

During 2004, NamiTech abisorbed R10.0 million of the group's net operating cash flows and paid R11.3 million
in respect of investing activities.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements, continued
for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004
R million R million

Note 33
NOTES TO THE GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

33.1 Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 1283.6 14932
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation 701.3 800.9
Net profit on disposal of businesses, property, plant and equipment (418.9) (230.2)
Financial instruments fair value adjustment 9.8 (70.9)
Hyperinflation monetary adjustment 8.2 15.1
Income from investments (33.8) (15.6)
Net periodic pension cost 181.7 106.3
Impairment losses 152.3 127.9
Reversal of impairment losses (5.0) -
Change in inventory provisions estimate (59.7) —
Share of losses in associate 24 -
Net finance costs 103.6 1490
Operating profit before working capital changes 1925.5 23817
Increase in inventories {212.9) (108.4)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (122.0) 54.4
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 422.5 (197.5)
Cash generated from operations 20134 2130.2

33.2 Acquisition of businesses
With effect from January 2006 the group acquired in-plants at Trafford Park and Bellshill in the United Kingdom.
The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at those dates are as follows:

Non-current assets 74.0 50.2
Non-current liabilities - (36.5)
Net working capital 55 9.5

79.5 42
Goodwill arising on acquisition - 63.0
Total purchase consideration 79.5 67.2
Overdraft acquired - 204

79.5 87.6

142




2005 2004
R million R million
Note 33
NOTES TO THE GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
33.3 Disposal of businesses
With effect from 30 October 2004, the group disposed of its Short Run plastics business in Europe.
In addition, effective 1 March 2005, the group disposed of Peters Papers.
The fair value of assets and liabilities disposed of are as follows:
Non-current assets 156.5 225.3
Non-current liabilities - (4.4)
Net working capital 269.1 164.9
Minority interest (3.6) (68.5)
422.0 317.3
{Loss)/profit on disposal of businesses (20.4) 213.2
Total sales consideration 401.6 5305
Less: cash disposed - 54.5
401.6 476.0
33.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
Bank balances, cash and deposits 632.7 699.5
Interest-bearing borrowings - amounts due to bankers (note 16) (257.1) (727.8)
375.6 (28.3)
Note 34
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective 1 October 2005 the group concluded a transaction to dispose of 50% of Nampak Glass to Wiegand-Glas
for €18 million. Wiegand-Glas has been a technology partner of Nampak for a number of years and the deal wil
see Wiegand-Glas taking production control of the Glass business.

The group sold its Tufbag business on 1 November 2005 for R9 million.

Following the announcement of the group’s black economic empowerment (BEE) deal in September, the High Court
sanctioned the scheme of arrangement that will see the group buy back 10% of the shares in issue, excluding the
parties to the BEE transaction, at a price of R15.13 per share. The effective date of the scheme is 31 October 2005.
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Company Balance Sheet

as at 30 September

2005
R million

2004
R million

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Non-current financial assets

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Current assets

Other receivables

Subsidiary companies

Bank balances, deposits and cash

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium
Accumulated profits

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Subsidiary companies
Tax liabilities

Total equity and liabilities




Company Income Statement

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

Notes R million R million

Employse costs 2.6 1.0
Other operating expenses 3.7 58
Loss before abnormal items (6.3) 6.6)
Abnormal loss 6 1260.3 -
Loss from operations (1 266.6) (6.6)
Finance income 7 0.5 0.1
income from investments 1187.0 1494.6
(Loss)/profit before tax {129.1) 14881
Income tax 9 26.6 323
Net (loss)/profit for the year (155.7) 1455.8
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R million R million

Equity at beginning of year 4 260.9 32715
Changes in capital 589.8 9.2
Share capital - share option scheme 0.2 04
- new issue 3.2 -

- shares cancelled (0.5) -

Share premium - share option scheme 50.9 9.1
- new issue net of share issue expenses 684.3 -

- cancellaticn of share premium on shares cancelled (148.3) -

Changes in accumulated profit (693.3) 980.2
Net profit for the year (165.7) 14558
Qrdinary shares - dividends (537.5) (475.5)
Preference shares - dividends (0.1) 0.1
Equity at end of year 4157.4 4 260.9




Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

Notes R million R million
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations 10.1 (844.6) 16.8
Income from investments 1137.0 480.7
interest received 0.5 0.1
Tax paid (34.2) (23.7)
Cash flows from operations 258.7 473.9
Dividends paid (537.6) (475.6)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (278.9) (1.7)
Cash flows from investing activities
increase in investment in subsidiaries - 7.5
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries 385.0 -
Capital grant to Black Management Trust (414.1) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities {29.1) (7.5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Shares repurchased from subsidiary (148.8)
Capital proceeds from issue of shares 738.6 9.2
Net cash inflow from financing activities 589.8 92
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 281.8 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0.4 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10.2 282.2 0.4
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R million R million
Note 1
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Grant to Black Management Trust 4141 -
COriginated loans 2.2 2.2
Total 416.3 2.2
Note 2
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES
(Refer to Annexure A for details)
Interest in subsidiaries and joint ventures 3879.0 4 264.0
Less: Impairment losses (1 260.3) -
Net amount due by subsidiaries (13.5) 25.7)
Shares at cost less amounts written off/impaired 2605.2 4238.3

Note 3

CAPITAL

Share capital

Authorised:

745 000 000 (2004: 700 000 000) ordinary shares of 5 cents each
100 000 6.5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

400 000 8% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

31 857 200 preferred ordinary shares of 5 cents each

100 redeemable preference shares of 5 cents each

Total

Issued:

869 313 827 (2004: 641 574 281) ordinary shares of 5 cents each
31 857 195 preferred ordinary shares of 5 cents each

100 000 6.5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

400 000 6% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

Total




s

2005 2004

R million R million
Note 3
CAPITAL (continued))
60 025 764 ordinary shares (2004: 51 088 130) have been set aside for employees’ share schemes.
The preferred ordinary shares will convert to ordinary shares on the earliest of 31 January 2011, or the date on which
Red Coral Investments 23 (Proprietary) Limited is obliged to redeem all the preference shares (refer note 16}, upon an
event of defautt, in accordance with the terms of the preference share agreements.
The preferred ordinary shares will confer on the holders the right to receive a cumulative fixed annual dividend of 100
cents payable in equal instalments of 50 cents each on 31 January and 31 July each year up to 31 January 2011, with
each distribution ranking ahead of those of the ordinary shares.
Share premium
Balance at beginning of year 2009.8 2 000.7
Movement in share premium 586.9 9.1
Balance at end of year 2 596.7 2009.8
Total 2632.7 20429
Note 4
ACCUMULATED PROFITS
Balance at beginning of year 22180 12378
Changes in accumulated profits (693.3) 980.2
Balance at end of year 1524.7 22180
Note 5
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 6.4 1.7
Other 1.3 -
Total 7.7 1.7
Note 6
ABNORMAL LOSS
Impairment losses 1260.3 -
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements, continued

for the year ended 30 September

2005 2004

R million R million
Note 7
FINANCE INCOME
Interest received - short-term facilities 0.1 0.1
Interest received - other 0.4 -
Total 0.5 0.1
Note 8
INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Normal dividends 390.3 4755
Group restructuring dividend 727.8 10138
Interest received from subsidiaries 14.8 1.9
Fees 4.1 3.3
Total 1137.0 14946
Sources:
- South African 1137.0 1494.6
- Foreign - -
Note 9
INCOME TAX
Current tax
- Current year 101 17.6
- Prior year (0.6) 14.7
Secondary tax on companies 17.1 —
Total 26.6 32.3
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2005 2004
R million R million
Note 9
INCOME TAX (continued)
Reconciliation of rate of tax
Effective rate of tax % (20.6) 22
Reduction in tax charge due to:
~ dividend income % (251.2) 30.0
— adjustment for prior year normal tax % {0.5) -
Increase in tax charge due to:
- adjustment for prior year normal tax % - (1.0)
- disaflowable expenses % 1.1 0.8)
- impairment losses % 283.1 -
~ imputed income - section 9D % 3.9 .4)
- secondary tax on companies % 13.2 -
Normal tax rate % 29.0 30.0
Note 10
NOTES TO THE COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT
10.1 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash (utilised in)/generated from operations
{Loss)/profit before tax {(129.1) 1488.1
Adjustment for:
Income from investments (1 137.0) (1 494.6)
Impairment losses 1260.3 -
Net finance income (0.5) 0.
Operating loss before working capital changes (6.3) (6.6)
{increase)/decrease in other receivables {0.9) 5.1
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 6.0 {56.1)
Movement in intergroup accounts (843.4) 744
Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations (844.6) 16.8
10.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
Bank balances, cash and deposits 282.2 0.4
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interests in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate

Annexure A
Type Country of Issued Effective interest of hoiding company
(see note incorpo- share percentage Shares at
below) ration capital holding book value Indebtedness

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
% % Rm Rm Rm Bm

1. SUBSIDIARIES (CONSOLIDATED)

Amalgamated Packaging Industries (Pty) Ltd RSA R2834 224 100% 100%
BlowMacan Holdings Ltd UK £101 100% 100%
Buduff Incorporated Ltd Isle of Man US$ 182682 100% 100%

f

|

I
CarnaudMetalbox Zimbabwe Ltd 0 Zimbabwe ZWD 19793000 100% 100%
Cartonagens de Mocambique LDA 0 Mozambique MZM 20000000 55%  55%
Consolidated Corrugated Containers (Pty} Ltd 0 RSA R600 000 100%  100% 6.4 6.4 - 8.4
Crown Cork Co (1958) (Pvt) Ltd 0 Zimbabwe ZWD 1421000 100% 100%
Crown Cork Co (East Africa) Ltd O Kenya KES 11989700 100% 100%
Crown Cork Co Zambia Ltd 0 Zambia ZMK 194285714 100% 100%
Diehl Deutschland GmbH 0 Germany €25600 100% 100%
Dieht Druck GmbH o] Germany €26 000 100% 100%
Diehl Europe SA o] Luxembourg €31000 100% 100%
Diehl France sarl 0] France €266 786 100% 100%
Dieh! SCI o] France €7 622 100% 100%
Disaki Cores and Tubes (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R700  70% 70%
Gallagher Printers Ltd 0 Irefand €20000 100% 100%
Imperama NV 0 Netherlands €793000 100% 100%
International Cartons & Packaging Ltd Q Zambia ZMK 77 526 000 100%  100%
Interpak Books (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R100 100% 100%
Kohler Digiflex (Pty) Ltd C RSA R100 100% 100%
Kohler Ltd i RSA R493 718 514  100% 100%
Kohler Management Services (Pty) Lid 0 RSA R200 100% 100%
Kohler Packaging Ltd O RSA R3 1984385 100% 100%
M.Y. Cartons BY 0 Netherlands £14609 100% 100%
M.Y. Cartons Europe BV ! Netherlands €22700 100% 100%
M.Y. Cartons Ltd (UK) 0 UK £35509000 100% 100%
M.Y. Healthcare ltaly SRL ) ltaly €3000000 100% 100%
M.Y. Healthcare Packaging Ltd 0 UK £2 100% 100%
M.Y. Operations Ltd (UK) o] UK £142 100% 100%
M.Y. Printech BV 0 Netherlands €18000 100% 100%
M.Y. Property Ltd 0 UK £75 100% 100%
Malbak Ltd J RSA R589 321657 100% 100% 1836.8 1836.8 1.0 0.7
Megaplastics Zimbabwe (Pvi) Ltd l Zimbabwe ZWD2 100% 100%
Metal Box (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd 0 Namibia N$1 100% 100%
Nampak Belgium NV [¢] Belgium €247 900 - 100%
Nampak Continental Holdings BV | Netherlands €59 890 -  100%
Nampak Corrugated PMB (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R100 100% 100%
Nampak Corrugated Swaziland (Pty) Lid 0 Swaziland SZ(250Q000 90%  90%
Nampak Deutschland Gmbh ] Germany €25 565 - 100%
Nampak France SA | France €9 855 784 -~ 100%
Nampak Gent NV 0 Belgium €2 480 650 - 80%
Nampak Glass (Pty) Ltd 0] RSA R300 100% -
Nampak Halfweg BV 0O Netherlands €1 837 300 -~ 100%
Nampak Holdings (UK} Plc ! UK £1964605 100%  100%
Nampak Holdings Ltd [ Mauritius US$ 100000 100% 100%
Nampak Holdings UK Limited | UK £1000002 100% 100%

&)
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Annexure A (continued)

Type Country of Issued Effective Interest of holding company
(see note incorpo- share percentage Shares at
below) ration capital holding book value Indebtedness
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
% % Rm Rm Rm Rm
Nampak Insurance Company Limited Insurance Isle of Man £100000 100% 100%
Nampak International Ltd | Isle of Man £33329 100% 100% 1889.3 18739 - -
Nampak International Ltd | isle of Man £18575 100% 100%
Nampak Kenya Ltd 0 Kenya KES 40280010 100% 100%
Nampak Kerkrade BV 0 Netherlands €2 178 200 - 100%
Nampak Leasing (Pty) Ltd F RSA R100 100% 100%
Nampak Metal Packaging Ltd 0 RSA R9 134 100% 100%
Nampak Montpont SA 0 France €6 196 500 - 100%
Narnpak Nigeria Cartons Limited O Nigeria  NGN 14 000 000 100% 100%
Nampak Nigeria Plc oL Nigeria NGN 107 044 183  57%  57%
Nampak Nigeria Properties Limited P Nigerla  NGN 14 000000 100% 100%
Nampak Paper Holdings Ltd I UK £26 828196 100% 100%
Nampak Paper Ltd Deregistered RSA R2 307 533 - 100% - 75 - -
Nampak Petpak (Namibia) (Pty) Lid 0 Namibia N$100 100%  100%
Nampak Plastics Europe Ltd 0 UK £4 863616 100% 100%
Nampak Polycyclers (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R20000 100% 100%
Nampak Polyfoil Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd 0 Zimbabwe ZWD 200  70% 70%
Nampak Products Ltd 0 RSA R3758641 100% 100% 937 937 - 18.8
Nampak Properties {sle of Man) Ltd P Isle of Man £100 100% 100%
Nampak Southern Africa Holdings Limited | Mauritius US$ 4726922 100% 100% 525 525 - -
Nampak Tanzania Ltd o] Tanzania TZS 304 638620 100% 100%
Nampak Technical Services Ltd O Isle of Man £1 100% 100%
Nampak Tissue (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R100 100% 100%
Nampak Zambia Ltd 0 Zambia  ZMK?2000000 100% 100%
National Containers (Pty) Ltd \ RSA R245000 100% 100% 0.3 03 125 127
Neopac Corrugated (Pty) Ltd O RSA R100 100% 100%
Packaging Industries Malawi Ltd oL Malawi MWK 13450000 60%  60%
Replete Leasing (Pty) Ltd F RSA R1000 100% 100%
Teknol BV I Netherlands £18151 100% 100%
Teknol NV I Netherlands Antilles UsS$ 6000 100% 100%
Transmar {isle of Man) Ltd I Isle of Man US$ 600000 100%  100%
2. JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE
Joint ventures
Bullpak Ltd 0 Kenya KES 4760000 49% 49%
Burcap Plastics (Pty) Ltd | RSA R100  50%  50%
Burcap Plastics Gauteng (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R100  50%  50%
Burcap Plastics IML (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R100  50%  50%
Collect-a-Can {Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R4 000000  40% 40%
Elopak South Africa (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R140 50%  50%
Hunyani Holdings Ltd oL Zimbabwe ZWD 31391103 39%  39%
Megapak Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd 0 Zimbabwe ZWD 20100 4%%  49%
Menshen Packaging (UK) Ltd 0 UK £100 - 50%
NASABA Tissue Ltd 0 Tanzania TZS200000 50%  50%
Sancella South Africa (Pty) Ltd 0 RSA R2500 50%  50%
Associate
Group Risk Holdings (Pty) Ltd Insurance RSA R100000 28% -




Interests in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate, continued

Annexure A (continued)

Type Country of issued Effective Interest of holding company
(see note incorpo- share percentage Shares at
below) ration capital holding book value Indebtedness

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
% % Rm Rm Rm Rm

3. ASSOGIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(NOT CONSOLIDATED)
Crown Cork Company (Mozambigue) LDA @] Mozambique ~ MT 2 375 milion  50%  34%
Sun Citrus Packers (Pty) Ltd o] South Africa R16000000 26% —
Type
O - Operating F -Finance |- Investment holding P - Property owning L - Listed

General information in respect of subsidiaries, as required in terms of paragraph 62 of the 4th Schedule of the Companies Act, 1973, is set out only in
respect of those subsidiaries, the financial position or the results of which are material for a proper appreciation of the affairs of the group. The directors
are of the opinion that the disclosures in these statements of such information in respect of the remaining dormant subsidiaries would entail expenses out
of proportion of all subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are available for inspection at the registered offices of Nampak Limited.

Note
The subsidiary and joint venture companies’ aggregate income after taxation attributable to the holding company, for the year ended 30 September 2005,
is R989.9 million (2004: R1 165.3 million). The aggregate amount of losses attributable to the holding company is R198.4 million (2004: R184.3 million).

® 000

investments
®
Annexure B ®
Number of shares Effective .
held by group percentage holding
Type
{see note below) 2005 2004 2005 2004
UNLISTED INVESTMENTS
Business Partners Ltd F 212160 212 160 <1 <1
Houers Ko-operatief Bpk 0 1714 901 1714901 14.9% 14.9%
Lesedi Clinic (Soweto) (Pty) Ltd I 250 250 100.0% 100.0%
New Farmers Development Corporation Ltd 0 150 586 150 586 <1 <1
Ethiopean Crown Cork & Can Industry 0O 25% 25%

Type
O - Operating F - Finance
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NAMPAK LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the thirty-eighth annual general meeting of shareholders of Nampak Limited will be held at Nampak Centre,
114 Dennis Road, Atholl Gardens, Sandton, South Africa on Wednesday, 8 February 2008 at 12:00 for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the annual financial statements of the company and of the group for the year ended 30 September 2005,

2. Toelect Messrs T N Jacobs and R J Khoza as directors of the company, following their appointment by the board with effect from
1 Qctober 2005. In terms of the articles of association of the company they are required to retire but, being eligible, offer themselves
for election.

3. To elect directors in place of Messrs N Cumming, P L Campbell and M H Visser who retire by rotation but, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Please refer to pages 4 to 5 of the annual report for a biography of each director.

4. To consider and, if approved, to pass with or without modification, the following ordinary resolutions, subject to the approval of JSE Limited
(“the JSE”):

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1

“THAT the company hereby specifically approves, in terms of section 222(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1873, as amended, the allotment and issue
from the ordinary shares already set aside for purposes of the Nampak 1985 Share Option Scheme of ordinary shares of 5 (five) cents each to the
undermentioned directors as and when they exercise the options detailed below, which were granted to them during the year (and in the case of
Mr T N Jacobs share options which were granted in previous years, prior to his appointment as a director on 1 October 2005), to acquire
ordinary shares of 5 cents each in the company and specifically authorises the directors to make such issue and afiotment:”

Name of director Date option granted Option price (cents) Number of options
G E Bortolan 1 December 2004 1495 190 000
N Cumming 1 December 2004 1495 100 000
A S Lang 1 December 2004 1495 40 000
TN Jacobs 14 December 2001 1080 20 000
T N Jacobs 25 Juty 2002 1326 20 000
T N Jacobs 27 November 2003 1234 50 000
TN Jacobs 1 December 2004 1495 100 000

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2

“THAT the fees payable to the non-executive directors be increased from R30 000 per director per annum to R100 000 per director per annum
with effect from 1 October 2005, payable in quarterly payments in arrear.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
ADOPTION OF THE NAMPAK LIMITED PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

“Resolved that the deed embodying The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan, a copy of which has been signed by the chairman for
identification purposes and tabled at the annual general meeting convened to consider, inter alia, this resolution, be and is hereby adopted.”
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4

PLACEMENT OF UNISSUED SHARES UNDER THE CONTROL OF DIRECTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE NAMPAK LIMITED
PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

“Resolved that, subject to the passing of ordinary resolution number 3 proposed at the annual general meeting at which this ordinary resolution is
to be considered, so many of the total unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the company as do not, together with those placed under the
control of the directors pursuant to ordinary resolution number 6, exceed 12.5% of the total issued ordinary shares in the capital of the

company, be and are hereby placed under the control of the directors of the company who are specifically authorised in terms of section 221(2)
of the Companies Act 81 of 1973, as amended, to allot and issue all or any of such shares, in accordance with the terms and conditions of

The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan, as same may be amended from time to time.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
ADOPTION OF THE NAMPAK LIMITED SHARE APPRECIATION PLAN

“Resolved that the deed embodying The Nampak Limited Share Appreciation Plan, a copy of which has been signed by the chairman for
identification purposes and tabled at the annual general meeting convened to consider, inter afia, this resolution, be and is hereby adopied.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6

PLACEMENT OF UNISSUED SHARES UNDER THE CONTROL CF DIRECTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE NAMPAK LIMITED SHARE
APPRECIATION PLAN

“Resolved that, subject t6 the passing of ordinary resolution number 5 proposed at the annual general meeting at which this ordinary resolution is
to be considered, so many of the total unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the company as do not, together with those placed under the
control of the directors pursuant to ordinary resalution number 4, exceed 12.5% of the total issued ordinary shares in the capital of the

company, be and are hereby placed under the control of the directors of the company who are specifically authorised in terms of section 221(2)
of the Companies Act 61 of 1973, as amended, to allot and issue all or any of such shares, in accordance with the terms and conditions of

The Nampak Limited Share Appreciation Plan, as same may be amended from time to time.”

EXPLANATORY NOTE ON ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS NUMBERS 3, 4, 5 AND 8

These resolutions relate to the current 1385 Share Option Scheme (“current scheme”), The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan and The
Nampak Limited Share Appreciation Plan. The salient features of The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan and The Nampak Limited Share
Appreciation Plan, which will replace the current scheme, are set out in the Annexure 10 the Notice of Annual General Meeting annexed hereto.
Copies of The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan and The Nampak Limited Share Appreciation Plan will be available for inspection at the
registered office of the company from 08:00 to 17:00 unti the date of the annual general meeting.

5. To consider and, if approved, to pass with or without modification the following special resolution, subject to the approval of the JSE:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1

“THAT, subject to compliance with the requirements of the JSE, the directors of the company be and are hereby authorised in their discretion to
procure that the company or subsidiaries of the company acquire by purchase on the JSE ordinary shares issued by the company provided that:

(i) the number of ordinary shares acquired in any one financial year shall not exceed 20% of the ordinary shares in issue at the date on which
this resolution is passed;

(i) this authority shall lapse on the earlier of the date of the next annual general meeting of the company or the date 15 months after the date on
which this resolution is passed;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting, continued

(i) the price paid per ordinary share may not be greater than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the ordinary shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on which a purchase is mads;

(iv) the number of shares purchased by subsidiaries of the company shall nct exceed 10% in aggregate of the number of issued shares in the
company at the relevant times.”

The reason for this special resolution is to authorise the directors, if they deem it appropriate in the interests of the company, to procure that the
company or subsidiaries of the company acquire or purchase ordinary shares issued by the company subject to the restrictions contained in the
above resolution.

The effect of this special resolution will be to authorise the directors of the company to procure that the company or subsidiaries of the company
acquire or purchase shares issued by the company on the JSE. Such purchases:

() may not in any financial year exceed 20% of the company's ordinary shares in issue at the date of passing the above resolution;

{iy must be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done without any prior understanding or arrengement
between the company and the counterparty;

(i} may not be made at prices in excess of 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the ordinary shares for the five days
preceding the date of purchase;

{iv) must comply with the requirements of the JSE;
{v) if made by a subsidiary cr subsidiaries may not exceed 10% in aggregate of the issued shares in the company.

The general authority granted by this resolution will lapse on the earlier of the date of the next annual general meeting of the company or the date
15 months after the date on which this resolution was passed.

At the present time the directors have no specific intention with regard to the utilisation of this authority which will only be used if the
circumstances are appropriate. If the authority is exercised, the ordinary shares will be purchased on the JSE.

The directars, after considering the effect of a repurchase of up to 20% of the company’s issued ordinary shares, are of the opinion that if such
repurchase is implemented:

(i} the company and its subsidiaries will be able to pay their debts in the ordinary course of business for a period of 12 months after the date of
this notice;

(i) recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited annual group financial statements, the assets
of the company and its subsidiaries will exceed the liabilities of the company and its subsidiaries for a period of 12 months after the date of
this notice;

(i) the ordinary capital and reserves of the company and its subsidiaries will be adequate for the purposes of the business of the company and
its subsidiaries for the period of 12 months after the date of this notice;

(iv) the working capital of the company and its subsidiaries will be adequate for the purposes of the business of the company and its subsidiaries
for the period of 12 months after the date of this notice.

The company will ensure that its sponsor will provide the necessary letter on the adeguacy of the working capital in terms of the JSE Listings
Requirements, prior to the commencement of any purchase of the company’s shares on the open market.

YOTING AND PROXIES

On a show of hands every member present in person or represented in terms of section 188 of the Companies Act, 1973, shall have one vote,
and on a poli every member present in person or by proxy or so represented shall have one vote for every share held by such member.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint & proxy or proxies to attend, speak and vote in
place of that member. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
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Registered holders of certificated Nampak shares and hotders of dematerialised Nampak shares in their own name and who are unable to attend
the annual general mesting and who wish to be represented at the meeting, must complete and return the attached form of proxy in accordance
with the instructions contained in the form of proxy so as 10 be received by the share registrars, Computershare Investor Services 2004

(Pty) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107) by no later than 12:00 on Monday, 8 February 2006.

Holders of Nampak shares (whether certificated or dematerialised) through a nominee should timeously make the necessary arrangements with
that nominee or, if applicable, Central Securities Depository Participant ("CSDP”) or broker to enable them to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting or to enable their votes in respect of their Nampak shares to be cast at the annual general meeting by that nominee or a proxy
or a representative.

in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements for special resolution number 1, the following general information is included in the annual report:

() Directors (pages 4 and 5)

(i} Mejor shareholders (page 54)

(i) Directors’ interest in securities (pages 96 and 97)
(iv) Share capital of the company (page 127)
(

v) The company is not party to any material litigation nor is it aware of any pending material litigation to which it may become a party.
There have been no material changes in the financial or trading position of the company and its subsidiaries since 30 September 2005.

The directors whose names appear on pages 4 to 5 of the annual report collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of
the information given and certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any
statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries 1o ascertain such facts have been made and that the circular (the notice of the
annual general meeting) contains all information required by law and the JSE Listings Requirements.

By order of the board

N P O’Brien
Company secretary

15 December 2005

Nampak Limited

Nampak Centre

114 Dennis Road

Atholl Gardens, Sandton 2196
Republic of South Africa
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Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Adoption of new incentive plans

1. ADOPTION OF NEW INCENTIVE PLANS

1.1 Currently, share options are the sole form of long-term incentive for key Nampak employees. Following the recent review of
executive remuneration by the Remuneration and Nominations Committee (“Remco”), the Remco has decided to propose a
performance share plan, not only to link executive reward more closely to the achievement of long-term performance targets
and shareholder valus creation, but also to ensure that the total reward potential for executive directors and the senior executive
team is competitive. In addition, a share appreciation plan will be formulated to replace the existing share option plan and will be
used to retain and motivate key employees. If the plans are approved share options will no longer be issued to employees.

1.2 The new incentive plans will be called the Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) and the Nampak Limited Share
Appreciation Plan (“SAP”) (collectively, the “new plans”). Copies of the deeds embodying the new plans have been signed by
the chairman for identification purposes and are available for inspection at Nampak's registered offices at 114 Dennis Road,
Atholl Gardens, Sandton, Gauteng, South Africa.

1.3 Itis proposed to run the new plans independently of the current Nampak 1985 Share Option Scheme (“Option Scheme”), on
the basis that no new options will be awarded to employees under the Option Scheme with effect from the date on which the
first allocations and/or awards are made under the new plans.

1.4 Number of shares made available for the new incentive plans

1.4.1 The aggregate number of ordinary shares in the capital of the company (“Shares”) which may be acquired by participants
under the new plans, together with shares which may be acquired by participants under any other share plan in force
which provides for the acquisition of shares (collectively “Any Other Plan”) shall not exceed 12.5% of the company’s
issued share capital, being 81 343 853 shares as at 1 November 2005.

1.4.2 The aggregate number of shares which may be acquired by any one participant under the new plans and Any Other Plan
shall not excead 0.3380% of the company'’s issued share capital, being 2 200 000 shares as at 1 November 2005.

1.4.3 The aggregate above shall not be exceeded without the prior authority of the company in general meeting and the
approval (to the extent necessary) of every stock exchange on which the shares, at the time, are listed.

O ® 00000006000 0000 0 0 0 0

1.5 Share trusts

Two share trusts will be established to administer the new plans. The board of directors of the company (“the board”) shall be

entitled to appoint and remove the trustee of these trusts. The first trustess of the trusts are to be Messrs Trevor Evans,

Michael Mervyn Katz, Maduke Lot Ndlovu and Robert Albert Williams. The trustees may not participate in the new plans. .
The trusts will recover from the participant’s employer within the group all such costs as may be attributable to such participant’s

participation in the new plans.

2. THE NAMPAK LIMITED PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (“PSP”)

2.1 Purpose, participants and manner of participation

2.1.1 The purpose of the PSP is to attract, retain, motivate and reward employees, including executive directors of the Nampak
Limited Group of Companies (“group”), who are able to influence the performance of the group, on a basis which aligns
the interests of such participants with those of the company's share owners.




. 5

21.2

213

Any senior employee of the group, as well as any executive director who is reguired 10 devote substantially all of his time
to the business of the group, who is more than 24 months from retirement, will be eligible to participate in the plan if
selected by the board from time to time (collectively “participants”).

The PSP empowers the board to offer participants a conditional right, from time to time, to receive performance shares
(each a “PS”) on the terms and conditions described more fully below.

2.2 Performance shares

2.21

222
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A participant is (if the board so resolves) offered the conditional right to receive up to a maximum number of PSs for which
no consideration is payable.

A PS shall, subject to 2.2.3, be released to a participant on the date (“release date”) which falls three years after the date
(“the award date”) on which the PS was awarded to the participant; provided that such three-year period will be
extended if and to the extent applicable law or company policy in force from time to time prevents the company from
releasing or the participant from receiving or otherwise dealing in PSs or shares on the release date.

The release of PSs is dependent upon the meeting by the company of performance criteria determined by the board at or
prior to the award date (“the performance criteria") on the basis that the maximum number of PSs to be released on the
release date will be adjusted if and to the extent the performance criteria are not satisfied over the three-year period
{(whether in whole or in par).

2.3 Termination of employment .

2.3.1

23.2

233

If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of death, such participant’s heirs, executor, trustee or
other representative shall, as soon as reasonably practicable after his death, be entitled to receive that number of PSs
awarded to him on the applicable award date, reduced on a basis which is pro-rated with reference to the total number of
calendar months which have elapsed between the award date and the date of such termination, as if the Group had met
only the target performance criteria.
If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of:
2.3.2.1 retirement due to injury, disability or ill-health;
2.3.2.2 retirement before his normal retirement date with the consent of the board;
2.3.2.3 dismissal for operational reasons;
2.3.2,4 refirement on or after his normal retirement date;
2.3.2,5 the company by which he Is employed ceasing to be a member of the group; or
2.3.2.6 the undertaking in which he is employed being transferred to a transferee which is not a member of

the group,

such participant shall, unless the board determines otherwise, be entitled to receive on the release date that number
of PSs awarded to him on the applicable award date, reduced on a basis which is pro-rated with reference to the total
number of calendar months which have elapsed between such award date and the date of such termination.

If a participant’s employment with the group terminates for any reason other than one of those contemplated in
2.3.1 or 2.3.2, his award shall cease to be effective unless the board determines ctherwise, in which event such
participant shall be entitied to receive that number of Shares which is determined mutatis mutandis on the basis
detailed in 2.3.1.
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2.6

2.7

Annéxure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting, continued

Settlement of PSs

2.4.1 Provision is made for the company to settle its obligation to settle PSs to a participant on the relevant release date by (a) way of
allotment and issue; or (b) the company or the trust procuring the transfer of such shares to the participant; provided that, as
opposed to settling PSs in equity, the participant may, at the company’s election, be paid a cash bonus equal to the Fair Market
Value of each share to which the participant becomes entitled. For the purposes of the PSP, “Fair Market Value”, in relation to a
share on any particular day, means the volume weighted average price of a share on the JSE Limited (“JSE™) over the 15 {or
lesser, if the board so decides) trading days immediately prior to the day in question.

2.4.2 Awards are not pensionable and may not be assigned or transferred, except on a participant’s death, when they may be assigned
to the participant’s personal representatives.

Granting of awards

The first grant of awards is intended to be made as soon as practicable following approval of the PSP at the annual general megting.
Thereafter, awards may normally be granted within a six-week period following announcement by the company of its results for any
period. Awards may alsc be granted outside these periods if the committee considers it appropriate.

Payment on account of dividends

The participant may receive an amount (in cash or in shares) equivalent to accrued dividends {on the basis that they are reinvested in
shares) in respect of the proportion (if any) of the award that actually vests. Any one-off “special” distributions that are made on similar
terms to all ordinary shareholders may be included in the calculation at Remco’s discretion.

General provisions

2.7.1 Provision is made for appropriate adjustments in the event of alterations to the company’s capital, including by way of special
distributions, rights offers, corporate reorganisations, subdivisions and consolidations. Furthermore, provision is made for the
appropriate treatment of participants in the event of certain reconstructions of the company, including by way of certain merger
and take-over events.

2.7.2 Subject to 2.7.3, if the company undergoss a change of control after an award date, then:

2.7.2.1 the release date in respect of all PSs previously awarded to participants, adjusted downwards on a basis which is
pro-rated with reference to the total number of calendar months which have elapsed since the relevant award date
and allocation date, shall be deemed to fall on the date on which such change of control becomes effective
{“implementation date”); on the basis that the company must discharge its settlement obligation to participants
pursuant to such acceleration of the release date of PSs by either:

2.7.2.1.1 paying to participants an amount equal {0 the Fair Market Value of the shares which would have been settled to
participants on the implementation date; or

2.7.2.1.2 the delivery of shares to such participant.

It will be assumed that the company has performed at the full performance criteria over the period between the award
date and the release date.

2.7.3 Notwithstanding 2.7.2, if the company undergoes a change of control pursuant to a transaction which makes provision for
participants’ rights under the PSP to be substituted for other rights or to be otherwise accommodated, on a basis dstermined by
an independent merchant bank to be fair and reasonable to participants, participants shall not be entitlied to the rights articulated in
2.7.2; provided that if such participant’s employment within the group is terminated for any reason whatsoever {including his
resignation) within a period of 12 months following the implementation date, he shall be entitied to be settled on the same basis
that would have applied had the provisions of 2.7.2 been applicable, the effective date of such determination being the
implementaticn date.
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2.7.4 The company shall apply for a listing on the JSE of all shares issued to a participant under the PSP as soon as possible after the
issue (if applicable) thereof.

2.7.5 The board and the trustees may amend the PSP, with the approval (if required) of every stock exchange on which shares are, at
the relevant time, listed. In addition, no amendments affecting any of the following matters shall be competent unless sanctioned
by the company in general meeting:
2.7.5.1 the eligibility of participants;
2.7.5.2 the definition of Fair Market Value;
2.7.5.3 the maximum number of shares subject to the PSP and the maximum number of shares which may be acquired

by a single participant.

2.7.6 On the winding-up of the trust, any surplus shall be paid to the company and any deficit arising will be borne by the company.

3. THE NAMPAK LIMITED SHARE APPRECIATION PLAN (“SAP")

3.1 Purpose, participants and manner of participation

3.1.1 The purpose of the SAP is to attract, retain, motivate and reward employees of the Nampak Limited Group of Companies
{“group”) who are able to influence the performance of the group, on a basis which aligns the interests of such participants with
those of the company’s share owners.

3.1.2 Participants in the SAP will be employees of the group, as selected by Remco from time to time (collectively “participants”).

3.1.3 The SAP empowers Remco to offer participants a conditional right, from time to time, to receive share appreciation rights
{each a “SAR”") on the terms and conditions described more fully below.

3.2 Share appreciation rights

3.2.1 A participant is, if Remco so resolves, offered the right to receive a number of SARs upon the terms summarised below, for which
no consideration is payable.

3.2.2 SARs may not be exercised by a participant until the date (“the determination date”) which falls three years after that date on
which the SARs are allocated to the participant (“the allocation date”); provided that such three-year period wil be extended by
Remco if and to the extent applicable law or company policy in force from time to time prevents the company from settling SARs
or the participant from dealing in shares on the release date.

3.2.3 The number of SARs that a participant will be able to exercise is dependent upon the meeting by the company of performance
criteria determined by the board at or prior to the award date (“the performance criteria”) on the basis that the maximum number
of SARs determined as capable of being exercised to be released on the determination date will be adjusted if and to the extent
the performance criteria are not satisfied over the three-year period (whether in whole or in part). It is anticipated that the initial
performance criteria will be based on compounded eamings growth over the consumer price index and any other performance
criteria deemed appropriate at the allocation date.

3.3 Termination of employment

3.3.1 If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of death a pro-rated portion of his SARs will be immediately
exercisable by his heirs, executor, trustee or other representative. The pro-rated portion of his SARs will be determined as if the
company had achieved the target performance criteria.
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Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting, continued

3.3.2 If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of dismissal for operational reasons, his aliocation will cease to

be effective.

3.3.3 If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of retirement the number of SARs capable of being exercised will

be determined on their normal determination date.

3.3.4 If a participant's employment with the group terminates by reason of:

3.3.4.1 the company by which he is employed ceasing to be a member of the group; or
3.3.4.2 the undertaking in which he is employed being transferred 1o a transferee which is not a member of the group,

a pro-rated number of his SARs that are capable of being exercised shall be determined on the date his employment with the
Group terminates.

3.3.5 If a participant’s employment with the group terminates by reason of:

3.3.5.1 retirement due to injury, disability or il health; or
3.3.5.2 early retirement with the consent of the board,
a pro-rated number of SARs that are capable of being exercised shall be determined on the normal determination date.

3.3.6 If a participant’s employment with the group terminates for any reason other than ane of those contemplated in 3.3.%, his award

shall no longer be effective unless the board determines otherwise.

3.4 Exercise of SARs

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

One third of SARs that are dstermined capable of being exercised may be exercised on expiry of three years from the allocation
date, another third upon expiry of four years from the allocation date and the final third upon expiry of five years from the allocation
date, on the basis that such participant shall, in respect of each SAR so exercised, receive such number of shares as is calculated
in accordance with the following formula:
A=B-C+B
where:

A = the number of shares to which a participant is entitled in respect of each SAR which has been exercised;

B = the Fair Market Value of a share on the date on which such SAR is exercised;

C = the price attributable to a SAR on the allocation date, being the Fair Market Value of a share on such date
(the “Allocation Price”).

The company may discharge its obligation to settle a SAR, at its election by (a) way of allotment and issue; or (b} the company or
the trust procuring the transfer of such shares to the participant; provided that, as opposed to settling SARs in equity, the
participant may, at the company’s election, be paid a cash bonus equal to the Fair Market Value of the shares to which the
participant becomes entitled on the exercise of his SARs.

All SARs which are determined capable of being exercised by a participant and are not exercised by a participant will cease to be
effective if and to the extent they have not been exercised by a participant upon expiry of the period commencing on the allocation
date and terminating on the tenth anniversary thereafter; provided that such ten-year period:

3.4.3.1 will be extended by the board if and to the extent that applicable law or company policy in force from time to time
prevents the company from settling a participant's entitlement to shares or a participant from receiving or otherwise
dealing in shares on expiry of such period;

3.4.3.2 may be extended by the board, in its discretion, if and to the extent that any category of participant has, in any 12-month
period preceding the expiry of such period, been precluded from receiving or otherwise dealing in shares for five or more
months in the aggregate.

3
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3.5 General provisions

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3
3.54

3.5.5

Provision is made for appropriate adjustments in the event of alterations o the company's capital, including by way of special
distributions, rights offers, corporate reorganisations, subdivisions and consalidations. Furthermare, provision is made for the
appropriate treatment of participants in the event of certain reconstructions of the company, including by way of certain merger
and take-over events.

The company will apply for a listing on the JSE of all shares issued to a participant under the SAP as soon as possible after the
issue (if applicable) thereof.

A participant may not cede any of his rights or delegate any of his obligations under the plan.

The board and the trustees may amend the SAP with the approval (if required) of every stock exchange on which shares are, at
the relevant time, listed. In addition, no amendments affecting any of the following matters shall be competent unless sanctioned
by the company in general mesting:

3.5.4.1 the eligibility of participants;

3.5.4.2 the definition of Allocation Price;

3.5.4.3 the definition of Fair Market Value;

3.5.4.4 the maximum number of shares subject to the SAP and the maximum number of shares which may be acquired by a
single participant.

On the winding-up of the trust, any surplus will be paid to the company and any deficit arising will be borne by the company.
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Annual general mesting

Shareholders’ Diary

8 February 2006

Interim statement and dividend announcement

for the half year ending 31 March 2006 May 2006
Group results and ordinary dividend announcement
for the year ending 30 September 2006 November 2006

DIVIDENDS

Ordinary
Final for the year ended 30 September 2005
Interim for the half-year ending 31 March 2006

Preference

8.5% and 6% cumulative

To be paid on 16 January 2006
To be paid July 2008

Payable twice per annum
during February and August

166
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NAMPAK LIMITED

(incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 1968/008070/06)
{Share code: NPK ISIN: ZAEGO0OC07 1676)
(“Nampak” or the “company”)

FORM OF PROXY

38th annual general meeting

For use by the registered holders of certificated Nampak shares and the holders of dematerialised Nampak shares in their own name at the
annual general meeting of the company to be held at Nampak Centre, 114 Dennis Road, Atholl Gardens, Sandton on Wednesday 8 February
2006 at 12.00 {“the annual general mesting”).

Holders of Nampak shares {(whether certificated or dematerialised) through a nominee must not complete this form of proxy, but should timeously
make the necessary arrangements with that nominee or, if applicable, Central Securities Depository Participant or broker to enable them to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting or to enable their votes in respect of their Nampak shares to be cast at the annual general meeting by
that nominee or a proxy or a representative.

IWe

{BLOOK LETTERS PLEASE)

of

telephone (work) ( ) thome) { )

being the holder(s) of ordinary shares in the company, hereby appoint (see note 1):

or failing him/her

or failing him/her

the chairman of the annual general meeting as my/our proxy to vote on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting which will be held for the
purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the special and ordinary resolutions to be proposed at the annual
general meeting and at each adjournment of the annual general meeting and to vote for or against the special and ordinary resolutions or to
abstain from voting in respect of the shares in the issued share capital of the company registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the
following instructions (see note 2).

INSERT AN X’ OR THE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD IN THE COMPANY (see note 2)
Proposed resolutions For Against Abstain
To elect T N Jacobs
To elect R J Khoza
To re-elect N Cumming

To re-elect P L Campbell

To re-elect M H Visser

To approve the allotment and issue of shares to four executive directors

To increase the fees payable to the non-executive directors
To adopt The Nampak Limited Performance Share Plan

To place unissued shares under the control of directors for the purpose of The Nampak
Limited Performance Share Plan

To adopt The Nampak Limited Share Appreciation Plan

To place unissued shares under the control of directors for the purpose of The Nampak
Limited Share Appreciation Plan

Special resolution to authorise the directors of the company to acguire or purchase
shares issued by the company on the JSE Limited

Insert an ‘X" in the relevant spaces above according to how you wish your votes to be cast. However, if you wish to cast your votes in respect of
a lesser number of shares than you own in the company, insert the number of shares held in respect of which you wish to vote (see note 2).

Signed at on 2005/6
Signature

Assisted by me (where applicable)

Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a member of the company) to attend, speak and vote in place of that
member at the annual general meeting. Please read the notes on the reverse side hereof.
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NOTES
1.

A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in the space/s provided, with or
without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”, but any such deletion must be initialied by the member. The perscn whose
name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitlied to act as proxy to tha exclusion of
those whose names follow.

A member's instructions to the proxy must be indicated in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to
authorise the proxy to vote or abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit. A member may instruct the proxy to
vote less than the total number of shares held by inserting the relevant number of shares in the appropriate box provided. A member who fails
to do so will be deemed to have authorised the proxy to vote or abstain from voting, as the case may be, in respect of all the member’s votes
exercisable at the annual general meeting.

Forms of proxy must be lodged with or posted to the company’s share registrar, Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Pty) Limited,
70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), to be received by no later than 12:00 on Monday,
6 February 2006.

The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the member from attending the annual general meeting and speaking and
voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms thereof, should such member wish to do so.

Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity (e.g. for a company, close
corparation, trust, pension fund, deceased estate, etc.) must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company’s
transfer secretaries or waived by the chairman of the annual general meeting.

Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

A minor must be assisted by the minor’s parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing the minor’s legal capacity are
produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries of the company.

Where there are joint holders of shares in the company, any one of such persons may alone sign this form of proxy in respect of such shares
as if such person was the sole holder, but if more than one of such joint holders submits a form of proxy, the form of proxy, if accepted by the
chairman of the annual general meeting, submitted by the holder whose name appears first in the company’s share register will be accepted
to the exclusion of any cther form of proxy submitted by any other joint holder(s}.

The chairman of the annual general meeting may accept any form of proxy which is completed other than in accordance with these notes if
the chairman of the annual general meeting is satisfied as to the manner in which the member wishes to vote.




SENIOR DIVISIONAL MANAGEMENT

AFRICA

Bevcan
John Movyes (57)

Bevcap
Chris Brink (43)

Nampak Cartons & Labels
Rob Morris (43)
Pr Eng, BSc Eng (Chem), BComm (Hons)

Nampak Corrugated
Willie Wiese (44)
Mast, Elect Eng, Mse Indus Eng, MBA {Wits)

Disaki Cores & Tubes
Peter Davies (49)
BComm

Divfood
Roy Douglas (48)
BSoc Sci, MBA

Finance director ~ Africa Region
Mark Kathan (35)
CA(SA)

Flexibles Cluster
Robin Moore (46)
BComm

Nampak Flexibles
Chris MclLaughlin (43)
MBA

Nampak Flexpak
Rizwan Ahmed-Hassen (51}
BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)

Human resources director - Africa Region
Fezekile Tshigi (51)
BA PGDHRM

Nampak L & CP

Rob Francois (44)

BComm

Megapak

Peter van Lienden (59)

BSc (Hons), MSc (cum laude)

Petpak
Ephraim Msane (43)
BSc (Chem Eng)

Non-packaging
Charles Bromley (42)
BSc Eng (Chem)

Senior Divisional Management

Rigid Plastics Cluster
Philip De Weerdt (51)
BSc Eng MBA, SEP (Stanford)

Nampak Tubes & Tubs
Mlungisi J Mathonsi (36)
BSc (Hons), MBA (Scotland)

Redibox

 Deon Breedt (51)

BMil (Comm), BComm (Hons)
Nampak Sacks

Tim Eliiott (52)

BComm

Nampak Weigand Glass
Alastair Lang (59)

CA, EDP (Columbia)

EUROPE

Nampak Cartons Europe
Mark Collet (54)
BEcon

M.Y. Healthcare Division
Malcolm Ward (54)
M 1 Biol

Nampak Plastics Europe
Tom Reid (43)

HND Mech Eng, BComm
Finance director Europe
Leon Taviansky (35)

CA(BA)

Director

Stuart Goode (55)

MBA, FCCA, SMP (Cranfield)

SENIOR CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Company secretary and group legal advisor
Neill O'Brien (51)

BProc

Group human resource executive
Lynne Kidd (45)

BA (Hons)

Chief information officer

Armindo Morais (51)

BComm, HDip Acc, CA(SA)

MBA, SEP (Stanford)

Group information technology manager

Paddy Slattery (62)
BComm, MBA

D Nampak Limited Annual Report 2005 @
BASTION GRAPHICS

— |




]

s

L

T A

g e s A

i i A st
e

ot e s
P

i I i IS S0 (G il e B [ T T e gt !
: A phiney ; e




